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Broads Authority
Financial Scrutiny and Audit Committee

Minutes of the meeting held on 7 February 2017

Present:

Mr Guy McGregor (Chairman)
Mr Louis Baugh

Prof Jacquie Burgess

Sir Peter Dixon

In Attendance:

Ms Esmeralda Guds — Administrative Officer

Mr David Harris — Solicitor & Monitoring Officer

Miss Emma Krelle — Head of Finance

Ms Andrea Long — Director of Planning & Resources
Dr John Packman — Chief Executive

Also in Attendance:

Ms Emma Hodds - Head of Internal Audit Consortium
Mr Kevin Sutor — Audit Director

Also Present:

2/1

2/2

CliIr Gail Harris, Norwich City Council
Clir Brian lles, North Norfolk Council

Apologies for Absence

Apologies were received from Michael Whitaker. The Chairman welcomed
Gail Harris and Brian lles to the meeting. He clarified that they were welcome
to comment on the topics they were interested in but wouldn’t be able to vote.

The Chairman announced that at the last Broad Authority meeting it had been
agreed that the Authority as from immediate effect would audio record all
meetings to assist in the writing of the minutes and therefore this meeting
would be recorded. At the moment there were no plans to make the
recordings available online however on request could be made available at
the office.

Appointment of Vice-Chair

The Chair invited nominations for the position of Vice-Chairman for the
forthcoming year.
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2/3

2/4

2/5

2/6

217

It was proposed by Jacquie Burgess and duly seconded by Sir Peter Dixon
that Mr Baugh be appointed as Vice-Chairman.

There being no other nominations, it was
RESOLVED

that Mr Baugh be appointed as Vice-Chairman of the Financial Scrutiny and
Audit Committee for the forthcoming year.

Matters of Urgent Business
There were no items being proposed as matters of urgent business.
Declarations of Interests

Members expressed declarations of interests as set out in Appendix 1 to
these minutes.

To receive and confirm the minutes of the Financial Scrutiny and Audit
Committee meeting held on 27 September 2017 (herewith)

The minutes of the meeting held on 27 September 2017 were approved as a
correct record and signed by the Chairman.

Public Question Time
No question had been raised by members of the public.

Investment Strategy and Performance Report 2016/17

This report sets out policy for the Authority’s investment of surplus cash,
including the investment principles adopted and the performance achieved in
the eight months to 30 November 2016. The Committee was informed that as
the Authority was waiting for LIoyds Bank to perform their background checks,
no further updates were available.

A Member commented that now the services of Broadland District Councll
were no longer needed the Authority would need a clear statement outlining
where it should invest. It was clarified that the Authority was covered by the
Broadland Investment Policy until 31 March and that a new Draft Investment
Strategy would be considered at the Broads Authority meeting in March 2017.
It was agreed that a copy of the Draft Investment Strategy would be circulated
to members of the Committee prior to the Broads Authority meeting.

Brian lles enquired whether the Authority had considered using the
investment services of Norfolk County Council. The Head of Finance
explained that this had been considered but due to the Authority’s low level of
funds paying the County Council or other local authority for their services
would outweigh what the Broads Authority could earn in interest. Therefore
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2/8

2/9

the Authority would be looking at managing it internally but with a low risk
appetite.

Members noted the report.

Consolidated Income and Expenditure: 1 April to 31 December 2016
Actual and 2016/17 Forecast Outturn

Members received a report providing the Committee with details of the actual
income and expenditure for the nine month period to 31 December 2016, and
a forecast of the projected expenditure at the end of the financial year (31
March 2017).The second part of the report provided the draft valuation results
for the Authority’s pension liabilities from the triennial valuation.

The Head of Finance highlighted that the main variances within the budget
were due to timing differences with major projects, for example the piling work
at Cockshoot Dyke and the dredging work at Hickling Broad.

It was further highlighted that the Planning and Resources Directorate had
been successful in securing extra funding from Tesco in supporting the
Authority’s work with farmers in the catchment. It was proposed to set up an
earmarked reserve at year end for any unspent funds instead of applying for
carry forwards. This income would be ring fenced and could not be spent on
other areas.

The Members welcomed the news that the hire boat income had improved
and it was confirmed that the Authority had been refunded for the faulty toll
plaques.

With regard to pensions, the Committee welcomed the fact that the Authority
results of the triennial valuation were in line with the Financial Strategy. It was
explained that although the annual costs of employing staff were going to rise
the lump sum contribution towards pension costs was going to fall. It was
noted that the judgement by the Head of Finance on the level of provision in
the Financial Strategy had been pretty accurate.

Members acknowledged and welcomed the fact that the annual lump sum
pension deficit contribution had halved, however there was some concern as
it was unclear why the contribution was anticipated to rise again.

It was agreed that the Head of Finance would seek clarification from the
Norfolk Pension Fund and provide feedback to the Committee.

Internal Audit Strategic and Annual Plans 2017/18

The Committee received a report providing an overview of the Internal Audit
Plan for 2017/18. This served as the work programme and initial terms of
reference for the Authority’s Internal Audit Services Contractor, TIAA Ltd, and
provided the basis upon which the Internal Audit Consortium Manager will
subsequently give an Annual Audit Opinion for 2017/18.
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2/10

It was highlighted that the Internal Audit Charter which normally was brought
to the Committee every two years, had been brought back to the meeting
early to inform Members of recent updates. These included the new Internal
Professional Practices Framework (IPPF) and PIAS but in particular the
mission statement and core principles.

The Committee was reminded that there wouldn’t be an IT audit next year as
it was agreed that the IT audit coverage would be reviewed every other year.
Instead the Internal Auditors were asked to carry out an audit on the Port
Marine Safety Code. The scope and the focus of the audit, the first one
carried out by Internal Auditors still needed to be determined and it was
estimated would take about 8 days.

It was explained that when the Internal Auditors changed contractors, the
assurance rating changed from ‘reasonable’ to ‘adequate’, however for the
purpose of staying consistent the Head of Internal Audit Consortium agreed to
move the assurance rating back to ‘reasonable’.

The Committee noted and supported:
e the updated Internal Audit Charter
e the updated Internal Audit Strategy for 2017/18
e the Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2017/18

The Committee noted the Performance Management measures for the
Internal Audit Contractor.

External Audit

The Members received the Annual Audit letter for 2015/16, which was a
statutory requirement, providing the conclusion of the 2015/16 audit. They
were further provided with the Audit Plan 2016/17 and it was pointed out that
the two main responsibilities were the audit of the Financial Statements and
the Value for Money Conclusions for 2016/17. They also received the Local
Government Audit Committee Briefing by Ernst & Young.

The Audit Director thanked the Finance Team for producing a good Statement
of Accounts and commented that the low level of risk was positive and
remained consistent with the findings of last year. He highlighted that in terms
of the Financial Statement the only significant risk was about Management
Override which was a risk that needed to be recognised in every audit.

In regards to ‘value for money’, the area identified as risk was the ongoing
stretch in terms of budgeting and financial pressures across the public sector.
It was explained that although the Government had announced that there was
some stability that the National Park Grant would be maintained, a large part
of the Authority’s budget came from navigation income where there were
more pressures. It would need to be scrutinised whether the ring fencing was
being upheld.
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2/11

It was clarified that when talking about pressures for ‘value for money’ the
auditors were not referring to the pressures on resources when members of
staff had to bring forward the statement of accounts.

It was noted that the proposed audit fee would remain £13,943, and that
provisions for this had been made in the 2016/17 budget.

Members noted the Annual Audit Letter for 2015/16; the Annual Audit Plan for
2016/17 and the Local Government Audit Committee briefing by Ernst &
Young, including the key questions for Audit Committees.

Implementation of Internal Audit Recommendations: Summary of
Progress

Members received a report updating them on progress in implementing
Internal Audit recommendations arising out of audits carried out during
2015/16 and 2016/17.

The Committee was updated that the outstanding recommendation under
Corporate Governance regarding Members Training Strategy was tied in with
the Members Appraisals and the Solicitor and Monitoring Officer confirmed
that this had now been completed.

It was noted that the first completed audit was on External Funding which
covered the Broads Landscape Partnership and the National Park Partnership
(NPP). Only one of the five recommendations remained outstanding.

The second audit looked at Anti-Virus, Malware and Backups & Firewall
Administrations and all of the recommendations had been completed.

Members were updated that the third audit on Key Controls had just been
completed and that the Corporate Governance audit was due to be completed
shortly. The results for both audits would be reported back to the next
Committee meeting in July 2017.

The Committee was further updated that the NPP letter had not been received
in time for the last NPP Board meeting, however it was ensured that the letter
would go to the NPP Board meeting in February.

With permission from the Committee, Brian lles, a Member of the Broads
Authority, enquired in regards to paragraph 4.1 how the systems and controls
in place would be recognised and monitored. It was explained that the Head
of Finance would address the recommendations set by the internal auditors.
Subsequently a report updating Members on the recommendations would be
brought to the FSAC Committee meeting and finally the Internal Auditors
would determine whether the evidence received in relation to the
recommendations were satisfactory. The External Auditors would monitor the
work carried out by the Internal Auditors.

Members noted the report.
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2/12

2/13

2/14

Review of Strategic Risk Register

The Committee was provided with the Strategic Risk Register which had been
reviewed and updated following consultation with risk owners in December
2016 and both Management Forum and Management Team in January 2017.
The Register had also been reformatted in the layout approved by the
Financial Scrutiny and Audit Committee on 27 September 2016.

The Solicitor and Monitoring Officer highlighted that two new risks, 19 and 20,
had been added and informed the Members that as an outcome of the
Corporate Governance audit ‘failure of pay-roll’ would be added as a further
risk.

It was confirmed that the Strategic Risk Register would be brought to the
Committee twice a year.

When looking at the Initial Risk within the Strategic Risk Register, one
member queried whether the severity of a risk should be linked to the
mitigations put in place. To provide more clarity it was agreed to be more
explicit when describing the vulnerability and impact of a specific hazard.

The Members welcomed the new format of the register and agreed that it was
easier to read. It was explained the same system was used for the
organisation as a whole as for individual sites to stay consistent.

Members noted and supported the Strategic Risk Register.

Review of Code of Corporate Governance

A review of the Authority’s Code of Corporate Governance had been initiated
by the Solicitor and Monitoring Officer and Members received a report which
set out the new guidance issued by The Chartered Institute of Public Finance
for the financial year 2016/17 and which would need to be incorporated into
the review of the Code.

The Committee noted the new guidance and supported the amendments of
the Code of Corporation Governance which reflected this.

Peer Review

Members received a report which responded to the motion adopted by the
Broads Authority at its meeting on 27 January 2017 which recommended that

“the Financial Scrutiny and Audit Committee considers the need, scope and
terms of reference for a peer review involving the National Park Authorities
and independent experts into the governance arrangements of the Broads
Authority and how they can be modernised.”
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2/15

At the meeting an additional paper was circulated (please find attached) which
explained that whilst the Authority rejected an Local Government Association
(LGA)-led Peer Challenge, some informal practical advice from the LGA had
been sought on how the Broads Authority might begin to design a focused
peer review process.

The Committee was in agreement that the Peer Review would need to be led
by a team who understood National Parks, however they recognized that
using LGA’s experience in taking on an administrative role would be
beneficial.

Members were mindful that the Peer Review would be expensive and time
consuming but agreed that done correctly, the Review would produce a
stronger and improved Authority which would benefit both Members and staff.
In order to justify the cost of £25,000, funded from the National Park budget, it
was stressed that the need and scope of a Peer Review were essential to get
right.

Members were conscious of a difficult relationship between some Secretary of
State appointed Members and some local authority appointed Members and
aware that communication between the two would need to improve. It was
believed that if a Peer Review could help the Authority improve
communications, it would be worthwhile.

When it was proposed to encourage Members and Co-opted Members to
provide feedback on the Peer Review through their annual review, the
Chairman commented that the Performance Annual Review was a
requirement for State of Secretary nominees only. He continued that some
local councilors felt they were not answerable to the Authority’s review but to
the performance review of their local authorities and therefore preferred not to
combine the Performance Appraisal Review with the Peer Review.

It was explained that to help to scope this review, proper feedback from the
Members was essential. The Members were therefore offered the opportunity
to respond to this motion through their annual review and comment on the
governance challenges the Authority was facing.

Members accepted unanimously that a peer review on the lines set out in the
paper would be useful. The Members further agreed that all Broads Authority
Members should be encouraged to contribute to scoping the review through
the Members Annual Review process, the interviews for which were due to be
held in February and early March.

To consider any other items of business which the Chairman decides
should be considered as a matter of urgency pursuant to Section 100B
(4) (b) of the Local Government Act 1972

There were no further items of business which the Chairman decided should
be considered as a matter of urgency pursuant to Section 100B (4) (b) of the
Local Government Act 1972.
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2/16 Formal Questions
There were no formal questions of which due notice had been given.

2/17 Date of the next meeting

Members noted that date of the next Committee meeting would be held on
Tuesday 25 July 2017 at Yare House, 62-64 Thorpe Road, Norwich,
commencing at 2:00pm.

Chairman

10
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Committee:

Date of Meeting:

Declaration of Interests
Financial Scrutiny and Audit Committee

7 February 2017

APPENDIX 1

Name Agenda/ Nature of Interest Please tick
Minute (Please describe the nature of the here if the
Please Print No(s) interest) interest is a
Pecuniary
Interest
v
Guy McGregor Member of SCC
J A Burgess Toll Payer
Peter Dixon Governance Review, Peer Review,
General Interest
Louis Baugh None

11
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Broads Authority

Financial Scrutiny and Audit
Committee

25 July 2017

Agenda Item No 6

Annual Governance Statement 2016/17
Report by Solicitor and Monitoring Officer

Summary: This report explains the legal requirement, background and purpose of

the Annual Governance Statement, and the requirement to carry out an
annual review of the Authority’s systems of internal control and
governance arrangements. The draft Annual Governance Statement
for 2016/17 is attached, for members’ consideration.

Recommendations:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

That the views and comments of the Committee are sought on the internal
control systems and governance arrangements in place.

That the Annual Governance Statement for 2016/17 and Action Plan for
2017/18 are approved.

That the Committee notes, subject to implementation of the improvements
identified in the Action Plan, that the Authority’s internal control systems and
governance arrangements are considered to be adequate and effective.

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

Introduction

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 (“the Regulations”) contain a
requirement that an Annual Governance Statement, prepared in accordance
with proper practices in relation to internal control, must be approved ‘by the
relevant authority’ (in this case the Broads Authority) and must accompany the
Statement of Accounts.

For this year the Regulations specify a new, earlier date for publication of an
Annual Governance Statement, to be no later than 31% July of the financial
year immediately following the end of the financial year to which the
Statement relates.

The implementation of the Regulations is undertaken by the Authority

following advice, guidance and recommendations of the Chartered Institute of
Public Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA) in particular the CIPFA/SOLACE joint
working group framework ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government’.

The Regulations require local authorities to conduct a review at least once a
year of the effectiveness of their systems of internal control and risk
management, so as to give assurance on their effectiveness and/or to
produce a management action plan to address identified weaknesses. The
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1.5

1.6

1.7

2.1

2.2

2.3

Regulations require an authority to ensure that it has a sound system of
internal control which:-

(a) facilitates the effective exercise of its functions and the achievement of its
aims and objectives;

(b) ensures that the financial and operational management of the authority is
effective; and

(c) includes effective arrangements for the management of risk

The Authority has received the Assurance Review of Corporate Governance
by the Head of Internal Audit for 2016/17 as set out in the attached draft
Annual Governance Statement at paragraph 8.7. The overall opinion was that:

“The overall opinion is that the framework of governance, risk management and
control is deemed to be reasonable, indicating a continued stable environment.”

A further annual report setting out the Opinion of the Head of Internal Audit
will be available for the AGM of the Authority on 28" July 2017. The draft
Annual Governance Statement sets out further details from the annual report
and any recommendations and improvements are contained in the Action
Plan for 2017/18 (a number of recommendations contained in the annual
report had already been undertaken and completed at the time of this report
and where that is the case, they have not been included on the Action Plan).

Once agreed, the Annual Governance Statement should be signed by the
Chairman of the Authority and the Chief Executive.

Code of Corporate Governance

The Authority’s systems for delivering good governance are set out in the
Code of Corporate Governance which was adopted by the Broads Authority at
its meeting in November 2009. This document was prepared in accordance
with the guidance set out in the CIPFA/SOLACE framework ‘Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government’. (“the Framework”)

The principles and standards set out in the Framework are aimed at helping
local authorities to develop and maintain their own codes of governance and
discharge their accountability for the proper conduct of business. The
Framework emphasises the importance of good governance to the wider
outcomes of good management, good performance, and good public
engagement. It puts high standards of conduct and leadership at the heart of
good governance, placing responsibility on Members and officers to
demonstrate leadership by behaving in ways that exemplify high standards of
conduct, and so set the tone for the rest of the organisation.

The Authority’s Code of Corporate Governance is signed by the Chairman
and Chief Executive. This is currently undergoing a comprehensive review in
order to meet with the new 2016 CIPFA/Solace Framework, which itself has
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3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

4.1

4.2

been updated considerably to reflect the changes implemented by the
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.

Role of the Chief Financial Officer

In 2010 CIPFA issued a document entitled ‘The Role of the Chief Financial
Officer in Local Government’. The Statement supports CIPFA’s work to
strengthen governance and financial management across the public services,
and sets out five principles that define the core activities and behaviours that
belong to the role of Chief Financial Officer (CFO) in local government and the
governance requirements needed to support them. These are set out in
paragraphs 3.2 and 3.3 below.

The CFO in a local authority:

e is a key Members of the leadership team, helping it to develop and
implement strategy and to resource and deliver the authority’s strategic
objectives sustainably and in the public interest;

e must be actively involved in, and able to bring influence to bear on, all
material business decisions to ensure immediate and longer term
implications, opportunities and risk are fully considered, and alignment
with the authority’s financial strategy;

¢ must lead the promotion and delivery by the whole authority of good
financial management so that public money is safeguarded at all times and
used appropriately, economically, efficiently and effectively.

To deliver these responsibilities the CFO:

e must lead and direct a finance function that is resourced to be fit for
purpose;
e must be professionally qualified and suitably experienced.

It is further recommended that, in their Annual Governance Statements, local
authorities should ‘include a specific statement on whether the authority’s
financial management arrangements conform with the guidance requirements
of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local
Government (2010) and, where they do not, explain why and how they deliver
the same impact’. This statement is set out in paragraph 3.11 of the Annual
Governance Statement.

Annual Review of Governance Arrangements

The production and publication of the Annual Governance Statement is the

result of an on-going review of the adequacy of internal control systems and
governance arrangements, and is not an activity which should be viewed in

isolation.

The review has been informed by the work of officers of the Authority, who
have responsibility for the maintenance and review of the internal control
environment, internal audit reports and the recommendations made by
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4.3

4.4

4.5

5.1

5.2

external auditors and inspectors. The review of Partnership arrangements
and the review of the Strategic Risk Register also contributes towards the
review.

Where significant weaknesses have been identified these are set out in the
Action Plan (Appendix 1b). It should be noted that this Action Plan does not
cover all the activities which will be undertaken during the year and which will
contribute towards good governance, but focuses on those activities, and
especially new initiatives and those issues identified by auditors, which will
address weaknesses, ensure continuous improvement of the system and
generally ‘add value’ to the arrangements.

A copy of the 2016/17 Action Plan is also appended (Appendix 2), with
progress to date added. Where the appropriate action is still outstanding, it
has been carried forward into the 2017/18 Action Plan.

The Financial Scrutiny and Audit Committee shall review the Annual
Governance Statement and Action Plan at its meeting on 5™ July 2016 and
should there be any amendments proposed by the Committee, those
amendments along with the Committees’ recommendations shall be
presented to the Authority for approval.

Summary
The Committee is asked:

e to review and comment on the internal control systems and governance
arrangements in place;

e to approve the Annual Governance Statement and confirm that it
represents a true reflection of the control environment present in the
Authority; and

e to note that, subject to implementation of the improvements identified in
the Action Plan, these are adequate and effective.

The Action Plan will be implemented during 2017/18 in order that there is on-
going review and improvement of the systems of internal control and
governance arrangements. Progress in implementing the Action Plan will be
reported in the next Annual Governance Statement.

Background papers:

Author: David Harris

Date of report: 7 July 2017

Broads Plan Objectives: None

Appendices: APPENDIX la- draft Annual Governance Statement 2016/17

APPENDIX 1b —2017/18 Action Plan
APPENDIX 2 —2016/17 Action Plan Summary of Progress
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2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

APPENDIX 1a
Broads Authority

Annual Governance Statement 2016/17

The requirement for an Annual Governance Statement

The Broads Authority, as a relevant authority, is required to produce an Annual
Governance Statement. This requirement is found in Regulation 6 (1) (a) and (b) of
the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. It consists of a review of the effectiveness
of internal control and the inclusion of a statement reporting on the review with any
published Statement of Accounts.

The CIPFA/Solace Framework guidance

The Broads Authority acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring that there is a
sound system of governance together with appropriate internal control systems to
achieve this, including for the management of risk.

The Broads Authority implements the guidance contained in the CIPFA/Solace
framework document “Delivering Good Governance in Local Government”. This
guidance was updated by CIPFA in 2016, following the introduction of the Accounts
and Audit Regulations 2015.

The framework defines the principles that should underpin the governance of each
authority. Authorities should test their governance structures and partnerships
against the principles in the framework by:

e Reviewing existing governance arrangements.
Developing and maintaining an up-to-date local code of governance, including
arrangements for ensuring ongoing effectiveness.

e Reporting publicly on compliance with their own code on an annual basis, and
on how they have monitored their effectiveness of their governance
arrangements in the year and on planned changes.

The framework sets out a number of core and sub-principles against which
authorities should demonstrate the compliance of their governance structures.
These core principles are:

e Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical
values and respecting the rule of law

e Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement

e Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and
environmental benefits

¢ Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement
of the intended outcomes

¢ Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its
leadership and the individuals within it.

¢ Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and
strong public financial management
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¢ Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and audit to
deliver effective accountability

2.5 The Authority has approved and adopted a Code of Corporate Governance in
accordance with the previous CIPFA guidance. This Code is in the process of being
updated and reviewed against the new 2016 guidance. A copy of the Code is
available on the Authority’s website at www.broads-authority.gov.uk or from the
Monitoring Officer at Yare House, 62-64 Thorpe Road, Norwich NR1 1RY.

3 The governance framework of the Broads Authority

3.1 The Broads Authority is an independent body working within the framework of local
government. It is constituted as a body corporate by the Norfolk and Suffolk Broads
Act 1988 with three general duties:

¢ To conserve and enhance the natural beauty, wildlife and cultural
heritage of the Broads

e To promote opportunities for the understanding enjoyment of the
special qualities of the Broads by the public

e To protect the interests of navigation

Section 2(4) sets out the matters the Authority must have regard to in
carrying out these functions. These include the national importance of the
area as an area of natural beauty, desirability of protecting it from damage
and the needs of agriculture, forestry and the local economic and societal
needs.

In relation to the interests of navigation, section 10 (a) and (b) sets out
specific requirements to maintain the navigation area to such standard as
appears to be reasonably required and to develop and improve it as it thinks
fit.

The Broads Authority is also the local planning authority for the area and a harbour
and navigation authority.

3.2 The Broads Authority has unique governance arrangements that combine elements
of accountability to central government (via DEFRA) and to local communities. This
reflects the needs and interests of both national and local stakeholders. In relation to
the former, 10 Members are appointed by the Secretary of State. Local accountability
is achieved by the appointment of nine Members who are also locally elected County
and District Councillors. In addition, the Authority has a number of co-opted Members
to its Navigation Committee to advise it in protecting the interests of navigation, and 2
of these Members are appointed to the Broads Authority. In total, the Broads
Authority has 21 Members and meets six times a year.

3.3 All matters, other than the Planning Committee and those matters specifically
delegated to the Chief Executive, are dealt with by the full Broads Authority as the
prime decision maker. The framework consists of decision making carried out by
Members of the Authority at its meetings, which are held every two months. Day-to-
day routine decision making is delegated by Members to officers of the Authority
through the Scheme of Delegated Powers. This scheme is available as one of many
constitutional documents, from the Monitoring Officer.
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3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

The Financial Scrutiny and Audit Committee consists of up to 7 Members of the
Authority and meets three times a year. It has responsibility for financial scrutiny,
including a review of the Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement,
financial planning, audit and risk management. It takes a strategic view on whether
the resources allocated to the Authority are used effectively. This is an advisory
committee to the Authority and does not make decisions.

The Authority’s functions as a local planning authority are carried out by its Planning
Committee of 11 members, with powers delegated to officers in accordance with
nationally established legislation. The Planning Committee is a decision-making
committee and normally meets 4-weekly. Planning decisions, whether made at
Committee or through delegated powers, are published on the Authority’s website.

The Authority’s Navigation Committee of 13 Members and co-opted Members
advises on the navigation function of the Authority and meets six times a year. It is an
advisory committee to the Broads Authority and does not make decisions. However,
if the Broads Authority does not accept recommendations by the Navigation
Committee it is required to give reasons.

The Broads Local Access Forum is a semi-independent body to advise the Authority
on the improvement of public access to land within the Broads executive area.

The Broads Forum is a consultative body of 25 Members with membership being
made up from around 50 key stakeholder groups. The Forum offers advice and
comment on the Broads Authority’s strategic aims and objectives.

The Authority has two Independent Persons, appointed in July 2016, who are
regularly consulted to enable the Authority to achieve high ethical standards.

The Authority has three officers as required by statute, who carry out specific duties,
namely the Head of Paid Service (the Chief Executive), the Monitoring Officer (the
Solicitor and Monitoring Officer) and the Section 17 Officer (Chief Financial Officer).
The last two posts were taken in-house during the last financial year, having
previously been provided by other authorities. The Chief Financial Officer manages
the financial arrangements and internal financial controls on a day-to-day basis.
Along with the Director of Strategy and Sustainable Communities and the Director of
Operations, these officers comprise the Authority’s Management Team.

It is considered that the authority’s financial management arrangements conform with
the guidance requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial
Officer in Local Government (2010).

There are a number of procedures to ensure that the Authority obtains best value for
money in all that it does, including Financial Regulations, Standing Orders Relating to
Contracts and a Procurement Strategy. These are all reviewed and updated on a
regular basis. The Financial Regulations are currently undergoing a review to reflect
that the Section 17 Officer and Treasury is now managed in-house. The Standing
Orders Relating to Contracts were updated in May 2015 to reflect the transition to
two Directorates. The Authority also adopted a Counter Fraud Bribery and
Corruption Strategy, which was updated in February 2016.

The Authority monitors the effectiveness of internal control systems through the
consideration of regular internal audits, performance management and budget
monitoring reports, and through monitoring and receiving reports on the work of the
Financial Scrutiny and Audit Committee.
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5.1

5.2

Arrangements for decision making and openness

The Authority’s arrangements for decision making were the subject of an internal
audit in 2016/17 and are set out in publicly available documents. These include
Standing Orders, Scheme of Delegated Powers, a description of the role of Members
and of co-opted Members, and a Protocol on Members and Officer Relations.

The Authority and its committees have distinct terms of reference. Meetings of the
Authority and its committees are in public (save for items which are exempt under
legislative guidance). In January 2017 the Authority approved a trial recording of all
its meetings, with a view to potentially greater public access to those recordings or
live streaming of its meetings at a future date. Members of the public may ask
guestions at meetings.

Officer responsibilities are defined through their job descriptions and a clear set of
policies and procedures, including core values, that officers are expected to follow.
An Officer code of conduct and appraisal system underpins effective delivery of
service and performance standards, as well as setting out areas of decision-making
responsibility.

As a recommendation from internal audit, the Authority has, in relation to delegated
decisions, implemented a Register of certain categories of delegated decisions. This
register is available for inspection and will be published on the Authority’s website.
The Authority has also reviewed its implementation of the Local Government
Transparency Code 2015 in the last 12 months. This includes the publication of
specified categories of information on its website, such as information on
procurement, assets, salaries and pay multiples, and is found on the ‘Transparency’
page of the Authority’s website.

Standing Orders for Procurement of contracts set out arrangements governing the
award of contracts, to ensure that procurement processes are fair, transparent and
lawful and that value for money is being obtained.

The Protocol on Members and Officer Relations was due to be reviewed and updated
by the Authority in May 2017 (This has been completed at the date of this report).

The Standing Orders for the regulation of Authority Business were due to be
reviewed and updated in May 2017 (This has been completed at the date of this
report).

Core values, ethics and behaving with integrity

The Localism Act 2011 transferred to local authorities the duty to promote and
maintain high standards, previously exercised by Standards for England. Accordingly
the Broads Authority seeks to achieve this throughout the spectrum of its governance
documentation. For example, the Nolan Principles feature in the Members’ code of
conduct, reviewed in September 2016, and the Authority’s Independent Persons
provide external scrutiny of its standards processes.

In May 2017 the Solicitor and Monitoring Officer undertook a review of ethics within
the Authority, which was considered by Members. His report considered the broad
guestion of ethical standards at the Authority in the context of governance, reviewing
available guidelines and making appropriate recommendations. A number of those
recommendations are in the forthcoming year’s action plan.
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The Broads Authority has adopted the following set of core values as a local ethics
code:

Sustainable — We consider the environmental and financial implications
in everything we do

Exemplary — We strive for excellence in all we do

Commitment — We are committed to making a difference for the Broads
for the benefit of everyone

Caring — We are considerate and respectful of each other

Open and Honest — We are open, honest and inclusive in all our
decisions and communications

The Authority uses these core values in its codes of conduct for Officer and
Members, recruitment, staff interviews and appraisals, in the Protocol on Members
and Officer Relations, and in staff and Members development programmes.

Engaging with stakeholders and the Broads Plan

The Broads Plan is the management strategy for the Broads, drawing together and
guiding a wide range of partnership plans and programmes relevant to the area. The
Plan sets out the long-term vision for the area and short-term actions for the benefit
of the natural and cultural environment, local communities and visitors. While the
Authority is responsible for its production, many organisations and local interest,
amenity and community groups are involved in its implementation and review.
Broads Plan 2017-22 was adopted in March 2017, following an 18-month review and
consultation process.

Progress on all actions in the Plan is reported to full Authority meetings, which are
open to the public, and published on the Authority’s website. Updates are also sent to
Plan partners and to the Broads Forum, a quarterly committee representing around
50 local interest and user groups.

Monitoring indicators, including a ‘State of the Park’ report, help assess progress and
changes in the Broads over time, and are updated and reported in line with the
Broads Plan 5-year review cycle.

The views of users have been sought through a number of means, including the
visitor centres annual survey, inviting comment and feedback at parish forums, an
on-going survey of users of the corporate website and the annual Broads Outdoors
Festival feedback forms.

A major stakeholder survey of hire boat operators, private boat owners, residents and
visitors took place in 2014. Members support the view of repeating this exercise in
2019 as part of strategic approach in formulating the Broads Plan and its priorities for
the following five year period. Public consultations were undertaken during February
and April 2016 on the draft Broads Plan and on the Issues and Options of the Broads
Local Plan. All comments received were made publicly available.

The Authority communicates the results of surveys, and other relevant information,
through its website and social media, and through its regular publications including
Broad Sheet (aimed at toll payers), Broadcaster (visitor newspaper) and the Annual
Report. It also holds community and stakeholder events, such as parish forums and
stakeholder workshops, which are open to the public and attended by Members and
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7.8

7.9

officers of the Authority. Members and officers may also be invited to community and
partner meetings and events, to provide information and respond to questions.

Managing risk and performance

The responsibility of the Financial Scrutiny and Audit Committee includes obtaining
assurances from a range of measures and reports that value for money is obtained in
the use of the Authority’s resources and that risk and performance are actively
managed to achieve best results. Specifically, this includes the effective development
and operation of risk management, and reviews the Authority’s Strategic Risk
Register.

The Authority’s Strategic Risk Register is reviewed six-monthly by risk owners so that
the Management Team can provide assurance that key strategic and operational
risks have been identified, monitored and reviewed during the year and that key
controls to mitigate the identified risks have operated effectively throughout the year.
It is also on the agenda of the Financial Scrutiny and Audit Committee for each
meeting. In addition the Risk Management Strategy is reviewed annually.

The Strategic Risk Register was the subject of a comprehensive review in January
2017. New risks were identified and analysed and the Register was reformatted, with
risks analysed in terms of numeric probability and severity both before and after the
application of risk mitigation factors. The Strategic Risk register has had a further 6-
monthly review in June 2017 by Risk Owners.

The Authority has a Business Continuity Plan, which is reviewed annually to mitigate
the effects of a major incident affecting some or all of the Authority’s operations. In
February 2017, to test the Plan, Management Forum undertook a simulated incident
of systems failures causing an evacuation in a table top exercise that also involved
the representatives of the landlord. The Authority also has specific continuity plans
for finance and IT.

A Partnerships Protocol and Register of Partnerships have been developed, and the
Management Team has identified and reviewed the governance arrangements in
respect of all significant partnerships. Identified weaknesses are being addressed
through an Action Plan, with responsibility for action and timescales. It has also been
agreed to provide an annual report on Partnerships to the Broads Authority. The
next one will be provided in September 2017.

The Authority has in place a series of internal financial controls, including approved
budgets, separation of duties and authorised signatures, to reflect good practice and
ensure that its finances are managed securely to minimise risk.

The Authority has data of all its land and property assets on a consolidated Excel
database and an Asset Management Strategy which includes a full asset disposal

policy.

The Authority’s performance across its operations is the subject of regular meetings
of the Management Team, with financial reports and budgets considered fortnightly
and reports provided to Members at each meeting.

The Authority has a whistleblowing policy for its staff, and its Monitoring Officer has a
duty to write a report if the Authority or any of its committees proposes action that
would be unlawful or amount to maladministration.
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Sources of Assurance and Internal audit conclusions

The main independent sources of assurance on the operation of the governance
framework are the work of the Authority’s Internal and External Auditors, supported
by other external organisations such as Investors in People. Independent scrutiny in
relation to implementation of a number of procedures is provided by the Independent
Persons.

Internal audit reports are considered by the Management Team and other officers as
appropriate. A management response is submitted in respect of each
recommendation, setting out whether the recommendation is accepted, what action
will be taken, which Officer is responsible and the timetable for action. Each audit
report contains an independent assurance of opinion on the adequacy and
effectiveness of controls in place to mitigate risks. The agreed actions are followed
up to ensure implementation, thus ensuring that the Authority’s risks are properly
managed. A summary of all internal audit work carried out during the year is received
by the Financial Scrutiny and Audit Committee, together with regular reports setting
out progress made in implementing internal audit recommendations. Any significant
issues of concern are brought to the attention of the Broads Authority.

The Head of Internal Audit for the Authority develops annually a strategic audit plan,
using a risk based approach.

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that the Authority must undertake
an annual review of the effectiveness of its internal audit function, and that this
review must be carried out by the same body that reviews the effectiveness of the
system of internal control. The aim is not only to make the Authority more aware of
the work of Internal Audit and its key role in governance, but also to make those
charged with governance more able to understand the connection between, and the
Authority’s responsibility for, risk management, internal control and the function of
internal audit.

Internal audit work is divided into 4 broad categories:

e Annual opinion audits;

e Fundamental financial systems that underpin the Authority’s financial
processing and reporting;

e Service area audits identified as worthy of review by the risk assessment
processes within internal audit;

e Significant computer systems which provide the capability to administer and
control the Authority’s main activities.

Additionally, the Broads Authority is informed of the work of the appointed auditors
and inspectors, including receipt of the Audit Results report and annual audit and
inspection letter from the External Auditors. The Head of Internal Audit is required to
provide an annual opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the
Authority’s internal control environment, including its corporate governance
framework and risk management arrangements, identifying any weaknesses that
gualify this opinion and highlighting significant issues.

The Authority has received the Annual Report and Opinion 2016/17 by the Head of
Internal Audit. It contains the following statement:
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“The overall opinion is that the framework of governance, risk management and
control is deemed to be reasonable, indicating a continued stable environment.”

8.8 A specific review of Corporate Governance was concluded within the year and it was
found specifically “that there are areas where sound controls are in place and
operating consistently”. These were in the areas of executive and non-executive
decision making and systems and processes in place for the preparation of reports
requiring executive and non-executive decisions. There was one “Important” and “two
“needs attention” matters raised, which have been included in the 2017/18 action
plan, all of which should be complete by 31 July 2017.

8.9 The Authority is accredited by Investors in People (IIP), having met indicators at
Developed level at an assessment in December 2016. As part of the reassessment
under [IP6, the Authority is required to demonstrate evidence against seven
indicators at Established by December 2017 to retain its current accreditation of
“Silver”.

9 Review and implementation of interventions

9.1 An Action Plan has been developed to address any governance issues identified as
needing review or improvement, and to secure continuous improvement in the
Authority’s governance arrangements. This is set out at Appendix 1 in two parts.

9.2 This Action Plan has been informed by the results of audit and other reports, and by
the results of a self-assessment assurance statement. The statement was circulated
to all senior managers, inviting them to assess the Authority’s performance across a
range of governance issues to identify any gaps and weaknesses and add value to
the Authority’s governance arrangements.

9.3 The Authority proposes over the coming year to take steps to address the above
matters to further enhance its governance arrangements. It is satisfied that these
steps will address the need for improvements identified in the review of effectiveness,
and will monitor their implementation and operation as part of its next annual review.

SIgNEd .. Signed.....ooii i
Professor J Burgess, Chair Dr J Packman, Chief Executive
Date ..o 2017 Date ..ooveiei e 2017
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Appendix 1b

Annual Governance Statement 2016/17

2017/18 Action Plan

Action

Lead Officer(s)

Target Date

Priority

Implement the provisions
required of the Authority
by the new General Data
Protection Regulation,
which comes into effect
on 25 May 2018.
Nominate Data
Protection Officer.

Head of IT and Collector of
Tolls, Head of
Communications and
Solicitor and Monitoring
Officer

31 March 2018

H

Update Standing Orders
on Committees
specifically to address
issue concerning terms of
reference of FSAC raised
by internal audit

Solicitor and Monitoring
Officer

31 July 2017

Review and implement
specific guidance on
majority and casting vote
to Standing Orders
regulating Authority
Business raised by
internal audit

Solicitor and Monitoring
Officer

31 July 2017

Produce Members
Handbook on Induction to
incorporate key Members
documents

Solicitor and Monitoring
Officer

30 September 2017

Produce Register of
delegated decisions
under Openness
Regulations 2014 and
place on web page as
recommended by internal
audit March 2017

Solicitor and Monitoring
Officer

31 July 2017 (Register
completed March 2017)

Implement requirement of
ethical principles into
procedures and standing
orders for procuring
contracts

Solicitor and Monitoring
Officer

31 March 2018

Implement core values
and continue to define a
set of behaviours and
embed them in
recruitment, appraisal,
360 appraisal, survey
and management training

Chief Executive to
co-ordinate

30 November 2017
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Action

Lead Officer(s)

Target Date

Priority

as recommended by IIP

Management Team to
introduce more
transparency in
monitoring of key
Performance Indicators
(KPIs) in terms of
continuous improvement
and innovation as
recommended by IIP

Chief Executive to
co-ordinate

30 November 2017

M

Completion of phase 2 of
internal HR policies and
procedures

Head of HR

31 December 2017

Equalities Working Group
to report on an equality
analysis of employment
policies and practices

Head of HR, Volunteer Co-
ordinator and Solicitor and
Monitoring officer.

30 November 2017

Completion of updated
procurement training to
officers who have
responsibilities for
conducting procurements
to include updated
processes of procuring
intermediaries under the
IR35 legislation.

Chief Financial Officer

30 November 2017
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Appendix 2

Annual Governance Statement 2015/16

2016/17 Action Plan Summary of Progress

) : . Status
Action Lead Officer(s) | Target Date | Priority
This has been superseded by
Formulate a data Solicitor and 31 L forthcoming legislative
guality policy Monitoring December change requiring
2016 implementation of the new
GDPR and this will be
incorporated into that process
Completion of Chief Financial 31 October M This has been carried forward
updated Officer 2016 to 2017/18 to include updated
procurement processes of procuring
training to officers intermediaries under the IR35
who have legislation.
responsibilities for
conducting
procurements.
Review of Ethical Solicitor and 31 March L Completed, report to BA in
standards and Monitoring officer | 2017 May 2017
recommendations
on any
improvements
Collect data about Head of HR, 31 L This will form part of the
staff and volunteers | Volunteer co- December Equalities Working Group
to enable an to be ordinator, both 2016 remit in which the Volunteer
carried out co-ordinated by Co-ordinator will be involved
Solicitor and in 2017/18 work on which is
Monitoring Officer scheduled to commence.
Completion of Head of HR 31 March M Incomplete due to the need to
phase 2 of internal 2017 cover over several months a
HR policies and vacancy in the HR team. This
procedures will be carried forward to 31°%
December 2017
Guidance to be Solicitor and 31 July 2016 M Completed 8 July 2016, new
introduced for Monitoring Officer policy adopted September
informal treatment 2016 and training provided
of complaints January 2017.
against Members
and updating formal
complaints process
Members Code of Solicitor and 31 July 2016 M Completed 8 July 2016, new
Conduct and Monitoring Officer policy adopted September
complaints form to 2016
be updated
Members Training Solicitor and 31 M Completed January 2017
on new Code of Monitoring Officer | December
Conduct and 2016

disclosable interests
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Status

Action Lead Officer(s) | Target Date | Priority
Produce Members Solicitor and 31 March L Partially complete in draft
Handbook on Monitoring Officer | 2017 form; carry forward to
Induction September 2017
27
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Broads Authority

Financial Scrutiny and Audit
Committee

25 July 2017

Agenda Item No 7

Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion 2016/17
Report by Head of Internal Audit

Summary:

This report provides the Authority with an Annual Report and Opinion for 2016/17,
drawing upon the outcomes of Internal Audit work performed over the course of the
year and a conclusion on the Effectiveness of Internal Audit.

Recommendation:
The Committee is requested to:

1) Receive and consider the contents of the Annual Report and Opinion of the Head
of Internal Audit.

2) Note that a reasonable audit opinion (positive) has been given in relation to the
framework of governance, risk management and control for the year ended 31 March
2017.

3) Note that the opinions expressed together with significant matters arising from
internal audit work and contained within this report should be given due
consideration, when developing and reviewing the Authority’s Annual Governance
Statement for 2015/16.

4) Note the conclusions of the Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit.

1 Introduction / Background

1.1 In line with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, which came into force
from 1 April 2013; an annual opinion should be generated which concludes on
the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s framework of
governance, risk management and control;

e A summary of the work that supports the opinion should be submitted:;

¢ Reliance placed on other assurance providers should be recognised;

e Any qualifications to that opinion, together with the reason for
qualification must be provided;

e There should be disclosure of any impairments or restriction to the
scope of the opinion;

e There should be a comparison of actual audit work undertaken with
planned work;

¢ The performance of internal audit against its performance measures
and targets should be summarised; and,

e Any other issues considered relevant to the Annual Governance
Statement should be recorded.

28
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1.2 This report also contains conclusions on the Review of the Effectiveness of
Internal Audit, which includes:

e The degree of conformance with the PSIAS and the results of any
quality assurance and improvement programme;

e The outcomes of the performance indicators; and,

e The degree of compliance with CIPFA’s Statement on the Role of the
Head of Internal Audit.

1.3  The Annual Report and Opinion 2016/17 and the Review of the Effectiveness
of Internal Audit are shown in the report attached.

1.4  Onthe basis of Internal Audit work performed during 2016/17, the Head of
Internal Audit is able to give a reasonable opinion (positive) on the
framework of governance, risk management and control at the Broads
Authority.

1.5 The outcomes of the Effectiveness Review confirm that Internal Audit;

¢ Is compliant with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards;

¢ Is continually monitoring performance and looking for ways to improve;
and.

¢ Is complaint with CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal
Audit in Public Service Organisations.

These findings therefore indicate that reliance can be placed on the opinions
expressed by the Head of Internal Audit, which can then be used to inform the
Authority’s Annual Governance Statement.

Background Papers: None

Author: Emma Hodds, Head of Internal Audit

Date of Report: 15 June 2017

Appendices: Annual Report and Opinion 2016/17
29
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1.2

1.3

2.1

INTRODUCTION

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that “a relevant authority must undertake
an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and
governance processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or
guidance”.

Those standards — the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards - require the Chief Audit
Executive (known in this context as the Internal Audit Consortium Manager — IACM, carrying
out the role of the Head of Internal Audit) to provide a written report to those charged with
governance (known in this context as the Financial Scrutiny and Audit Committee) to support
the Annual Governance Statement (AGS). This report must set out:

e The opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Authority’s framework
of governance, risk management and control during 2016/17, together with reasons if
the opinion is unfavourable;

e A summary of the internal audit work carried from which the opinion is derived, the
follow up of management action taken to ensure implementation of agreed action as
at financial year end and any reliance placed upon third party assurances;

e Any issues that are deemed particularly relevant to the Annual Governance
Statement (AGS);

e The Annual Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit, which includes; the level of
compliance with the PSIAS and the results of any quality assurance and
improvement programme, the outcomes of the performance indicators and the
degree of compliance with CIPFA’s Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal
Audit.

When considering this report, the statements made therein should be viewed as key items
which need to be used to inform the organisation’s Annual Governance Statement, but there
are also a number of other important sources to which the Financial Scrutiny and Audit
Committee and statutory officers of the Authority should be looking to gain assurance.
Moreover, in the course of developing overarching audit opinions for the authority, it should
be noted that the assurances provided here, can never be absolute and therefore, only
reasonable assurance can be provided that there are no major weaknesses in the processes
subject to internal audit review. The annual opinion is thus subject to inherent limitations
(covering both the control environment and the assurance over controls) and these are
examined more fully at Appendix 5.

ANNUAL OPINION OF THE HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT

Roles and responsibilities

e The Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining appropriate risk
management processes, control systems, accounting records and governance
arrangements.

e The AGS is an annual statement by the Chairman of the Authority and the Chief
Executive that records and publishes the Authority’s governance arrangements.

e An annual opinion is required on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the
Authority’s framework of governance, risk management and control, based upon and
limited to the audit work performed during the year.

This is achieved through the delivery of the risk based Annual Internal Audit Plan discussed
and approved with Senior Management Team and key stakeholders and then approved by
the Financial Scrutiny and Audit Committee at its meeting on 9 February 2016. Any
justifiable amendments that are requested during the year are discussed and agreed with
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3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

senior management. This opinion does not imply that internal audit has reviewed all risks
and assurances, but it is one component to be taken into account during the preparation of
the AGS.

The Financial Scrutiny and Audit Committee should consider this opinion, together with any
assurances from management, its own knowledge of the Authority and any assurances
received throughout the year from other review bodies such as the external auditor.

The opinion itself

e The overall opinion is that the framework of governance, risk management and
control is deemed to be reasonable, indicating a continued stable control
environment.

¢ In providing the opinion the Authority’s risk management framework and supporting
processes, the relative materiality of the issues arising from the internal audit work
during the year and management’s progress in addressing any control weaknesses
identified therefrom have been taken into account.

e The opinion has been discussed with the Chief Financial Officer prior to publication.
AUDIT WORK UNDERTAKEN DURING THE YEAR

Appendix 1 records the internal audit work delivered during the year on which the opinion is
based. In addition, Appendix 2 is attached which shows the individual assurances provided
over recent financial years to provide an overall picture of the control environment.

Internal audit work is divided into 4 broad categories;

e Annual opinion audits;

¢ Fundamental financial systems that underpin the Authority’s financial processing and
reporting;

e Service area audits identified as worthy of review by the risk assessment processes
within internal audit;

¢ Significant computer systems which provide the capability to administer and control
the Authority’s main activities.

Summary of internal audit work

The Financial Scrutiny and Audit Committee approved the Annual Internal Audit Plan for
2016/17, which is summarised at Appendix 1 to this report and totalled 35 days,
encompassing:

¢ An annual opinion of Corporate Governance and Risk Management;

o A fundamental financial system review of key controls and assurance, including
verification of completion of audit recommendations;
Service audit of external funding; and

e [T audit review.

The following is a summary of these audits, with Appendix 3 to this report providing the
detailed Executive Summaries.

External Funding — HLF Bid and National Parks Partnership
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The objective of the audit is to review the systems and controls in place for the Heritage
Lottery Fund (HLF) Bid and the National Parks Partnership.

The audit concluded with a reasonable assurance, with three important (priority two) and
two needs attention (priority three) recommendations agreed with management. As at 31
March 2017 four of the recommendations have been addressed, with the remaining
recommendation due to be implemented by the end of August 2017. This recommendation
will ensure that procedural guidance for the Broads Landscape Partnership is in place, and
management have confirmed that this will be will be developed following submission of the
second-round application and will include management of payments, reporting structure and
evaluation requirements. There will also be a contract specific to each project, which will
include responsibilities related to CDM, insurance, safe-guarding etc.

Anti-Virus, Malware, Backups and Firewall Administration

The objective of this IT audit was to review the systems and controls in place for Anti-
Virus/Malware protection, Backups and Firewall Management to help confirm that these are
operating adequately, effectively and efficiently.

The audit concluded with a reasonable assurance, with one important and three needs
attention recommendations agreed with management. All recommendations have been
addressed within the financial year.

Corporate Governance

This key review area focused on the decision-making process, and in particular; executive
and non-executive decision making in accordance with the Constitution and the systems and
processes in place for the preparation of reports requiring executive and non-executive
decisions.

The audit concluded with a reasonable assurance, with one important and four needs
attention recommendations agreed with management. One needs attention recommendation
has already been addressed with the other two recommendations due for implementation by
the end of September.

The important recommendation will ensure that a clear record of the decisions made by the
Broads Authority is maintained and that this is made available to the public on the website, in
line with the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014.

The needs attention recommendation involves review and update of the Constitution in
respect of the standing orders, including specific reference to matters being decided by a
majority vote and stipulating who has a casting vote and alongside this, review and update of
the Broads Authority Terms of Reference of Committees, specifically the Financial, Scrutiny
and Audit Committee to reflect that this is a consultative committee.

This regular review this year did not focus on risk management, the Head of Internal Audit
has placed reliance on the regular reporting through to the Committee in this regard to be
able to determine that sound controls are in place within this area.

Key Controls and Assurance

This audit is undertaken annually and reviews the key controls within the fundamental
financial systems that inform the Statement of Accounts for year end. The areas covered
within this review are; treasury management/investment, general ledger, asset management,
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3.5

3.6

budgetary control, accounts receivable, accounts payable, payroll, toll income, control
accounts, and follow up of internal audit recommendations.

The audit concluded with a reasonable assurance and four important and three needs
attention recommendations were agreed with management on conclusion of the review, four
of which have already been implemented.

The remaining recommendations are due for implementation by the end of August 2017.
There are two important recommendations to be addressed which relate to; applying
updates to the Financial Regulations to agree with actual process and to document
procedures for the payroll review/checking and submission process undertaken by the HR
team, including the role the Finance Team perform.

The needs attention recommendation will ensure that the toll procedure manual is updated
to reflect the changes that came into force on the 1 April 2017 and confirm the toll payment
enforcement process.

Follow up of management action

In relation to the follow up of management actions to ensure that they have been effectively
implemented the position at year end is that of the 19 recommendations raised by TIIA Ltd in
2016/17, 13 have been actioned by management, five are not yet due and one is
outstanding, as referred to earlier in the report (external funding).

The following table is the overall summarised year end position, with further detail provided
at Appendix 4.

Number raised 19

Complete 13 68%
Outstanding 1 5%
Not Yet Due 5 27%

The seven recommendations that required action from the 2015/16 financial year have also
been addressed by management.

It is encouraging to note that recommendations relating to prior financial years have now
been addressed, it is also extremely positive to note that prompt action is taken by
management to address the recommendations that have been made within the financial
year.

Issues for inclusion in the Annual Governance Statement

Internal Audit work has not identified any weaknesses that are significant enough for
disclosure within the Annual Governance Statement.

THIRD PARTY ASSURANCES

In arriving at the overall opinion reliance has not been placed on any third-party assurances.
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5.1

51.1

5.1.2

52

5.21

ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL AUDIT
Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP)

Internal Assessment

A checklist for conformance with the PSIAS and the Local Government Application Note has
been completed for 2016/17. This covers; the Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of
Ethics and the Standards themselves.

The Attribute Standards address the characteristics of organisations and parties performing
Internal Audit activities, in particular; Purpose, Authority and Responsibility, Independence
and Objectivity, Proficiency and Due Professional Care, and Quality Assurance and
Improvement Programme (which includes both internal and external assessment).

The Performance Standards describe the nature of Internal Audit activities and provide
quality criteria against which the performance of these services can be evaluated, in
particular; Managing the Internal Audit Activity, Nature of Work, Engagement Planning,
Performing the Engagement, Communicating Results, Monitoring Progress and
Communicating the Acceptance of Risks.

On conclusion of completion of the checklist full conformance has been ascertained in
relation to the Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics and the Performance
Standards.

The detailed internal assessment checklist has been forwarded to the Chief Financial Officer
for independent scrutiny and verification.

External Assessment

In relation to the Attribute Standards it is recognised that to achieve full conformance an
external assessment is needed. This is required to be completed every five years, with the
first review having been completed in January 2017.

The external assessment was undertaken by the Institute of Internal Auditors and it has
concluded that “the internal audit service conforms to the professional standards and
the work has been performed in accordance with the International Professional
Practices Framework”. Thus, confirming conformance to the required standards.

The external assessment report has been previously provided to the Chief Financial Officer
and is also on the agenda for the Financial Scrutiny and Audit Committee.

Performance Indicator outcomes

The Internal Audit Service is benchmarked against a number of performance measures as
agreed by the Committee.

Actual performance against these targets is outlined in the following table:

Indicator Frequency Target Actual Comments
1 Audit Committee | Annual Adequate Good Target
Satisfaction exceeded
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2 Chief Finance Officer | Annual Good Good Target
Satisfaction achieved

3 Annual draft reports | Quarterly 100% 100% Achieved, four
issued within 10 working reports issued
days of the end of the
quarter

4 Quarterly assurance | Quarterly 100% 100% All quarterly
reports to the Contract reports
Manager within 15 received with
working days of the end 15 working
of the quarter days of vyear

end.

5 An audit file supporting | Quarterly 100% 100% Achieved for all
each review and showing four audits
clear evidence of quality
control

6 Compliance with PSIAS Annual Generally Generally Target

Conforms Conforms Achieved

7 Respond to the Contract | Quarterly 100% 100% Target
Manager within 3 working Achieved
days where
unsatisfactory feedback
has been received

8 Average feedback scores | Quarterly Adequate Excellent Target
from key clients Exceeded -

feedback
received for al
audits

9 Percentage of | Quarterly 90% 100% Target
recommendations Exceeded
accepted by
management

10 | Percentage of | Quarterly 60% 100% Target
qualified/experienced Exceeded
staff working on the
contract each quarter

11 | Number of training hours | Quarterly 1 day 1 day Target
per member of staff Achieved

completed each quarter
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5.2.3

5.3

5.3.1

5.3.2

5.3.3

It is encouraging to note that all performance measures have been achieved, with four of
these exceeding targets. Client feedback has been provided in response to all the audits
completed and has been extremely positive recognising the professional service provided &
also the value that internal audit has brought to the Authority. The contractor has also
provided the Authority with a higher percentage of qualified / experienced staff to undertake
the audit reviews.

It is also extremely encouraging to note that all four audit reviews were finalised by 7 March
2017, thus ensuring that audits are completed within financial year.

Effectiveness of the Head of Internal Audit (HIA) arrangements as measured against
the CIPFA Role of the HIA

This Statement sets out the 5 principles that define the core activities and behaviours that
apply to the role of the Head of Internal Audit, and the organisational arrangements to
support them. The Principles are:

¢ Champion best practice in governance, objectively assessing the adequacy of
governance and management of risks;

e Give an objective and evidence based opinion on all aspects of governance, risk
management and internal control;

e Undertake regular and open engagement across the Authority, particularly with the
Management Team and the Audit Committee;

¢ Lead and direct an Internal Audit Service that is resourced to be fit for purpose; and

¢ Head of Internal Audit to be professionally qualified and suitably experienced.

Completion of the checklist confirms full compliance with the CIPFA guidance on the Role of
the Head of Internal Audit in relation to the 5 principles set out within. There are some minor
action that are required as followed::

e To review the Financial Regulations in light of the changes in the support from the
Treasurer and Financial Advisor — these are currently being reviewed by the Chief
Finance Officer.

¢ Regular meetings need to be scheduled between the Chief Finance Officer and the
Head of Internal Audit (HIA) to ensure that the HIA is kept up to date over the course
of the year — this has happened as and when required informally over the last year
and does need to be formally set up going forwards.

The detailed checklist has been forwarded to the Chief Financial Officer for independent
scrutiny and verification.
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APPENDIX1 — AUDIT WORK UNDERTAKEN DURING 2016/17

Audit Area | Assurance | No of Recs | Implemented | P1 OS | P2 0OS | P30S | Not yet due

Annual Opinion Audits

Corporate Governance | Reasonable | 3 | 1 | | | | 2

Fundamental Financial Systems

Key Controls and Assurance | Reasonable | 7 | 4 | | | | 3

Service area audits

External Funding — HLF Bid | Reasonable 5 4 1

and National Parks

Partnership

IT audits

Anti-Virus, Malware, Reasonable 4 4

Backups & Firewall

Administration

Total 19 13 0 1 0 5

Assurance level definitions Number

Substantial Assurance Based upon the issues identified there is a robust series of suitably designed 0
controls in place upon which the organisation relies to manage the risks to the
continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process, and
which at the time of our audit review were being consistently applied.

Reasonable Assurance Based upon the issues identified there is a series of internal controls in place, 4
however these could be strengthened to facilitate the organisations
management of risks to the continuous and effective achievement of the
objectives of the process. Improvements are required to enhance the controls to
mitigate these risks.

Limited Assurance Based upon the issues identified the controls in place are insufficient to ensure 0
that the organisation can rely upon them to manage the risks to the continuous
and effective achievement of the objectives of the process. Significant
improvements are required to improve the adequacy and effectiveness of the
controls to mitigate these risks.

No Assurance Based upon the issues identified there is a fundamental breakdown or absence 0

of core internal controls such that the organisation cannot rely upon them to
manage risk to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of
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the process. Immediate action is required to improve the controls required to
mitigate these risks.

Urgent — Priority 1 Fundamental control issue on which action to implement should be taken within 1 month.
Important Priority 2 Control issue on which action to implement should be taken within 3 months.
Needs Attention — Priority 3 Control issue on which action to implement should be taken within 6 months.
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APPENDIX 2 ASSURANCE CHART

Previous Contract

Current Contract

2013-14

2014-15

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

Annual Opinion Audits

Corporate Governance and Risk
Management

Substantial
Review relates
to 2012/13

Substantial
Review relates
to 2013/14

Substantial
Review relates
to 2014/15

Reasonable

Governance

Reasonable

Fundamental Financial Systems

Key Controls and Assurance
Work

Substantial

Substantial

Reasonable

Reasonable

Procurement

Reasonable

Services Area Reviews

Consultation Activities and
Partnerships Provisions

Reasonable

External Funding - HLF Bid and
National Parks Partnership

Reasonable

Asset Management

Port Marine Safety Code

Planning

Reasonable

IT Audits

Toll Management Application

Network Security

Limited

End User Controls

Reasonable

Virus Protection/Spyware, Data
Backup and Data Centre controls

Reasonable
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APPENDIX 3 — EXECUTIVE SUMMARIES

Assurance Review of External Funding — Broads Landscape Partnership and National Parks
Partnership

Executive Summary

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT ACTION POINTS
SUBSTANTIAL ASSURANCE Broads Landscape 0 2 1 0

Partnership

REASONABLE

REASONABLE ASSURANCE . .
ASSURANCE ] National Parks Partnership 0 1 1 0
LIMITED ASSURANCE

Total 0 3 2 0

SCOPE

The objective of the audit was to review the systems and controls in place within External Funding, as detailed in the action points above, to help confirm that these are
operating adequately, effectively and efficiently.
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RATIONALE

e The systems and processes of internal control are, overall, deemed ‘Reasonable’ in managing the risks associated with the Broads Landscape Partnership
and National Parks Partnership Audit. The assurance opinion has been derived as a result of three ‘important’ recommendations and two ‘needs attention’
recommendations being raised upon the conclusion of our work.

KEY FINDINGS

Positive Findings

We found that the Broads Authority has demonstrated the following points of good practice:

The National Parks Partnership has been set up as a limited liability partnership (LLP), which is a joint venture made up of 15 national parks,
including the Broads Authority, for the purpose of engaging with the private sector and gaining commercial sponsorship. This has already resulted in
joint working between Tesco and the Broads Authority about potential funding, therefore meeting the Government'’s drive for the Broads Authority to
find new sources of funding for their work.

An online project management tool called Basecamp is used by the Broads Authority to assist in the project management of the Broads Landscape
Partnership. This tool provides a central place to manage projects and includes message boards and comment threads; real-time chat/pings;
automatic check-ins; to-do lists; document / file storage and; a centralized schedule.

It is acknowledged there are areas where sound controls are in place and operating consistently:

Grant conditions for the Heritage Lottery Fund (HLF) Bid (Broads Landscape Partnership) are being met in a timely manner.
There is a clear governance framework in place for the Broads Landscape Partnership and the Broads Authority is a key member/part of this.
Clear deliverable/outcomes are in place for the Broads Landscape Partnership, with progress reports presented to the Board each time it meets.

The Broads Landscape Partnership is project managed using an on line project management tool, which includes a project plan with key dates and
budget information involving cash flow/expenditure against budget.

Issues to be addressed

The audit has highlighted the following areas whereby controls would benefit from being strengthened, and as a result of these findings three ‘important’
recommendations have been made.

Broads Landscape Partnership

To develop procedural guidance for the Broads Landscape Partnership, thereby mitigating the risks of inconsistent practices occurring, inefficient and
ineffective processes being applied and disrupted business continuity.

The risk register and risk management strategy to be reported to the Broads Landscape Partnership Board as a standing agenda item. This should
help reduce the risk that the Broads Landscape Partnership objectives are not achieved.
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National Parks Partnership

e The Broads Authority to request that the following items are raised at the National Parks Partnership Management Board: 1) Production of a risk
assessment/register; 2) Declarations of interest to be added as a standing agenda item and; 3) The agreement and documentation of standards of
conduct for Management Board members. This mitigates the risks that the National Parks Partnership aims are not achieved and there is non-
disclosure of interests.

The audit has also highlighted the following areas where two ‘needs attention’ recommendations have been made.
Broads Landscape Partnership

e To obtain signed copies of the Broads Landscape Partnership Project Board agreement from Easton & Otley College, Farm Conservation and River
Waveney Trust, to help mitigate the risk that some partners do not deliver the scheme as intended.

National Parks Partnership

e To consider including the National Parks Partnership and Water Sensitive Farming Project with Tesco as separate risks within the next formal review
of the Strategic Risk Register by the Management Forum. This would help highlight and subsequently reduce the key risks involved in these projects
where, for example, there is significant potential for reputational risk.
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Assurance Review of Anti-Virus, Malware, Backups & Firewall Administration

Executive Summary

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT ACTION POINTS

Control Area Important  |[Needs Attention|] ~Operational

Anti-Virus/Malware Protection

SUBSTANTIAL ASSURAMCE

e Backups 0 0 0 0
REASOMNABLE = 1] REASONABLE ASSURANCE

SRS AN Firewall Administration 0 1 2 0

LINITED ASSURANCE

MO ASSURANCE

SCOPE

The objective of the audit was to review the systems and controls in place for the administration of Anti-Virus, Malware, Backups and Firewalls, as detailed in the action points
above, to help confirm that these are operating adequately, effectively and efficiently.
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RATIONALE

e The systems and processes of internal control are, overall, deemed ‘Reasonable’ in managing the risks associated with the administration of Anti-Virus,
Malware, Backups and Firewall processes. The assurance opinion has been derived as a result of one ‘important’ recommendation and three ‘needs
attention’ recommendations being raised upon the conclusion of our work.

e The audit has also raised two ‘Operational Effectiveness Matters’, which sets out matters identified during the assignment where there may be
opportunities for service enhancements to be made to increase both the operational efficiency and enhance the delivery of value for money services.

KEY FINDINGS

Positive Findings

It is acknowledged there are areas where sound controls are in place and operating consistently:
e Sample testing indicates that Anti-Virus and Malware protection policies are being deployed to user machines and servers.
¢ Notification alerts for possible virus and malware infections are present and operating effectively.

o Firewall backups are taken whenever a change to the configuration changes regular basis. The backups are stored on the network and are backed
up again by the corporate backup process.

e Onsite (Yare House) and Offsite (Dockyard) tape storage facilities are adequate.

Issues to be addressed

The audit has highlighted the following areas where one ‘important’ recommendation has been made.
Firewall Administration

e The Authority to either ensure that there is support for the current version of the firewall or to update the firmware if the current version is not
supported or is nearing End of Life, thus ensuring continued vendor support.

The audit has also highlighted the following areas where three ‘needs attention’ recommendations have been made.
Anti-Virus/Malware Protection

e The Authority’s IT acceptable Use Policy, known as Human Resources note number 18needs to be updated to ensure that it contains adequate staff
guidance on dealing with suspected virus infection and ensuring that hardware and software is only installed by IT staff. Thus ensuring that staff fully
understand their responsibility in this area.

Firewall Administration

e The Authority to procure an appropriate log monitoring and reporting tool for reviewing internet activity to help ensure that internet bandwidth meets
the Authority business needs and that network usage can be managed appropriately.

e The Authority to look into the feasibility of subscribing to internet block lists to help ensure that the internet is used appropriately by all staff.
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Operational Effectiveness Matters

The operational effectiveness matters, for management to consider relate to the consistent application of Server Anti-Virus/Malware protection policies and
liaising with the Anti-Virus application vendor to understand the nature of certain dashboard reporting not operating as expected.
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Assurance Review of Corporate Governance

Executive Summary

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT ACTION POINTS

Control Area Important  |[Needs Attention|] ~Operational

Executive and non-executive
decision making in
accordance with the

AT constitution/governance
REASOMABLE i REASONABLE ASSURANCE 9 t
ASSURANCE arrangements

o ROVETTARCE, Figy
- A,

SUBSTANTIAL ASSURAMCE

LIMITED ASSURANCE Systems and processes in 0 0 2 0

place for the preparation of
MO ASSURANCE

reports requiring executive
and non-executive decisions

Total 0 1 2 0

SCOPE

The objective of the audit was to review the systems and controls in place within Corporate Governance, as detailed in the action points above, to help confirm that these are
operating adequately, effectively and efficiently.
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RATIONALE

e The systems and processes of internal control are, overall, deemed ‘Reasonable’ in managing the risks associated with the Corporate Governance. The
assurance opinion has been derived as a result of one ‘important’ recommendation and two ‘needs attention’ recommendations being raised upon the
conclusion of our work.

KEY FINDINGS

Positive Findings

It is acknowledged there are areas where sound controls are in place and operating consistently:

Executive and non-executive decisions making in accordance with the Constitution/governance arrangements

Powers reserved to the Broads Authority and those delegated to other authorities are detailed in the Broads Authority Terms of Reference of
Committees document. The list of matters delegated to the Chief Executive and other officers are detailed in the Scheme of delegated powers.

Key documents are in place that govern members and officers conduct, which are; the Code of Conduct for Members and Complaints Procedure
(September 2016) and the Protocol on Member and Officer Relations in the Broads Authority. The Code of Conduct refers to decision making as part
of members core values - 'We are open, honest and inclusive in our communication and in making decisions' and also states that decision making
should be made objectively and with integrity and propriety.

Risks in respect of decision making processes have been included in the strategic risk register, and examples of these include “decisions which are
not made in accordance with planning policy” and “shortcomings in decision making due to poor financial management’.

Systems and processes in place for the preparation of reports requiring executive and non-executive decisions

The Broads Authority Member Development Strategy supports the development of staff, Members and co-opted Members to achieve continuous
improvement of its services and was updated in January 2017. This includes details of member induction training, which incorporates governance
and representation, including; the Broads Authority’'s Code of Conduct; the Planning Committee’s Code of Conduct for Members and Officers (if
applicable); Standing Orders; the Protocol on Member and Officer Relations in the Broads Authority; and the Broads Authority Communication
Strategy.

There are comprehensive systems and processes in place for the preparation of reports requiring decisions that include committee forward plan;
committee agenda items discussion at management team (Chief Executive, Directors, Head of Finance and Monitoring Officer), circulation of
committee deadlines, agendas and reports to members within a minimum of 6 working days and an Annual Governance Almanac which includes key
governance milestones.
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Issues to be addressed

The audit has highlighted the following areas where one ‘important’ recommendation has been made.
Systems and processes in place for the preparation of reports requiring executive and non-executive decisions

o A clear record of the decisions made by the Broads Authority is made available to the public in accordance with the Openness of Local Government
Bodies Regulations 2014. This should include compiling a register of material decisions made since 2014; producing a set of guidance on what
should be published and; production of a template document to record decisions. This assists in mitigating the risks that the Broads Authority commits
an offence under this regulation and that there is incomplete transparency to the public.

The audit has also highlighted the following areas where two ‘needs attention’ recommendations have been made.
Executive and non-executive decisions making in accordance with the constitution/governance arrangements

e The (current) review of standing orders to include specific reference to matters being decided by a majority vote, stipulating who has a casting vote
and to review and update the Broads Authority Terms of Reference of Committees, specifically the Financial Scrutiny and Audit Committee to reflect
that this is a consultative committee. This should help to mitigate the risks that the voting process is unclear and matters decided upon are
undertaken improperly and that the practices applied are inconsistent with agreed governance leading to ambiguity over which practices should
actually be applied.

Systems and processes in place for the preparation of reports requiring executive and non-executive decisions

e To include items 6/9b (13/05/2016) — ‘Berney arms, Halvergate marshes’ and; 3/15 (18/11/2016) - 'that delegated authority be given to the Section
17 Officer to communicate the willingness of the Authority to join the scheme to PSAA’ within the Summary of Progress/Actions Taken following
Decisions of Previous Meetings. This helps to mitigate the risk that there is inadequate transparency on the progress of decisions made resulting in
Members receiving an incomplete picture.

Previous audit recommendations

A previous audit of Corporate Governance and Risk Management was undertaken in May 2015, resulting in a ‘Good’ assurance opinion. Three low priority
recommendations were raised which have since been implemented. An audit of Members Governance was also undertaken in April 2016, resulting in an
‘Adequate’ assurance opinion with two ‘important’ and three ‘needs attention’ recommendations being raised and subsequently implemented.
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Assurance Review of Key Controls

Executive Summary

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT ACTION POINTS

Control Area Important  |[Needs Attention|] ~Operational
0 0 1 0

General Ledger

Accounts Receivable 0 2* 1 0

REASOMABLE
SSSUHANGE Payroll 0 2 0 0
Toll Income 0 0 1 0
Total 0 4 3 0

No weaknesses were found with regard to Treasury Management/Investments, Asset
Management, budgetary Control, Control Accounts and Cash and bank.

*This contains one recommendation which also applies to Accounts Payable.

SCOPE

The objective of the audit was to review the systems and controls in place within Key Controls, as detailed in the action points above, to help confirm that these are operating
adequately, effectively and efficiently.
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RATIONALE

e The systems and processes of internal control are, overall, deemed ‘Reasonable’ in managing the risks associated with the Key Controls. The
assurance opinion has been derived as a result of four ‘important’ recommendation and three ‘needs attention’ recommendations being raised upon
the conclusion of our work.

KEY FINDINGS

Positive Findings

It is acknowledged there are areas where sound controls are in place and operating consistently:
Treasury Management
e Investments tested were documented and authorised and there is evidence of segregation between approval and transfer of funds.
e Loans and investments are reconciled to the general ledger and bank statements.
General Ledger
e The general ledger suspense account is reviewed on a monthly basis and any long outstanding items are cleared.
Asset Management
¢ All capital additions and disposals reviewed were authorised in accordance with procedures.
e The asset register is reconciled to the ledger once a year and access to the register is restricted to appropriate staff.
Budgetary Control

e After year-end (from July onwards), budget monitor reports are shared with budget holders on a monthly basis which highlight any variances above
£10,000. These are accompanied by the an email from the Financial Accountant requesting an explanation of variances and changes to forecast
outturn (year-end positions); commentary to explain significant variances (+/- £10,000) within their budgets and; requests for budget virements
(budget transfers).

e Budgetary information, both capital and revenue is reconciled to the general ledger on a monthly basis
Accounts Payable

e Invoices were approved and authorised in accordance with the authorised signatories list.

e BACs runs had been signed and dated, prior to the payment run, by an appropriate officer.
Toll Income

e Payments had sequentially numbered plagques raised and recorded as issued on the system.
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e Payment batches balanced to the payments received, and batch totals balanced to the Tolls Management System (TMS) for hire tolls, private tolls,
overpayments and other payments.

Control Accounts

e The purchase control account, sales control account and salary control account are reconciled to the general ledger system on a monthly basis.
Cash and Bank

e Bank reconciliations were completed, reconciling items resolved and the reconciliations sighed and dated by the preparer and reviewer.

Issues to be addressed

The audit has highlighted the following areas where four ‘important’ recommendations have been made.
Account Receivable

e Broads Authority Financial Regulations be amended to include the formalisation of processes regarding debtor payments being received in advance
of goods/services delivered and; expansion of exceptions to paper purchase orders or requisitions being raised, to incorporate services/goods
supplied which are covered by a formal contract. This assists in mitigating the risk that debt is irrecoverable and the Financial Regulations not
reflecting the current practices.

e Procedures are documented for the sales ledger processes including the system of debt recovery. This should help mitigate the risks of inconsistent
practices occurring, inefficient and ineffective processes being applied and disrupted business continuity.

Payroll

e The payroll errors risk to be raised at Management Team for inclusion in the strategic risk register, which will help to mitigate possible future material
errors that could result in the payroll being paid incorrectly

e To document procedures for the payroll review/checking and submission process undertaken by the HR team, including the role the Finance Team
perform. This should assist in reducing the risks of inconsistent practices occurring, inefficient and ineffective processes being applied and disrupted
business continuity.

The audit has also highlighted the following areas where three ‘needs attention’ recommendations have been made.
General Ledger

e Adequate supporting documentation to be retained on file or sufficient narrative contained therein for all journals to help reduce the risk that journals
have been processed incorrectly.

Accounts Receivable

e To ensure explanatory notes for more complex debtor cases are put onto Dimensions to explain the latest situation regarding each debt, assisting to
reduce the risk that debt is not actioned in a timely manner or action is taken incorrectly.

Page 25’3201‘ 27



Toll Income

e To update the Toll procedure manual to reflect all changes to the system, including the changes in toll charges from 1% April 2017 and to include the

toll payment enforcement process. This should help to mitigate the risks of inconsistent practices occurring, inefficient and ineffective processes being
applied and disrupted business continuity.

Other points to note

It was identified that 1/25 sampled invoice requisition forms were not date stamped to verify the date finance received them. This has not been included as a
recommendation due to the Head of Finance taking action to address this during the audit.

Previous audit recommendations

The previous audit of Key Controls and Assurance was undertaken in April 2016, resulting in a ‘Reasonable’ assurance opinion. Three low priority
recommendations were raised regarding Budgetary Control and Accounts Payable, which have since been implemented.
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APPENDIX 4 — AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS

Completed bt 01/04/2016 and Previously reported to
31/03/2017 Committee as outstanding Outstandin Total Not yet due for implementation

Audit Ref| Audit Area Assurance Level | Priority 1|Priority 2| Priority 3| Priority 1|Priority 2| Priority 3[Priority 1 |Priority 2|Priority 3|Outstanding |Priority 1|Priority 2| Priority 3
2015/16 Internal Audit Reviews
BA1603 |Members Governance Reasonable 2 8 0

Key Controls &
BA1604 |Assurance Reasonable 2 0
2016/17 Internal Audit Reviews 0
BA1701 |External Funding Reasonable 2 2 1 1

Anti -Virus, Malware,
BA1702 |[BackUps & Firewall Reasonable 1 3 0

Corporate Governance
BA1703 |& Risk Management Reasonable 1 0 1 1

Key Controls &
BA1704 |Assurance Reasonable 2 2 0 2 1
TOTALS 0 7 13 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 3 2
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APPENDIX 5 — LIMITATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES
Limitations inherent to the Internal Auditor’s work

The Internal Audit Annual Report has been prepared and TIAA Ltd (the Internal Audit Services
contractor) were engaged to undertake the agreed programme of work as approved by
management and the Financial Scrutiny and Audit Committee, subject to the limitations outlined
below.

Opinions

The opinions expressed are based solely on the work undertaken in delivering the approved
2016/17 Annual Internal Audit Plan. The work addressed the risks and control objectives agreed for
each individual planned assignment as set out in the corresponding audit briefs and reports.

Internal Control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve corporate/service policies, aims and objectives: it can
therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. Internal control
systems essentially rely on an ongoing process of identifying and prioritising the risks to the
achievement of the organisation’s policies, aims and objectives, evaluating the likelihood of those
risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently,
effectively and economically. That said, internal control systems, no matter how well they have
been constructed and operated, are affected by inherent limitations. These include the possibility
of poor judgement in decision-making, human error, control processes being deliberately
circumvented by employees and others, management overriding controls and the occurrence of
unforeseeable circumstances.

Future Periods

Internal Audit's assessment of controls relating to the Broads Authority is for the year ended 31
March 2017. Historic evaluation of effectiveness may not be relevant to future periods due to the
risk that:
e The design of controls may become inadequate because of changes in the operating
environment, law, regulation or other matters; or,
e The degree of compliance with policies and procedures may deteriorate.

Responsibilities of Management and Internal Auditors

It is management’s responsibility to develop and maintain sound systems of risk management,
internal control and governance and for the prevention and detection of irregularities and fraud.
Internal Audit work should not be seen as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the
design and operation of these systems.

The Internal Audit Consortium Manager, as the Head of Internal Audit, has sought to plan Internal
Audit work, so that there is a reasonable expectation of detecting significant control weaknesses
and, if detected, additional work will then be carried out which is directed towards identification of
consequent fraud or other irregularities. However, internal audit procedures alone, even when
carried out with due professional care, do not guarantee that fraud will be detected and TIAA Ltd
examinations as the Authority’s internal auditors should not be relied upon to disclose all fraud,
defalcations or other irregularities which may exist.
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Broads Authority

Financial Scrutiny and Audit
Committee

25 July 2017

Agenda Item No 8

Statement of Accounts 2016/17
Report by Chief Financial Officer

Summary: This report summarises the Broads Authority’s Statement of
Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2017.

Recommendation: That the Statement of Accounts for 2016/17 be recommended to
the Broads Authority for approval, subject to any amendments
suggested by the Committee.

1 Introduction

1.1  Members will recall that the Financial Performance and Direction report to the
Authority on 19 May 2017 provided the draft year end figures for 2016/17
which detailed a deficit of £2,341. These figures were then used to produce
the Statement of Accounts.

1.2 There have been no subsequent changes to these figures and the draft
Statement of Accounts was signed on 31 May 2017. Ernst and Young
(external audit) then undertook their onsite work between 5 and 16 June 2017.
Their Annual Audit Results Report is the next item on this agenda. Appended
to this report is the Statement of Accounts for 2016/17 (excluding the Annual
Governance Statement, under agenda item 6).

2 Changes to the 2016/17 Accounts

2.1  This year sees the introduction of the Expenditure and Funding Analysis
under IAS 1, which can be found on page 13 of the Statement of Accounts.
The introduction of this statement is to help users understand how the
Authority is funded and how resources are allocated across the Directorates.
In addition the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement now
reflects the internal reporting structure against Directorates; this is a change
to previous years where this was reported against CIPFA SeRCOP (Service
Reporting Code of Practice). As a result this has meant the 2015/16
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement has been restated.

2.2  The departure from the SeRCOP will make future comparisions against other
National Parks slightly more labour intensive, however the Authority has
retained the ability to reproduce the Accounts in this format if required.

2.3  The introduction of the Expenditure and Funding analysis has meant that
amounts reported for resource allocation decisions is no longer included
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(previously note 22 in the 2015/16 Accounts). However this note has been
reproduced below to help members understand the additional adjustments
made at year end.

Income and Planning & Chief Corporate
Expenditure 2016/17 | Operations | Resources | Executive Amounts Total
£ £ £ £ £
Fees charges and other
service income (228,441) (779,160) (8,706) (3,111,791) (4,128,097)
Contribution from 0 0 0 (417,313) (417,313)
reserves
Government Grants 0 0 0 (3,243,802) (3,243,802)
Total Income (228,441) (779,160) (8,706) (6,772,906) (7,789,212)
Employee expenses 1,920,661 1,771,709 272,127 150,203 4,114,700
Other service expenses 1,789,947 1,697,790 189,116 0 3,676,854
Total expenditure 3,710,608 3,469,499 461,243 150,203 7,791,553
Net expenditure 3,482,167 | 2,690,339 | 452,537 | (6,622,703) | 2,341
1. Net expenditure above 2,341
2. Amounts in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement not 781,685
reported to management in the analysis
3. Amounts included in analysis not in Comprehensive Income and 2,775,092
Expenditure Statement
Cost of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement | 3,559,119

2.4

ltems that are included in the amounts in the second line under

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement which are not reported to
management include year end adjustments for the Pension scheme. The
Accounts are adjusted to reflect the difference between the actual costs as
assessed by the actuary and the contributions paid over during the year.
Further adjustments are also made for untaken staff leave, depreciation and

movements on revaluations.

2.5

The main adjustments in the third line which is in the analysis above but not

the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the removal of the
DEFRA grant, interest and investment income, interest payable and
expenditure in relation to investment properties. These items are added back
in the lines under the cost of services. Further adjustments relate to the
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accounting treatment of capital expenditure, reserve expenditure and finance

leases.
2.6

The table below analyses these adjustments in more detail and agrees back

to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on page 14 in the

Statement of Accounts.

Fees, charges and

other service income | (4,113,326) 0 0| (4,113,326) 0| (4,113,326)
Interest and

Investment income (14,771) 0 14,771 0 (14,771) (14,771)
Contributions from

reserves (417,313) 0 (40,319) (457,632) 0 (457,632)
Government Grants (3,243,802) 0| 3,243,802 0| (3,243,802) | (3,243,802)
Total Income (7,789,212) 0| 3,218,254 | (4,570,958) | (3,258,573) | (7,829,531)
Employee expenses 4,114,700 | 159,193 0 4,273,893 187,000 4,460,893
Other service

expenses 3,676,854 0| (443,161) 3,233,692 0 3,233,692
Depreciation,

amortisation &

impairment 0| 622,492 0 622,492 0 622,492
Interest payments 0 0 0 0 36,039 36,039
Expenditure in

relation to

investment

properties 0 0 0 0 (13,435) (13,435)
Loss on disposal of

Fixed Assets 0 0 0 0 1,041 1,041
Total Operating

Expenditure 7,791,553 | 781,685 | (443,161) 8,130,077 210,645 8,340,722
Deficit on

Provision of

Services 2,341 | 781,685 | 2,775,092 3,559,119 | (3,047,928) 511,191
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3.1

3.2

3.3

4.1

5.1

6.1

Balance Sheet

This year sees the Balance Sheet move to a net Liability position of £537,000.
This is not the first time this has happened as the Broads Authority Balance
Sheet had a net liability of £293,000 in 2015. The cause of this movement is
due to the movement in the Pension Fund liability which has increased from
£5.3m to £7.8m. These fluctuations are due to maintaining contributions at a
consistant rate to minimise the impact on the Authority’s cash flows. The
Authority makes additional contributions to the fund to reduce the deficit over
the next 20 years. Funding levels are monitored on an annual basis whilst the
contributions and the annual deficit payments are recalculated as part of
triennial valuation. The next valuation will take place on 31 March 2019.
Additional information about the Pension Fund Assets and Liabilities can be
found within the Statement of Accounts under Note 33.

The bottom section of the Balance Sheet on page 17 splits the reserves
between useable and non useable reserves. The useable reserves can be
used to fund future operating expenditure whilst the unusable reserves are
kept to manage accounting processes such as unrealised gains or
acquisitions of Fixed Assets and the movements on the Pension Reserve.

The closing position on the National Park (General), Navigation and
Earmarked reserves remain at the same levels as reported on 19 May 2017.
The individual balances that make up the Earmarked reserve can be found
within the Statement of Accounts under note 10, page 37. The year end
balances of the reserves are:

° National Park £1,041,796

o Navigation £325,955

. Earmarked £1,392,066 of which £589,915 relates to
Navigation

Other Significant Issues

There are no other significant issues arising from the preparation of the
accounts which it is considered need to be drawn to the attention of the
Committee.

Annual Governance Statement

The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 contain a requirement
that an Annual Governance Statement, prepared in accordance with proper
practices in relation to internal control, must be approved by the relevant body
and must accompany the Statement of Accounts. The draft Annual
Governance Statement will be considered under agenda item number 6.

Audit of the Statement of Accounts

The Authority’s external auditors, Ernst & Young, have completed the audit
and their Audit results can be found under agenda item number 10. The audit
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timetable was set out in the Audit Plan presented at the last meeting of this
Committee, 7 February 2017.

6.2  Upon completion of the outstanding items detailed in their report the audit
report will be signed and incorporated into the Statement of Accounts.

7 Financial Implications

7.1  The Statement of Accounts for 2016/17 shows revenue reserves of
£1,367,751 (general reserves £1,041,796, navigation reserves £325,955) that
are considered to be adequate. The navigation reserve at the end of 2016/17
stands at 10.5% of net expenditure. This is marginally higher than the
Financial Strategy forecast for the end of 2016/17. With these taken alongside
the significant earmarked reserve balances, the Authority’s reserves are
therefore considered to be sound. The outturn figures for 2016/17, and their
implication for the overall level of reserves, will be taken into account in future
budgeting proposals, and when making decisions about income and
expenditure in 2017/18.

Background Papers: Nil

Author: Emma Krelle

Date of Report: 10 July 2017

Broads Plan Objectives: None

Appendices: APPENDIX 1: Statement of Accounts 2016/17 (excluding the

Audit Report and Annual Governance Statement)
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Narrative Report

Narrative Report
Introduction

The purpose of the foreword is to offer interested parties an easily understandable guide to
the most significant matters reported in the accounts. It contains a commentary on the major
influences affecting the Authority’s income and expenditure and cash flow, and information
on the financial needs and resources of the Authority.

The Background to the Accounts 2016/17
The Statement of Accounts represents the financial transactions of The Broads Authority.

The Broads Authority was set up under the Norfolk and Suffolk Broads Act 1988.

Its duties, as subsequently amended by the Natural Environment and Rural Communities
Act 2006, are to manage the Broads for the purpose of:

e conserving and enhancing the natural beauty, wildlife and cultural heritage of the
Broads;

e promoting opportunities for the understanding and enjoyment of the special qualities
of the Broads by the public; and

e protecting the interests of navigation.

This brought the first two purposes into line with those of the English National Park
Authorities, as recommended in the Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs
(Defra) report ‘Review of English Park Authorities’ published in July 2002.

In discharging its function, the Authority should have regard to:

e the national importance of the Broads as an area of natural beauty and one which
affords opportunities for open air recreation;

e the desirability of protecting the natural resources of the Broads from damage; and

e the needs of agriculture and forestry and the economic and social interests of those
who live and work in the Broads.

In respect of its navigation area the Authority is required to:

e maintain the navigation area for the purposes of navigation to such a standard as
appears to it to be reasonably required; and
e take such steps to improve and develop it as it thinks fit.

The Broads Authority Act 2009 amended the 1988 Act and is primarily concerned with
augmenting the Authority’s powers to ensure safety on the Broads, including the application
of the Boat Safety Scheme and compulsory third party insurance. It also made provision for
the transfer of responsibility for the navigation in Breydon Water to the Authority which was
implemented in 2012. The 2009 Act removed the need for the Authority to maintain a
separate navigation account and contained provisions which require the Authority to ensure
that, taking one year with another, expenditure on navigation matters is equal to navigation
income.
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The Accounting Statements

The Broads Authority’s accounts for the year 2016/17 are set out on pages 8 to 73. They
consist of:

Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts
Statement of Corporate Governance

Expenditure and Funding Analysis — This statement shows how annual expenditure is
used and funded from resources (government grants and rents) in comparison with those
resources consumed or earned in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices.
It also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes between the
Authority’s directorates. Income and expenditure accounted for under generally accepted
accounting practices is presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. The Expenditure and Funding Analysis is a note to the Financial Statements,
however its position next to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is to
provide a link from the figures reported in the Review of the Year within the Narrative
Report.

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement — This statement shows the
accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practices.

Movement in Reserves Statement — This statement shows the movement in the year on
the different reserves held by the Authority, analysed into ‘usable’ reserves and ‘other’
reserves. The ‘surplus / deficit on the provision of services’ line shows the true economic
cost of providing the Authority’s services, more details of which are shown in the
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement. The ‘net increase / decrease before
transfers to earmarked reserves’ line shows the statutory General Fund balance before any
discretionary transfers to or from earmarked reserves undertaken by the Authority.

Balance Sheet — The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the
assets and liabilities recognised by the Authority. Reserves are reported in two categories.
The first category of reserves are ‘usable’ reserves, i.e. those reserves that the Authority
may use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and
any statutory limitations on their use (for example the Capital Receipts Reserve may only be
used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The second category of reserves is those
that the Authority is not able to use to provide services. This category of reserves includes
reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve),
where amounts would only become available to provide services if the assets are sold, and
reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement of Reserves Statement line
‘adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations’.

Cash Flow Statement — The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash
equivalents of the Authority during the reporting period. The statement shows how the
Authority generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as
operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from
operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the Authority
are funded by way of tolls and grant income or from the recipients of services provided by
the Authority. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been
made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Authority’s future service
delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future
cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Authority.
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These accounts are supported by the Statement of Accounting Policies in Note 1, which
follows the Accounting Statements, and various notes to the accounts.

The information included in these accounts incorporates spending relating to the Broads
Navigation. The Navigation income and expenditure is separately accounted for in the
records to ensure the proper control of income from toll payers and to ensure it is spent
primarily to benefit the users of the navigation. Navigation income and expenditure is shown
in full at note 37 on page 73.

Changes to the 2016/17 Accounts

This year sees the introduction of the Expenditure and Funding Analysis under IAS 1. The
introduction of this statement is to help users understand how the Authority is funded and
how resources are allocated across the Directorates. In addition the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement now reflects the internal reporting structure against Directorates;
this is a change to previous years where this was reported against CIPFA SeRCOP (Service
Reporting Code of Practice). As a result this has meant the 2015/16 Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement has been restated.

Current Borrowing Facilities and Capital Borrowing

On 20 November 2007, the Authority took out a £290,000 loan from the Public Works Loan
Board. The repayment period of the loan is 20 years at a fixed interest rate of 4.82%,
repayable by equal instalments of principal. The Public Works Loan Board has advised that
the fair value of the debt as at 31 March 2017 is £189,087.

The purpose of this loan was to finance the purchase of the Dockyard Operation from May
Gurney to enable the Authority to continue to dredge the Broads in an economical and
efficient manner.

Review of the Year

General Income and Expenditure

The Authority received National Park Grant of £3,244k from Defra (£3,189k in 2015/16). In
addition to this, the income received from external grant support, sales, fees, charges and
interest totalled £869k (E712k in 2015/16). Total income for 2016/17 was £4,113k (£3,901k
in 2015/16).

The Authority set a budget for 2016/17 with a forecast deficit of £27k (£84k deficit for
2015/16). The Authority monitors its budget throughout the year against a forecast outturn
which is updated on a monthly basis. The final forecast outturn for the year indicated an
anticipated surplus of £50k. The actual outturn saw a deficit of £1k (an adverse variance of
£51k). The Authority has a policy for carry forward requests in respect of underspends.
These have been subsequently approved by the Authority for £22k (E26k for 2015/16) and
will be added to the 2017/18 budget.

Navigation Income and Expenditure

Income from tolls was £3,075k (£2,986k in 2015/16), other income received for the year
from external grant support, yacht stations charges, sales of tide tables, works licences and
other miscellaneous services was £176k, (£159k in 2015/16) and interest was £7k (E11K in
2015/16). Total income for 2016/17 was £3,258k (£3,156k in 2015/16).

The Authority set a budget with a forecast surplus of £16k for 2016/17 (surplus of £56k for
2015/16). The Authority monitors its budget throughout the year against a forecast outturn
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which is updated on a monthly basis. The final forecast outturn for 2016/17, which took
account of approved budget changes, indicated an anticipated deficit of £26k. The actual
outturn saw a deficit of £1k (a favourable variance of £25k). The Authority has a policy for
carry forward requests in respect of underspends. These have been subsequently approved
by the Authority for £9k (£181 for 2015/16) and will be added to the 2017/18 budget

Financial Outlook

The Authority received notification in January 2016 that its National Park Grant would be
protected in real terms and received an increase of 1.72% per annum over the period
2016/17 to 2019/20. This is the first time since 2009/10 that the Authority has seen an
increase to its National Park Grant. The settlement has meant that the Authority can now
plan for this period with a higher degree of certainty.

Income from navigation tolls has continued to hold up reasonably well despite continued
pressures on Hire Craft numbers. Despite the decline in Hire Craft, the Private Craft
increase means that income is broadly in line with the projections made in the Authority's
current Financial Strategy for the period up to 2020/21, which was adopted by the Broads
Authority in January 2018.

The current Financial Strategy was drawn up having regard to the Authority’s grant
settlement and the priorities in the Broads Plan. It sets out a prudent strategy for managing
the limited resources available in order to build on the work underway across the
organisation and to continue to deliver the Authority’s key priorities over the next three
years. The focus in developing the Financial Strategy has been to deliver the maximum
possible efficiencies and savings in order to minimise the impact on front-line activity. The
Authority recognises that without its employees continued commitment and hard work this
would not be possible. The Authority continues to focus on identifying opportunities to raise
income, make efficiencies and find further savings.

2016/17 saw the continued focus on raising additional income through external funding. This
was reflected in 3 of the 6 strategic priorities for the year (further details can be found at
http://www.broads-authority.gov.uk/ _data/assets/pdf file/0007/912832/Strateqgic-Priorities-
2016-17-Update.pdf).

Development phase work on Water Mills and Marshes — our Heritage Lottery funded
Landscape Partnership Scheme is almost completed with submission of our second round
application in May 2017. A successful second round application will unlock an additional
£2.44 million of grant funding from the Heritage Lottery Fund, which along with cash and in-
kind contributions from partners creates a scheme worth £4.01 million over the 5 year
delivery phase. The HLF decision is expected in November and if successful, we will start
delivery of Water, Mills and Marshes in January 2018.

An additional bid was submitted in January 2017 to the EU for the project named CANAPE
(Creating a New Approach to Peatland Ecosystems). This is a joint project with Hunze en
Aa’s Regionaal Water Authority in the Netherlands, Regional Landschap De Voorkempen,
an organisation maintaining and enhancing the natural landscape in the Netherlands,
Landkreis Diepholz, Northern Institute of Thinking and the Danish Nature Agency with the
Authority acting as the Lead Partner.

The Authority’s focus within the project will be the continuation of delivering the Hickling
vision with the opportunity to explore the potential reuse of fen materials such as
composting or biofuels. The total Broads Authority bid is for €1,165,000 of this €582,000 is
the Authority’s match contribution made up of staff time and existing budgets. The total
partnership bid totals €5,858,471.
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If the bid is successful it will bring additional income to the Authority of €582,000 over the 5
year project. Following the UK’s decision to exit the EU it is likely to be the Authority’s last
bid from this funding stream. However if the Authority is successful CANAPE will be
guaranteed over the life of the project regardless of the UK’s progress in leaving the EU.
The decision is expected in June 2017.

National Parks Partnership LLP continues to promote corporate partnerships for the UK
National Parks with the aim to make a significant, sustainable and discernible contribution to
the improved quality of UK National Parks and the benefits they offer for generations to
come. For the Authority this has meant securing additional funding from Tesco to work in
partnership on Water Sensitive Farming in the Broadland Catchment. Throughout the year
NPP has also been working to secure the first major corporate sponsorship for all of the UK
Parks to provide clothing for all front line staff over 5 years. This is the first major
sponsorship deal and is with Columbia with the launch held on 23 May 2017.

In setting its Strategic Priorities and Financial Strategy the Authority is mindful of the risks its
faces. These are monitored on a regular basis with actions being taken to mitigate any
possible impacts. Reports to the Authority highlight risks on potential new areas of activity.
The Financial Scrutiny and Audit Committee receive detailed reports on the current risks
with details of the individual risks, risk owner and actions.

In developing the Financial Strategy, a number of assumptions have been made in respect
of National Park Grant allocations, future boat numbers and the level of staff pay inflation.
The Strategy follows the general principle that the Authority should seek to maintain the
general reserve at a minimum of £100,000 plus 10% of net expenditure, and the navigation
reserves at a minimum of 10% of net expenditure. It also expects that General and
Navigation income and expenditure should be broadly in balance across the life of the
Financial Strategy.

Navigation funding is currently projecting a small deficit of £8k in 2017/18 (after taking into
account carry forward requests), with reserves at 9.9% of net expenditure at the end of the
year. For General funding there is a projected deficit of £89k (after taking into account carry
forwards requests) in 2017/18, with reserves at 28% of net expenditure.

The Strategy also covers capital expenditure with the majority being funded from Earmarked
Reserves and the rest from National Park Grant and Navigation income.

There are a significant number of variables — and some unknown quantities, such as future
inflation — which could impact on these figures. The Financial Strategy will therefore be
reviewed and updated by the Authority, having regard to any changes in circumstances and
the annual outturn figures, at its meeting in January 2018. The annual toll increase for
2017/18 was set at an overall 2.7%. A review of the new charging structure as implemented
by the Tolls Working Group recommendations will need to be taken into account when
setting the future strategy and will continue to be subject to consultation with the Navigation
Committee and other stakeholders.
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Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts

The Authority’s Responsibilities

The Authority is required to:-

(@) Make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure
that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In

this Authority, that officer is the Chief Financial Officer.

(b) Manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and
safeguard its assets.

(© Approve the statement of accounts.
The Chief Financial Officer's Responsibilities
The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Authority’s Statement of
Accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17 (the Code).
In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Chief Financial Officer has:-
o selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;
¢ made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent; and
e complied with the Local Authority Code.
The Chief Financial Officer has also:

e kept proper accounting records which were up-to-date; and

e taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.

Chief Financial Officer’s Certificate
| certify that the Statement of Accounts gives a true and fair view of the financial position of

the Broads Authority at 31 March 2017 and its income and expenditure for the year ended
31 March 2017.

Emma Krelle (Chief Financial Officer)
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Certificate of Committee Resolution

I confirm that these accounts were approved by The Broads Authority at its meeting held 28
July 2017.

Signed on behalf of The Broads Authority:

Prof J A Burgess
(Chair of meeting approving the accounts)

28 July 2017
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Independent Auditor’'s Report to the Members of the Broads Authority
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Expenditure and Funding Analysis

This statement shows how funding available to the Authority for the year has been used in providing services in accordance with generally accepted

accounting practices.

945 53 998 | Operations 982 65 1,047
1,694 111 1,805 | Planning and Resources 1,814 26 1,840
329 12 341 | Chief Executive 284 6 290
67 0 67 | Corporate Amounts 95 0 95
229 (61) 168 | Broads Navigation Account 22 265 287
3,264 115 3,379 | Net Cost of services 3,197 362 3,559
(3,161) 241 (2,920) | Other Income and Expenditure (3,235) 187 (3,048)
103 356 459 | Surplus or (Deficit) (38) 549 511
(1,232) Opening General and Navigation Fund (1,378)
Balance
103 Less/Plus Surplus or (Deficit) on General (38)
and Navigation Balance in Year
(249) Transfer (to)/from Earmarked Reserves 48
Closing General and Navigation Fund
(1,378) Balance at 31 March (1,368)

* Further details on the adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis can be found in Note 7.

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis is a note to the Financial Statements, however it is positioned here as it provides a link from the figures

reported in the Review of the Year within the Narrative Report to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
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Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices.

1,147 (149) 998 | Operations 1,177 (130) 1,047
2,336 (531) 1,805 | Planning and Resources 2,568 (728) 1,840
359 (18) 341 | Chief Executive 294 (4) 290
67 0 67 | Corporate Items 95 0 95
3,310 | (3,142) 168 | Broads Navigation Account 37 3,525 (3,238) 287
7,219 | (3,840) 3,379 | Cost of services 7,659 (4,100) 3,559
15 | (Gains)/Losses on the disposal of non-current 1
assets
254 | Financing and investment income and 11 195
expenditure
(3,189) | DEFRA National Park grant income (3,244)
459 | (Surplus) or deficit on provision of services 511
(21) | (Surplus) or deficit on revaluation of fixed (230)
assets
(2,641) | Actuarial (gains) / losses on pension assets / 2,166
liabilities
(2,662) | Other comprehensive income and expenditure 1,936
(2,203) Total cqmprehensive income and 2.447
expenditure
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Movement in Reserves Statement

This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Authority, analysed into ‘usable’ reserves (i.e. those that can be
applied to fund expenditure) and ‘other’ reserves. The ‘surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services’ line shows the true economic cost of providing
the Authority’s services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Balance at 31 March 2015 (A) 1,232 1,593 2,825 (3,118) (293)
Total cqmprehenswe income and (459) 0 (459) 2,662 2.203
expenditure

Adjustments between accounting 356 0 356 (356) 0
basis and funding basis under

regulations (Note 9)

Transfers to or from Earmarked

Reserves (Note 10) 249 (249) 0 0 0
Increase or (decrease) in 2015/16 (B) 146 (249) (103) 2,306 2,203
Balance at 31 March 2016 (=A+B) 1,378 1,344 2,722 (812) 1,910
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Balance at 31 March 2016 (A) 1,378 1,344 2,722 (812) 1,910
Total comprehensive income

and expenditure (511) 0 (511) (1,936) (2,447)
Adjustments between 549 0 549 (549) 0
accounting basis and funding

basis under regulations (Note 9)

Transfers to or from Earmarked

Reserves (Note 10) (48) 48 0 0 0
Increase or (decrease) in

2016/17 (B) (20) 48 38 (2,485) (2,447)
Balance at 31 March 2017 1,368 1,392 2,760 (3,297) (537)
(=A+B)

77



Broads Authority Statement of Accounts
Balance Sheet

Balance Sheet

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and
liabilities recognised by the Authority. The net assets of the Authority (assets less liabilities)
are matched by the reserves held by the Authority.

4,453 | Property, Plant & Equipment 12 4,439
340 | Investment Property Held for Sale 13 275
0 | Intangible Assets 14 43
10 | Long term debtors 3
4,803 | Long term assets 4,760
10 | Short term investments 2,001
104 | Inventories 15 88
494 | Short term debtors 16 549
4,137 | Cash and cash equivalents 17 1,981
4,745 | Current assets 4,619
(15) | Short term borrowing (15)
(1,944) | Short term creditors 18 (1,761)
(43) | Provisions 19 (63)
(2,002) | Current liabilities (1,839)
(152) | Long term borrowing (137)
(5,484) | Other long term liabilities (7,940)
(5,636) | Long term liabilities (8,077)
1,910 | Net assets/(liabilities) (537)
Useable reserves
1,045 | General Account fund balance 1,042
333 | Navigation Account fund balance 326
1,344 | Earmarked Reserves 10 1,392
Unusable reserves 21
1,426 | Revaluation Reserve 1,641
3,079 | Capital Adjustment Account 2,892
(5,274) | Pension Reserve (7,780)
(43) | Accumulated Absence Reserve (50)
1,910 | Total reserves (537)

| certify that the statement of accounts gives a true and fair view of the financial position of
the authority at 31 March 2017 and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March
2017. These financial statements replace the unaudited statements certified by the Chief
Financial Officer on 31 May 2017.

Emma Krelle (Chief Financial Officer)

28 July 2017
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Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Authority
during the reporting period. The statement shows how the Authority generates and uses
cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing
activities.

(459) | Net surplus or (deficit) on the provision of (511)
services
833 | Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the 815

provision of services for non-cash movements

(5) | Adjust for items in the net surplus or deficit on (14)
the provision of services that are Investing and
Financing Activities

369 | Net cash flows from Operating Activities 22 290

(478) | Investing Activities 23 (2,383)

(66) | Financing Activities 24 (63)

(175) | Net increase or (decrease) in cash and cash (2,156)
equivalents

4,312 | Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of 4,137

the reporting period

4,137 | Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 17 1,981
reporting period
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Notes to the Statement of Accounts
1. Accounting Policies
i.  General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Authority’s transactions for the 2016/17
financial year and its position at the year end of 31 March 2017. The Authority is required to
prepare an annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations
2015, which those regulations require to be prepared in accordance with proper accounting
practices. These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17 and the Service Reporting Code of Practice
2016/17, supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical
cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial
instruments.

ii.  Accruals of Income and Expenditure

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are
made or received. In particular:

¢ Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Authority transfers the
significant risks and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that
economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the
Authority.

e Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Authority can
measure reliably the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable
that economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to
the Authority.

e Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed — where there is a
gap between the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried
as inventories on the Balance Sheet.

e Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees)
are recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when
payments are made.

¢ Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for
respectively as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for
the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by
the contract.

e Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been
received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amounts is recorded in the
Balance Sheet. Where debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written
down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be collected.
Specific bad debt provisions are reviewed annually.

iii. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable
without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that
mature in 7 days or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.
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In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts
that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Authority’s cash
management.

iv.  Exceptional ltems

When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed
separately, either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or
in the notes to the accounts, depending on how significant the items are to an
understanding of the Authority’s financial performance.

v.  Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to
correct a material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively,
i.e. in the current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior
period adjustment.

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices
or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions,
other events and conditions on the Authority’s financial position or financial performance.
Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had
always been applied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.

vi.  Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets

Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to
record the cost of holding fixed assets during the year:

o depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service;
revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there
are no accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the
losses can be written off; and

e amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service.

vii.  Employee Benefits
Benefits payable during employment

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end.
They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave,
bonuses and non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees and are recognised
as an expense for services in the year in which employees render service to the Authority.
An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements (or any form of leave, e.g. time off in
lieu) earned by employees but not taken before the year-end which employees can carry
forward into the next financial year. The accrual is made at the wage and salary rates
applicable in the following accounting year, being the period in which the employee takes
the benefit. The accrual is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services, but
then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday benefits are
charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs.
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Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Authority to
terminate an officer's employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision
to accept voluntary redundancy and are charged on an accruals basis to the appropriate
service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when the Authority is
demonstrably committed to the termination of the employment of an officer or group of
officers or making an offer to encourage voluntary redundancy.

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions
require the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Authority to
the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the
relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are
required to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for
pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to
the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.

Post-Employment Benefits

Employees of the Broads Authority are members of Norfolk Pension Fund for civilian
employees (the Local Government Pension Scheme), administered by Norfolk County
Council. This is a funded defined benefit final salary scheme, meaning that the Authority and
employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the
pension liabilities with investment assets.

Viii. Events After the Balance Sheet Date

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable,
that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of
Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

e Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting
period — the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events.

e Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period — the
Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of
events would have a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of
the events and their estimated financial effect.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the
Statement of Accounts.

iX. Fair Value Measurement

The Authority measures some of its non-financial assets such as investment properties and
some of its financial instruments such as borrowings at fair value at each reporting date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability.
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The Authority measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the Authority takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Authority uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data is available, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the Authority’s financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, as follows:

e Level 1 — quotes prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Authority can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;

e Level 3 — unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

X. Financial Instruments

Financial instruments are defined as contracts that give rise to a financial asset of one entity
and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. The term financial instrument
covers both financial assets and financial liabilities and includes the most straightforward
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables and the complex
ones such as derivatives.

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Authority becomes party
to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value
and carried at their amortised cost. Long term loans are shown in the balance sheet as the
capital element outstanding at the year end, split between amounts due within the current
year and amounts due outside the year. Any interest paid is taken directly to the income
and expenditure account. The ‘fair value’ of any loans is disclosed in the notes to the
accounts with accompanying explanations.

Financial assets are classified into two types:

e Loans and Receivables — assets that have fixed or determinable payments, but are
not quoted on an active market.

e Available for Sale Assets — assets that have a quoted market price and / or do not
have fixed or determinable payments.

The Authority has not made any material loans.
xi.  Foreign Currency Translation

Where the Authority has entered into a transaction denominated in a foreign currency, the
transaction is converted into sterling at the exchange rate applicable on the date the
transaction was effective. Where amounts in foreign currency are outstanding at the year-
end, they are reconverted at the spot exchange rate at 31 March. Resulting gains or losses
are recognised in the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
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Xii. Government Grants and Contributions

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Authority when there is reasonable
assurance that:

¢ the Authority will comply with the conditions attached to the payments; and
e the grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due to the Authority are not credited to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been
satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service
potential embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or contribution are required to be
consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential
must be returned to the transferor.

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied
are carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or
contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and
contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ringfenced revenue grants
and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement, they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves
Statement.

Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital
Grants Unapplied reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment
Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve are transferred to the Capital
Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure.

xiii.  Intangible Assets

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled
by the Authority as a result of past events is capitalised when it is expected that future
economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the Authority.

Internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the project is
technically feasible and is intended to be completed (with adequate resources being
available) and the Authority will be able to generate future economic benefits or deliver
service potential by being able to sell or use the asset. Expenditure is capitalised where it
can be measured reliably as attributable to the asset and is restricted to that incurred during
the development phase (research expenditure cannot be capitalised).

Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or
primarily intended to promote or advertise the Authority’s goods or services.

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair
value of the assets held by the Authority can be determined by reference to an active
market. In practice, no intangible asset held by the Authority meets this criterion, and they
are therefore carried at amortised cost. The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is
amortised over its useful life to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement. An asset is tested for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the asset might be impaired — any losses recognised are posted to the
relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any gain

23
84



Broads Authority Statement of Accounts
Notes to the Statement of Accounts

or loss arising on the disposal or abandonment of an intangible asset is posted to the Other
Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory
purposes, amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted
to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore
reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and
posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000)
the Capital Receipts Reserve.

Xiv.  Investment Property

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and / or for capital
appreciation. The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the
delivery of services or production of goods or is held for sale.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on
the amount at which the asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties at arm’s
length. Properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually according to market
conditions at the year-end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal.

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and
Investment Income line and result in a gain for the general reserve balances. However,
revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to
have an impact on the general reserve balances. The gains and losses are therefore
reversed out of the general reserve balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and
posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000)
the Capital Receipts Reserve.

XV. Inventories

Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost or net realisable value.
The cost of inventories is assigned using the FIFO (first-in, first-out) costing formula.

Xvi.  Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the
lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are
considered separately for classification.

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset
in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement
is dependent on the use of specific assets.

The Authority as Lessee

Finance Leases

Property, Plant and Equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance
Sheet at the commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception
(or the present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is
matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor. Initial direct costs of the Authority
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are added to the carrying amount of the asset. Premiums paid on entry into a lease are
applied to writing down the lease liability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the
periods in which they are incurred.

Lease payments are apportioned between:

o a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment —
applied to write down the lease liability; and

¢ a finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the
policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the
lease term if this is shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life (where ownership of the
asset does not transfer to the Authority at the end of the lease period).

Depreciation and revaluation and impairment losses are therefore substituted by a revenue
contribution in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital
Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Operating Leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefitting from use of the leased
property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the
lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a rent-free period at
the commencement of the lease).

The Authority as Lessor

Operating Leases

Where the Authority grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or
equipment, the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the
Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Credits are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not
match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a premium paid at the commencement of the
lease). Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are added to the
carrying amount of the relevant asset and charged as an expense over the lease term on
the same basis as rental income.

xvii.  Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and that are expected
to be used during more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and
Equipment.

Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment
is capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic
benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Authority and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an
asset’s potential to deliver future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and
maintenance) is charged as an expense when it is incurred. A de minimis limit of £5,000 is
used to recognise fixed assets.
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Measurement
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:

¢ the purchase price; and
e any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

The Authority does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under
construction.

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless
the acquisition does not have commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a variation in the
cash flows of the Authority). In the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange,
the cost of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the Authority.

Donated assets are measured initially at fair value. The difference between fair value and
any consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income line of the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, unless the donation has been made
conditionally. Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in the Donated Assets Account.
Where gains are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they
are reversed out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:

e infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction — depreciated
historical cost.

e all other assets — current value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the
asset in its existing use (existing use value — EUV).

Where there is no market-based evidence of current value because of the specialist nature
of an asset, depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of current value.

Where non-property assets that have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated
historical cost basis is used as a proxy for current value.

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are revalued sufficiently regularly to
ensure that their carrying amount is not materially different from their current value at the
year-end, but as a minimum every five years. Increases in valuations are matched by credits
to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. Exceptionally, gains might be
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement where they arise from
the reversal of a loss previously charged to a service.

Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by:

e where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation
Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to
the amount of the accumulated gains).

e where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the
carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the
date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated
into the Capital Adjustment Account.

26
87



Broads Authority Statement of Accounts
Notes to the Statement of Accounts

Impairment

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be
material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the
carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by:

e where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation
Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to
the amount of the accumulated gains).

¢ where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the
carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant
service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount
of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had
not been recognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic
allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for
assets without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain Community
Assets) and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction).

Depreciation is calculated on the following bases:

e dwellings and other buildings — straight-line allocation between 5 and 50 years, as
advised by a professional valuer;

e vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment — straight-line allocation between 5 and 10
years, as advised by a suitably qualified officer; and

e infrastructure — straight-line allocation between 20 and 25 years, as advised by a
suitably qualified officer.

Where an asset has been acquired under a finance lease arrangement, and the lease term
is shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life, the asset is depreciated over the lease term.

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost
is significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated
separately.

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between
current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been
chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation
Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Receipts below £5,000 arising from the sale of fixed assets are allocated to revenue. The
Broads Authority has a policy of not depreciating assets in the first year of ownership.

Disposals and Non-current Assets

Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale.
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the
Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant or Equipment) is written off to the Other Operating
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the
gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited to the same line in the
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Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on
disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal). Any
revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to
the Capital Adjustment Account.

Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. A
proportion of receipts relating to housing disposals (75% for dwellings, 50% for land and
other assets, net of statutory deductions and allowances) is payable to the Government.
The balance of receipts is required to be credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can
then only be used for new capital investment, or set aside to reduce the Authority’s
underlying need to borrow (the capital financing requirement) (England and Wales).
Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund Balance in the Movement
in Reserves Statement.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against the general fund, as the cost of
fixed assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts
are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.

xviii.  Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a legal or
constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits
or service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
For instance, the Authority may be involved in a court case that could eventually result in the
making of a settlement or the payment of compensation.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that the Authority becomes aware of the
obligation, and are measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the
expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and
uncertainties.

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the
Balance Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year —
where it becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be
required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and
credited back to the relevant service.

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered
from another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the
relevant service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the Authority
settles the obligation.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a
possible obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Authority. Contingent liabilities
also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot
be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but are disclosed in a note
(note 34) to the accounts.
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Contingent Assets

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a possible
asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Authority.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the
accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service
potential.

XiX. Reserves

The Authority sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover
contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a
reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service in that year to score against the
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets,
financial instruments and retirement and employee benefits and do not represent useable
resources for the Authority — these reserves are explained in the relevant policies.

xX.  Operating Segments

In accordance with IFRS 8 and the Code, the Broads Authority keeps the general fund and
navigation fund separately. Under the Code, the Authority has prepared a single income
and expenditure account for 2016/17, however in note 37 to the accounts the navigation
income and expenditure is shown.

xxi.  Allocation of Costs

Salary, vehicle and other revenue costs are reallocated within the general expenditure to
major projects that are grant aided partially or wholly by sources other than Defra grant.
The method of allocation is kept as simple as possible and is either made on usage, such as
number of hours spent on a project, or estimated on a percentage basis.

Recharges between the general and navigation funds are based on staff time and usage.
xxii.  Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but
that does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure
to the relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the
year.
xxiii. VAT

VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her
Majesty’'s Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income.

2. Accounting Standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted

The 2017/18 Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting adopts the following
amendments to International Accounting Standards and International Financial Reporting
Standards, which will be required from 1 April 2017:
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IAS 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans requires the
amendment to the reporting of pension fund scheme transactions costs and of the
investment concentration. Both of these are minor and are not expected to have a
material effect on the Authority’s Statement of Accounts.

3. Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In applying the accounting policies set out in note 1, the Authority has had to make certain
judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events.
The critical judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are:

Despite the remaining three years of the original four year settlement from DEFRA
there remains a degree of uncertainty about the longer term levels of funding for
National Parks. However, the Authority has determined that this uncertainty is not
yet sufficient to provide an indication that the assets of the Authority might be
impaired as a result of a need to close facilities and reduce levels of service
provision.

The Authority is a member of Whitlingham Charitable Trust of which there are four
members. The Authority can appoint up to four trustees and there shall be no more
than nine in total. The Trust is limited by guarantee in which each member agrees to
contribute £1 in the event of it being wound up. Whitlingham Charitable Trust was
established to manage and maintain Whitlingham Country Park for public benefit.
Whilst the Authority does have significant influence in the management of the Trust,
it does not have a controlling influence, and it does not have any share equity, or any
share in profits or losses. It is considered therefore that International Public Sector
Accounting Standard (IPSAS) 7 — Accounting for Investments in Associates - does
not apply as the charity has no formal equity structure, and the Authority does not
derive any financial benefit from the Trust.

4. Assumptions made about the future and other major sources of estimation
uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported for assets and liabilities as at
the balance sheet date and the amounts reported for the revenues and expenses during the
year. However, the nature of estimation means that actual outcomes could differ from those
estimates. The key judgements and estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of
causing material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are:

Iltem Uncertainties

assumptions

Effect if actual results differ from

Property Plant and

Assets are depreciated over useful

If the useful life of assets is

Equipment lives that are dependent on |reduced, depreciation increases
assumptions about the level of repairs | and the carrying amount of the
and maintenance that will be incurred | assets fall.
in relation to individual assets. The
current economic climate makes it | It is estimated that the annual
uncertain that the Authority will be able | depreciation  charge  would
to sustain its current spending on | increase by £44,000 for every
repairs and maintenance, bringing into | year that useful lives had to be
doubt the useful lives assigned to | reduced.
assets.
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Item

Uncertainties

Effect if actual results differ from
assumptions

Pensions Liability

Estimation of the net liability to pay
pensions depends on a number of
complex judgements relating to the
discount rate used, the rate at which
salaries are projected to increase,
changes in retirement ages, mortality
rates and expected returns on pension
fund assets. A firm of consulting
actuaries is engaged to provide the

The effects on the net pensions
liability of changes in individual
assumptions can be measured.
For instance, a 0.5% decrease
in the discount rate assumption
would result in an increase in
the pension liability of
£3,319,000. Further details are
set out in the sensitivity analysis

Authority with expert advice about the | in note 33.

assumptions to be applied.

5. Material Iltems of Income and Expense

There are no material items of expense in relation to 2016/17 which are not disclosed
elsewhere within the Statement of Accounts.

6. Events after the balance sheet date

The Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Chief Financial Officer on 28
July 2017. Events that occur after this date are not reflected in the financial statements or
notes.

Subsequent to the approval of the draft accounts, the Authority has received further
information regarding the contingent liabilities disclosed in note 34 on page 68.

Appeal against Adjacent tolls decision

The Defendant's application for Judicial Review was refused on 24 May 2017 which
concluded the matter. The Authority did not receive notice of this decision until 13 June
2017. The High Court ordered the Defendant to pay a contribution towards the Authority’s
costs.
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7. Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis

Adjustments from General and Navigation Fund to arrive at the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement Amounts

9 62 0 53 | Operations 38 28 Q) 65
19 96 (4) 111 | Planning and Resources (29) 49 6 26

0 13 (1) 12 | Chief Executive 0 7 1) 6

0 0 0 0 Corporate Items 0 0 0 0
(193) 131 1 (61) | Broads Navigation Account 194 69 2 265
(183) 302 4 115 | Net Cost of Services 203 153 6 362

Other income and
expenditure from the
0 241 0 241 | Expenditure and Funding 0 187 0 187
Analysis

Difference between
General and Navigation
Fund surplus or deficit
and Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure
Statement Surplus or
(183) 543 (4) 356 Deficit on the Provision of 203 340 6 549
Services
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Note
1. Adjustments for capital purposes — this column adds in depreciation and impairment and revaluation gains and losses in the services line, and for:
e Other operating expenditure — adjusts for capital disposal with a transfer of income on disposal of assets and the amounts written off for those
assets.
¢ Financing and investment income and expenditure — the statutory charges for capital financing ie Minimum Revenue Provision and other
revenue contributions are deducted from other income and expenditure as these are not chargeable under generally accepted accounting
practices.
2. Net change for the removal of pension contribution and the addition of IAS 19 Employee Benefits pension related expenditure and income:
o For services this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions made by the authority as allowed by statute and the
replacement with current service costs and past service costs.
¢ For Financing and investment income and expenditure — the net interest on the defined benefit liability is charged to the CIES.
3. Other differences between amounts debited/credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and amounts payable/receivable to be
recognised under statue including accumulated absences.

Income received on a segmental basis is analysed below:

Operations (149) (130)
Planning and Resources (531) (728)
Chief Executive (18) 4)
Corporate ltems 0 0
Specialist Ringfenced Account (Navigation) (3,142) (3,238)
Total income analysed on a segmental

basis (3,840) (4,100)
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8. Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature

34

The Authority’s expenditure and income is analysed as follows:

Expenditure

Employee benefits expenses 4,425 4,310
Other services expenses 2,974 3,384
Depreciation, amortisation, impairment 329 623
Interest payments 40 36
Expenditure in relation to investment properties 4) (13)
Loss on the disposal of assets 16 1
Total expenditure 7,780 8,341
Income

Fees, charges and other service income (3,845) (4,113)
Interest and investment income (23) (15)
Contributions from reserves (264) (458)
Government grants and contributions (3,189) (3,244)
Total income (7,321) (7,830)
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 459 511
Services
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9. Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and expenditure recognised by the Authority in the year in accordance
with proper accounting practice to the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the Authority to meet future capital and
revenue expenditure.

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Adjustment
Account:

Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprehensive
Expenditure and Income Statement:

330 (330) | Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets 315 (315)
0 0 | Revaluation losses on property, plant and equipment 307 (307)

0 0 | Amortisation of intangible assets 0 0
Q) 1 | Movements in the fair value of investment properties 6 (6)
22 (22) | Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as 15 (15)

part of the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement

Insertion of items not debited or credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

(67) 67 | Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment (63) 63
(467) 467 | Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund (378) 378
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Adjustments involving the Pensions Reserve:

Reversal of items relating to post-employment benefits debited
or credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (see
note 33)

Employer’s pension contributions and direct payments to
pensioners payable in the year

Adjustments involving the accumulated Absences Account:

Adjustments in relation to short-term compensated absences

Adjustments involving the Capital Grant Unapplied
Account:

Capital grants and contributions unapplied credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Total Adjustments

937

(597)

(937)

597

()

549

(549)
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10. Transfers to / from earmarked reserves

This note presents details of the amounts set aside in earmarked reserves to provide financing for future expenditure and the amounts posted back
from earmarked reserves to meet expenditure in 2016/17. A description of each of the earmarked reserves follows in the table below.

Property (587) (30) 256 (361) (75) 7 (429)
Plant, Vessels and Equipment (240) (320) 259 (301) (175) 262 (214)
Premises (170) (32) 0 (202) (31) 54 (179)
Planning Delivery Grant (354) 3) 65 (292) (54) 151 (195)
Upper Thurne Enhancement Scheme (53) 3) 0 (56) (22) 0 (78)
Section 106 Agreements (16) (64) 4 (76) (33) 0 (109)
Heritage Lottery Fund 0 (77) 21 (56) (217) 180 (93)
Catchment Partnership 0 0 0 0 (95) 0 (95)
Mobile Phone Upgrade/IT reserve (1) 0 1 0 0 0 0
PRISMA 172) 1) 173 0 0 0 0

Total (1,593) (530) 779 (1,344) (702) 654 (1,392)
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Earmarked reserves

Property
A reserve account set up to provide for the ongoing maintenance of the Authority’s major
assets, moorings and operational property assets, including Mutford Lock.

Plant, Vessels and Equipment

Reserve established to provide for the maintenance and replacement of the Authority’s plant
and equipment, including launches, construction and maintenance vessels and equipment,
pool vehicles and fen management equipment.

Premises
A reserve account established to provide for the maintenance and development of the
Authority’s Dockyard facility and other buildings throughout the Broads.

Planning Delivery Grant
Balance of Defra and OPDM grants awarded to deliver the planning service.

Upper Thurne Enhancement Scheme
Reserve established to hold the balance of ring-fenced Environment Agency funding for
enhancement works in the Upper Thurne.

Section 106 Agreements
A reserve account established to hold ring-fenced developers’ contributions relating to
planning application conditions.

Heritage Lottery Fund
A reserve account established for the Landscape Partnership project funded by the Heritage
Lottery Fund.

Catchment Partnership
A reserve account set up to hold ring-fenced income from various partners within the
Catchment Partnership.

Mobile Phone Upgrade / IT Reserve

A reserve set up for holding the balance of ring-fenced Defra “INSPIRE” grant funding
provided to support the Authority in meeting regulatory requirements for publishing
geospatial information related to the environment under the European INSPIRE Directive. At
the end of 2015/16 this grant funded project was finished.

PRISMA

A reserve account set up for European grant part funded projects and trials relating to the
development of sustainable techniques and methods for the dredging, treatment and reuse
of sediment. At the end of 2015/16 this grant funded project was finished and transferred to
the Plant, Vessels and Equipment Reserve which helped initially set up the reserve.
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11. Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

40 | Interest payable and similar charges 36

241 | Net interest on the net defined benefit 187
liability (asset)

(23) | Interest receivable and similar income (15)

(4) | Income and expenditure in relation to (13)

investment properties and changes in
their fair value

254 | Total 195

12. Property, Plant and Equipment

Movements on balances 2015/16

At 1 April 2015 2,690 2,504 302 323 19 5,838
additions 123 194 0 0 150 467
revaluation 22 0 0 0 0 22
increases /

(decreases)

recognised in the
Surplus / Deficit on
the Provision of

Services

derecognition — 0 (66) 0 0 0 (66)

disposals

At 31 March 2016 2,835 2,632 302 323 169 6,261
39
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At 1 April 2015 62 1,286 178 0 0 1,526
depreciation charge 17 298 15 0 0 330
derecognition — 0 (48) 0 0 0 (48)
disposals

At 31 March 2016 79 1,536 193 0 0 1,808

At 31 March 2016 2,756 1,096 109 323 169 4,453
At 31 March 2015 2,628 1,218 124 323 19 4,312
40
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Movements on balances 2016/17

At 1 April 2016 2,835 2,632 302 323 169 6,261

additions 0 304 0 0 30 334

revaluation 213 (58) 0 0 0 155
increases /
(decreases)
recognised in the
Revaluation
Reserve

revaluation (303) (6) 0 0 0 (309)
increases /
(decreases)
recognised in the
Surplus / Deficit on
the Provision of

Services

derecognition — (13) (99) 0 0 0 (112)
disposals

asset 0 169 0 0 (169) 0

reclassification
(to)/from Assets
Under
Construction

At 31 March 2017 2,732 2,942 302 323 30 6,329
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At 1 April 2016

depreciation charge

derecognition —
disposals

depreciation written
out to the
Revaluation
Reserve

depreciation written
out to the
Surplus/Deficit on
the Provision of
Services

At 31 March 2017

79 1,536 193 1,808
4 206 15 315
(13) (84) 0 (97)
(55) (76) 0 (131)
(2 3) 0 (5)
13 1,669 208 1,890

At 31 March 2017 2,719 1,273 94 323 30 4,439
At 31 March 2016 2,756 1,096 109 323 169 4,453
42
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Depreciation

The following useful lives and depreciation rates have been used in the calculation of
depreciation:

Operational Land and Straight line. (20% assumed land Between 5 to 50 years

Buildings value, where no split available) as per professional
advice

Community Land Not depreciated Not depreciated

Infrastructure Asset Straight line Between 20 to 25 years

Vehicles, Vessels and Straight line Between 5 to 10 Years

Equipment

Computer and Office Straight line 5 years

Equipment

Capital Commitments

The Authority was committed to one significant capital contract as at the balance sheet date.
Details of the amounts outstanding under this contract are set out in the table below.

Linkflote Pontoons 223 112 111
Total 223 112 111
Impairments

In accordance with IAS 36 and the Code, Directors have undertaken an annual impairment
review. No assets were considered to be impaired.

Revaluations

The Authority carries out a rolling programme that ensures that all Property, Plant and
Equipment required to be measured at current value is revalued every five years. Valuations
were carried out internally and externally. Valuations of land and buildings were carried out
externally by Concertus Design and Property Consultants, in accordance with
methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional standards of the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Valuations of vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment are
based on current prices where there is an active second-hand market or latest list prices
adjusted for the condition of the asset.

Significant assumptions applied in estimating the current values are:

Property, Plant and Equipment of a specialised nature were valued on the basis of
what it would cost to reinstate the service, suitably adjusted to reflect for age, wear
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and tear and obsolescence of the existing asset (Current Value less depreciated
replacement cost).

Infrastructure Assets and Community Assets have been valued at historic cost rather
than fair value.

Property leases have been split between finance and operating leases and valued
accordingly depending upon whether the Authority is lessor or lessee.

Carried at 0 0 94 323 0 417
historical cost

Valued at

current value as

at:

31 March 2017 2,218 353 0 0 30 2,601
31 March 2016 336 265 0 0 0 601
31 March 2015 27 234 0 0 0 261
31 March 2014 138 190 0 0 0 328
31 March 2013 0 231 0 0 0 231
Total cost or 2,719 1,273 94 323 30 4,439
valuation

13. Investment Properties

The following items of income and expense have been accounted for in the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement.
14 | Rental income from investment property 20
(10) | Direct operating expenses arising from (7
investment property
4 | Net gain / (loss) 13
44
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There are no restrictions on the Authority’s ability to realise the value inherent in its
investment property or on the Authority’s right to the remittance of income and the proceeds
of disposal. The Authority has no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop
investment property or repairs, maintenance or enhancement.

The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment properties over
the year.

339 | Balance at start of the year 340
1 | Net gains / losses from fair value adjustments (65)
340 | Balance at end of the year 275

Fair Value Hierarchy

Details of the Authority’s investment properties and information about the fair value
hierarchy as at 31 March 2016 and 2017 are as follows:

Fieldbase (Held for Sale) 340 340 275 275

340 340 275 275

Valuation techniques used to determine Level 2 fair values for Investment Properties

The fair value of investment properties has been based on the market approach using
current market conditions and recent sales prices and other relevant information for similar
assets in the local authority area. Market conditions are such that information for similar
properties are actively purchased and sold and the level of observable inputs are significant,
leading to properties being categorised at Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

There has been no change in valuation techniques used during the year for investment
properties.

Highest and best use of Investment Properties

In estimating the fair value of the Authority’s investment properties, the highest and best use
of the properties is their current use.
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Valuation Process for Investment Properties

The investment property has been valued by Concertus Design and Property Consultants in
accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional
standards of the Royal Institution for Chartered Surveyors.

14. Intangible Assets

The Authority internally generated a website www.visitthebroads.co.uk which would be
classified as an intangible asset as it meets strict IAS 38 requirements to be recognised on
the balance sheet. The useful life of the website is 5 years and the carrying amount is
amortised on a straight line basis.

The movement on Intangible Assets balances during the year is as follows:

Balance at start of year:
Gross carrying amounts 0 0 0
Accumulated amortisation 0 0 0
Net carrying amount at start 0 0 0
of year
Additions:
Internal development 13 0 13
Purchases 30 0 30
Amortisation for the period 0 0 0
Net Carrying Amount at the end 43 0 43
of the year
Comprising:
Gross carrying amounts 43 0 43
Accumulated amortisation 0 0 0
43 0 43
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15. Inventories

Balance outstanding 44 34 68 70 112 104
at start of year

Purchases 27 26 80 85 107 111
Recognised as an (28) (29) (78) (98) (106) (227)
expense in year

Written off balances (9) 0 0 0 9) 0
Balance

outstanding at 34 31 70 57 104 88
year-end

16. Debtors

Central government bodies
Other local authorities
Prepayments

Other entities and individuals

494

Total

134

327

549

17. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents is made up of the following elements:

2,750
1,385

4,137

Cash held by the Broads Authority
Investments with Broadland District Council
Bank current accounts

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

1,979

1,981

47
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18. Creditors

65 | Central government bodies 69

6 | Other local authorities 15

1 | NHS bodies 1
1,586 | Accruals 1,337
0 | Public corporations and trading funds 0
286 | Other entities and individuals 339
1,944 | Total 1,761

19. Provisions

47 47 | Balance at 1 April 43 0 43

43 43 | Additional provisions 50 13 63
made in year

47 (47) | Settlements or (43) 0 (43)
cancellation of
provision made at
end of preceding year

43 43 | Balance at 31 March 50 13 63

The redundancy provision made in 2016/17 was for the costs of organisational restructuring.
The provision relates to a redundancy payment for a post leaving the Authority in April 2017.
The post effected was notified in January 2017 and the payment was made during 2017/18.
For more information on the Accumulated Absence Account, see note 21.

20. Usable reserves

Movements in the Authority’'s usable reserves are detailed in the Movement in Reserves
Statement.
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21. Unusable reserves

1,426 | Revaluation reserve 1,641
3,079 | Capital Adjustment Account 2,892
(5,274) | Pensions Reserve (7,780)
(43) | Accumulated Absences Account (50)
(812) | Total unusable reserves (3,297)

Revaluation Reserve

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Authority arising from increases in
the value of its Property, Plant and Equipment (and Intangible Assets). The balance is
reduced when assets with accumulated gains are:

¢ revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost;

e used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through

depreciation; or

o disposed of and the gains are realised.
The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date that
the Reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into
the balance on the Capital Adjustment Account.

1,426 | Balance at 1 April 1,426
22 | Upward revaluation of assets 234
0 | Downward revaluation of assets 3)

22 | Surplus or deficit on revaluation of non-current 231

assets not posted to the Surplus or Deficit on
Provision of Services

(15) | Difference between current value depreciation (16)
and historical cost depreciation

(7) | Asset disposed of 2014/15, balance still on 0
reserve
(22) | Amount written off to the Capital Adjustment (16)
Account
1,426 | Balance at 31 March 1,641
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Capital Adjustment Account

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different
arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing
the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions.
The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as
depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve
to convert current value figures to a historical cost basis). The Account is credited with the
amounts set aside by the Authority as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and
enhancement.

The Account contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties and gains
recognised on donated assets that have yet to be consumed by the Authority. The Account
also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1
April 2007, the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains. Note 9
provides details of the source of all the transactions posted to the Account, apart from those
involving the Revaluation Reserve.

2015/16
£000

2016/17
£000

2,875

(330)

(22)

(351)

21

(330)

67

467

534

3,079

Balance at 1 April

Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited
or credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement:

Charges for depreciation and impairment of non current
assets

Revaluation losses on Property Plant & Equipment

Movements in the market value of investment
properties
Amortisation of intangible assets

Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal
or sale as part of the gain / loss on disposal to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Adjusting amounts written out of the revaluation reserve

Net written out amount of the cost of non-current assets
consumed in the year
Capital financing applied in the year:

Statutory provision for the financing of capital
investment charged against the General Fund
Removal of Finance Lease Liability for assets returned
in year

Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund

Balance at 31 March

(315)

(307)

(6)

(15)

(643)

16

63

377

3,079

(627)

440

2,892
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Pensions Reserve

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different
arrangements for accounting for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in
accordance with statutory provisions. The Authority accounts for post-employment benefits
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by
employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation,
changing assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs.
However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the Authority
makes employer’s contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which
it is directly responsible. The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a
substantial shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources
the Authority has set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that
funding will have been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid.

2015/16 2016/17

£000 £000

(7,372) | Balance at 1 April (5,274)

2 641 Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability / (2,166)
(asset)

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits
debited or credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the

(1.117) Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income (937)
and Expenditure Statement
Employer’'s pension contributions and direct
574 . . 597
payments to pensioners payable in the year
(5,274) | Balance at 31 March (7,780)
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Accumulated Absences Account

The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on
the General Fund balance from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in
the year, e.g. annual leave entitlement carried forward at 31 March. Statutory arrangements
require that the impact on the General Fund balance is neutralised by transfers to or from
the Account.

(47) | Balance at 1 April (43)

Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at

a7 the end of the preceding year

43

Amounts accrued at the end of the current

(43) year

(50)

Amount by which officer remuneration
charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement on an accruals basis
O ; . (7
is different from remuneration chargeable in

the year in accordance with statutory
requirements

(43) | Balance at 31 March (50)

22. Cash Flow Statement — Operating Activities

The cash flows from operating activities include the following items:

(23) | Interest received (24)
40 | Interest paid 36
17 | Net cash flows from operating activities 12
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23. Cash Flow Statement — Investing Activities

(467) | Purchase of property, plant and equipment, (378)
investment property and intangible assets

0 | Purchase of short term investments (2,000)
(6) | Other payments from investing activities 9

Proceeds from the sale of property plant and

(5) equipment, investment property and intangible (14)
assets
(478) | Net cash flows from investing activities (2,383)

24. Cash Flow Statement — Financing Activities

(52) | Cash payments for the reduction of the (49)
outstanding liabilities relating to finance leases

(14) | Repayments of short and long term borrowing (14)

(66) Net cash flows from financing activities (63)
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25. Members’ Allowances

The Authority paid the following amounts to Members of the Authority during the year:

40 | Allowances 37
5 | Expenses 9
45 | Total 46

26. Officers’ Remuneration

The remuneration paid to the Authority’s senior employees is as follows:

2015/16 83 0 0 13 96
Chief Executive

2016/17 84 0 0 13 97
Director of Planning & 2015/16 58 0 0 9 67
Resources 2016/17 59 0 0 9 68

2015/16 58 0 0 9 67
Director of Operations

2016/17 51 0 0 7 58

The Director of Operations resigned with effect from 5 February 2017.

The number of employees receiving more than £50,000 remuneration for the year
(excluding employer’s pension contributions) is shown below:

£50,000 - £54,999
£55,000 - £59,999
£60,000 - £64,999
£65,000 - £69,999
£70,000 - £74,999
£75,000 - £79,999

£80,000 - £84,999

P OOOONO
P OOOORrEr
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Exit Packages

The number and cost of exit packages agreed, analysed between compulsory
redundancies and other departures, are disclosed in the table below:

£0 - 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 13
£20,000
£20,001 - 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
£40,000
Total 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 13

The total cost in the table above for exit packages have been charged to the authority’s
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the current year.

27. External Audit Costs

The Broads Authority has incurred the following fees relating to audit of the Statement of
Accounts, certification of grant claims and statutory inspections and to non-audit services
provided by the Authority’s external auditors:

Fees payable to external auditors with regard to

13 | external audit services carried out by the 13
appointed auditor for the year

13 | Total 13

28. Grant Income

The Authority credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

Credited to taxation and non-specific grant
income:

3,189 | Defra National Park Grant 3,244

Credited to services:

Heritage Lottery Fund — Landscape Partnership

19 166
Scheme

3,208 | Total 3,410
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29. Related Parties

The Broads Authority is required to disclose material transactions with related parties,
bodies or individuals that have the potential to control or influence the Authority or to be
controlled or influenced by the Authority. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to
assess the extent to which the Authority might have been constrained in its ability to operate
independently or might have secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain
freely with the Authority.

Central Government

Central government has effective control over the general operations of the Authority — it is
responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the Authority operates,
provides the majority of funding in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of
the transactions that the Authority has with other parties.

Members

Members of the Broads Authority have direct control over the Authority’s financial and
operating policies. Members of the Navigation Committee have a consultative role in respect
of navigation matters. The Authority wrote to all Members requesting details of any related
party transactions. Details of Members’ expenses are included in note 25.

A number of members of the Broads Authority are appointed by Local Authorities within the
Broads area. The Authority transacts with these other Local Authorities for items such as
rates in the normal course of business. There were no material transactions with Local
Authorities which are not disclosed elsewhere within the Statement of Accounts.

Mr Alan Goodchild is a member of the Navigation Committee and is a Director of ‘Goodchild
Marine’ which was contracted by the Authority to build a new launch and complete refits
along with supplying diesel fuel and mooring facilities. The Authority paid £55,851 for the
new launch, £347 for refits and £5,653 for fuel and moorings during 2016/17 (£53,183 for
the launch, £3,267 for dredging, £3,023 for refits, and £6,770 for fuel and moorings in
2015/16). £192 was outstanding at 31 March 2017. Goodchild Marine paid £565 in
navigation tolls to the Broads Authority in 2016/17. Mr Goodchild took no part in the
decision-making process associated with these contracts.

Mr James Knight is a member of the Navigation Committee and is a Director of ‘Waveney
River Centre (2003) Ltd’ which paid £8,628 navigation tolls to the Broads Authority in
2016/17 (£6,643 in 2015/16). The Authority also made fuel purchases of £1,256 (£1,217 in
2015/16) and used mooring facilities of £2,300 (£2,250 in 2015/16) during 2016/17. £71 was
outstanding at 31 March 2017. Mr Knight took no part in the decision-making process
associated with these contracts.

Mr Greg Munford is a member of the Broads Authority and Navigation Committee and is
Chief Executive of ‘Richardson’s Leisure Ltd’ which also wholly owns ‘Moonfleet Marine Ltd".
Richardson’s Leisure paid £360,631 and Moonfleet Marine Ltd paid £4,315 navigation tolls
to the Broads Authority in 2016/17. The Authority paid £432 to Richardson’s Leisure Ltd for
lifting a boat during the year 2016/17 and Richardson’s Holiday Group provided £5,700 to
the Authority for tourism event sponsorship. The Authority made purchases from Moonfleet
Marine Ltd of £8,516 in respect of refits and £1,282 fuel. No amounts were outstanding at
31 March 2017. Mr Munford took no part in the decision-making process associated with
these contracts.

Mr Michael Whitaker is a member of the Broads Authority and Navigation Committee and is
a partner of ‘Herbert Woods LLP’ which paid £170,128 navigation tolls to the Broads
Authority in 2016/17 (£172,446 in 2015/16). The Authority also made fuel purchases of

56
117



Broads Authority Statement of Accounts
Notes to the Statement of Accounts

£1,661 (£1,488 in 2015/16) and paid £400 for a boat hire in 2016/17. No amounts were
outstanding at 31 March 2017. Mr Whitaker took no part in the decision-making process
associated with these contracts.

Mr Brian Wilkins is a member of the Navigation Committee and is a contractor via
‘Windwood Solutions Ltd’ to ‘Canham Consulting Ltd’, which was contracted for engineering
design services. The Authority paid £3,144 during 2016/17 (£2,550 in 2015/16). No amounts
were outstanding at 31 March 2017. Mr Wilkins took no part in the decision-making process
associated with this contract.

Officers
The Chief Executive represents the Broads Authority on the board of the Whitlingham
Charitable Trust. Officer remuneration is detailed in note 26.

Whitlingham Charitable Trust

During the year the Authority provided administration services for Whitlingham Charitable
Trust of £43,294 (£41,549 in 2015/16). The balance outstanding at 31 March 2017 was
£7,646 (£21,590 at 31 March 2016).

The Broads Authority also provides a recharge service for purchase invoices and salaries of
£48,803 (£30,995 in 2015/16). The balance outstanding at 31 March 2017 was £4,466
(£4,196 at 31 March 2016).

The Whitlingham Charitable Trust also invoiced the Authority £15,264 (£15,264 in 2015/16)
for rental income for the lease of the visitor centre and moorings. The balance outstanding
at 31 March 2017 was £864 (£864 in 2015/16).

Other Public Bodies

Broadland District Council provided financial services for the Broads Authority until 31 March
2017. The Broads Authority was charged £3,062 in 2016/17 for the provision of this service
(£3,546 in 2015/16). The balance outstanding at 31 March 2017 was £281 (£954 in
2015/16).

The Council also provided treasury management of the Authority’s investments until 31
March 2017. No investments were placed with the Council as at 31 March 2017 (£2,750,000
as at 31 March 2016).

The Authority also recharged the Council for staff time of £10,797 during 2016/17 (£13,667
in 2015/16). The balance outstanding at 31 March 2017 was £2,541 (No amounts were
outstanding at 31 March 2016).

The Head of Finance and Revenue Services for Broadland District Council served until 31
March 2017 as the Treasurer and Financial Adviser (Section 17 Officer) for the Broads
Authority.

Norfolk County Council provides legal services to the Broads Authority via its legal practice,
NPLaw. The Authority paid £179,462 for legal services in 2016/17 (£83,968 in 2015/16). The
Practice Director of NPLaw served as the Solicitor and Monitoring Officer to the Broads
Authority until end of May 2016. The balance outstanding at 31 March 2017 was £3,378.

Norfolk County Council also provides payroll services to the Broads Authority. The Authority
paid £7,168 for this in 2016/17 (£6,954 in 2015/16). The balance outstanding at 31 March
2017 was £2,411 (No amounts were outstanding at 31 March 2016).
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30. Capital expenditure and capital financing

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below
(including the value of assets acquired under finance leases and PFI/PP contracts), together
with the resources that have been used to finance it. Where capital expenditure is to be
financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets are used by the Authority, the
expenditure results in an increase in the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure
of the capital expenditure incurred historically by the Authority that has yet to be financed.
The CFR is analysed in the second part of this note.

2015/16 2016/17
£000 £000
347 | Opening Capital Finance Requirement 280

Capital Investment
467 | Property, Plant and Equipment 377

Sources of Finance

Sums set aside from revenue:

(467) | Direct revenue contributions (377)
(67) | MRP (63)
280 | Closing Capital Finance Requirement 217

Explanation of movements in year
Increase / (decrease) in underlying need to

(67) | borrow (unsupported by government financial (63)
assistance)

0 | Assets acquired under finance leases 0

(67) Increase / (decrease) in Capital Financing (63)

Requirement
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31. Leases

Authority as Lessee

Finance Leases

The Authority has a number of vehicles, plant and office equipment acquired under finance
leases. The assets acquired under these leases are carried as Property, Plant and
Equipment in the Balance Sheet at the following net amounts:

0
136

136

Other Land and Buildings
Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment

Total

85

85

The Authority is committed to making minimum payments under these leases comprising
settlement of the long-term liability for the interest in the property acquired by the Authority
and finance costs that will be payable by the Authority in future years while the liability
remains outstanding. The minimum lease payments are made up of the following amounts:

48
74
6

128

Finance lease liabilities (net present value of
minimum lease payments):

e Current

e Non-current
Finance costs payable in future years

Minimum lease payments

37
37

The minimum lease payments will be payable over the following periods:

Not later than one year 51 39 48 37

Later than one year and not 77 38 74 37

later than 5 years

Later than 5 years 0 0 0 0
128 77 122 74

The minimum lease payments do not include rents that are contingent on events taking
place after the lease was entered into, such as adjustments following rent reviews. In

2016/17, no (£nil) contingent rents were payable by the Authority (2015/16 £nil).
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Operating Leases

The Authority has acquired vehicles by entering into operating leases, with typical lives of 7
years. The Authority has also established operating leases in relation to land and buildings
with typical lives between 10 and 20 years. The future minimum lease payments due under
non-cancellable leases in future years are:

148 | Not later than one year 150
281 | Later than one year and not later than 5 years 513
453 | Later than 5 years 128
882 | Total 791

The expenditure charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement during
the year in relation to these leases was:

175 | Minimum lease payments 175
175 | Total 175

Authority as Lessor

Finance Leases
The Authority has no leased out property on a finance lease.
Operating Leases
The Authority leases out land and property under operating leases for the following
purposes:
e For the provision of community services, such as tourism services; and

e For an outdoor education and study centre.

The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable operating leases in
future years are:

55 | Not later than one year 53
191 | Later than one year and not later than 5 years 191
7 | Later than 5 years 8
253 | Total 252

The minimum lease payments receivable do not include rents that are contingent on events
taking place after the lease was entered into, such as adjustments following rent reviews.
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32. Termination Benefits

The Authority terminated the contract of one employee who was made redundant at the
beginning of 2017/18 as part of the Broads Authority’s organisational restructuring. In
terminating these contracts the Authority incurred liabilities of £13,203, of which £nil related
to enhanced pension benefits. This liability was recognised within the Provision Account in
2016/17. No liabilities relating to termination benefits were incurred during 2015/16 and no
provision for any future redundancy payments was established in the year.

33. Defined Benefit Pension Schemes

Participation in Pension Schemes

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers and other employees, the
Broads Authority makes contributions towards the cost of post-employment benefits.
Although these benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, the Authority has
a commitment to make future payments and thus these need to be disclosed as a future
entittement. The Authority participates in one pension scheme:

¢ The Norfolk Pension Fund for civilian employees (the Local Government Pension
Scheme), administered locally by Norfolk County Council. This is a funded defined
benefit final salary scheme, meaning that the Authority and employees pay
contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pension
liabilities with investment assets.

Transactions Relating to Post-Employment Benefits

The Authority recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services
when they are earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as
pensions. However, the charge the Authority is required to make against tolls and Defra
grant is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of post-employment benefits
is reversed out via the Movement in Reserves Statement. The following transactions have
been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and via the
Movement in Reserves Statement during the year:
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Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement

Cost of services:

876 e current service cost 750
Financing and investment income and
expenditure

241 e netinterest expense 187

1,117 | Total post-employment benefits charged to 937
the surplus or deficit on the provision of
services

Other post-employment benefits charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement:
150 e return on plan assets (excluding the (2,709)
amount included in the net interest
expense)
0 e actuarial gains and losses arising on (223)
changes in demographic assumptions
(2,687) e actuarial gains and losses arising on 5,676
changes in financial assumptions
(104) e other experience (578)
(2,641) | Total post-employment benefits charged to 2,166
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement

Movement in Reserves Statement

1,117 e reversal of net charges made to the 937
surplus or deficit on the provision of
services for post-employment benefits in
accordance with the Code

Actual amount charged against the General Fund
balance for pensions in the year:

(574) ¢ employers’ contributions payable to (597)
scheme
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Pension Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet

The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the Authority’s obligation in respect
of its defined benefit plan is as follows:

(25,845)
20,571

(5,274)

Present value of the defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets

Net liability arising from defined benefit
obligation

(31,888)
24,108

(7,780)

Reconciliation of the Movements in the Fair Value of Scheme (Plan) Assets

20,011
641

(150)

574
204
(709)

20,571

Opening fair value of scheme assets

Interest income
Remeasurement gain / (loss):
e The return on plan assets, excluding the
amount included in the net interest

expense
Contributions from employer

Contributions from employees into the scheme
Benefits paid

Closing fair value of scheme assets

20,571
721

2,709

597
198
(688)

24,108
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Reconciliation of Present Value of the Scheme Liabilities (Defined Benefit Obligation)

27,383 | Balance at 1 April 25,845
876 | Current service cost 750
882 | Interest cost 908
204 | Contributions from scheme participants 198

Remeasurement (gains) and losses:
0 e Actuarial gains / losses from changes in (223)
demographic assumptions

(2,687) e Actuarial gains / losses arising from 5,676

changes in financial assumptions
(104) e Other (578)
(709) | Benefits paid (688)
25,845 | Balance at 31 March 31,888
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Local Government Pension Scheme Assets

Local Government Pension Scheme assets comprised:

Cash and cash equivalents:
- 443.9 443.9 e All cash and cash - 694.5 694.5
equivalents
Equity instruments:
1,476.2 - 1,476.2 e Consumer 1,795.4 -| 1,795.4
1,072.0 -| 1,072.0 e Manufacturing 1,401.0 -| 1,401.0
462.0 - 462.0 e Energy and utilities 669.7 - 669.7
1,346.0 -| 1,346.0 ¢ Financial institutions 1,549.5 -| 1,549.5
657.0 - 657.0 e Health and care 728.9 - 728.9
618.7 - 618.7 ¢ Information 689.1 - 689.1
technology
- - - e Other - - -
Bonds (Debt securities):
- - - e Corporate bonds - - -
(investment grade)
- - - e Corporate bonds - - -
(non-investment
grade)
Private equity:
- 13226 | 1,322.6 e All private equity -| 1,506.7 | 1,506.7
Property:
- 2,344.6 2,344.6 e UK property -1 2,250.3| 2,250.3
- 317.0 317.0 e Overseas property - 376.3 376.3
Other investment funds and
unit trusts:
5,282.4 - 5,282.4 e Equities 6,403.0 -| 6,403.0
5,292.2 - 5,292.2 e Bonds 6,093.5 -| 6,093.5
Derivatives:
- - - e Other derivatives - - -
(63.6) - (63.6) e Foreign exchange (49.9) - (49.9)
16,142.9 4,428.1 | 20,571.0 19,280.2 | 4,827.8 | 24,108.0
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Basis for estimating assets and liabilities

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method, an
estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions
about mortality rates, salary levels, etc. The Fund liabilities have been assessed by Hymans
Robertson, an independent firm of actuaries, estimates for the fund being based on the
latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31 March 2016.

The principal assumptions used by the actuary have been:

31 March 2016 31 March 2017

Long term expected rate of return on
assets in the scheme:

3.5% e Equity investments* 2.6%
3.5% ¢ Bonds* 2.6%
3.5% e Property* 2.6%
3.5% e Cash* 2.6%

Mortality assumptions:
Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:

22.1 years e Men 22.1 years
24.3 years e Women 24 .4 years
Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:
24.5 e Men 24.1
26.9 e Women 26.4
2.2% | Rate of inflation 2.4%
3.2% | Rate of increase in salaries 2.7%
2.2% | Rate of increase in pensions 2.4%
3.5% | Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 2.6%

Take up of option to convert annual
pension into retirement lump sum:

50% | Pre- April 2008 service 50%
75% | Post- April 2008 service 75%

*The expected rates of return are set equal to the discount rate (per the revised version of
IAS19).

The estimation of the defined benefit obligation is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set
out in the table above. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
reasonably possible changes of the assumptions at the end of the reporting period and
assumes for each other change that the assumption analysed changes while all the other
assumptions remain constant. The assumptions in longevity, for example, assume that life
expectancy increases or decreases for men and women. In practice, this is unlikely to occur,
and changes in some of the assumptions may be interrelated. The estimations in the
sensitivity analysis have followed the accounting policies for the scheme, i.e. on an actuarial
basis using the projected unit credit method. The methods and types of assumptions used in
preparing the sensitivity analysis below are consistent with those adopted in the previous
period.
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Sensitivity analysis — impact on the defined benefit obligation in the scheme

Change in assumptions at 31 March 2017 Approximate % Approximate
increase to monetary amount

employer liability £000

0.5% decrease in real discount rate 10% 3,319
1 year increase in member life expectancy 3-5% Dependent on
revised assumption

0.5% increase in the salary increase rate 1% 429
0.5% increase in the pension increase rate 9% 2,848

Technigues used to manage risk

The Pensions Committee of Norfolk County Council considers long term liabilities when
setting its investment strategy but does not follow a specific liability matching investment
approach having taken appropriate professional advice. The Committee has agreed an
asset allocation benchmark, a performance target and various controls on the Fund’s
investments. These reflect their views on the appropriate balance between maximising the
long-term return on investments and minimising short-term volatility and risk. The
Committee monitors and reviews the performance of investments and the overall strategy
on a regular basis, supported by advice from professional advisers as required. A large
proportion of the Fund’s assets relate to equities (61% of scheme assets) and bonds (25%).
These percentages are materially the same as the previous year. The scheme also invests
in properties as part of the diversification of the scheme’s investments.

Further details of the Fund's investment approach are outlined in the Statement of
Investment Principles and Funding Strategy Statement that are published on the Fund's
website www.norfolkpensionfund.org.

Impact on the Authority’s cash flows

The objectives of the scheme are to keep employers’ contributions at as constant a rate as
possible. The Administering Authority has agreed a strategy with the scheme’s actuary to
achieve a funding level of 100% over the next 20 years. Funding levels are monitored on an
annual basis. The next triennial valuation will take place on 31 March 2019.

The scheme will need to take account of the national changes to the scheme under the
Public Pension Services Act 2013. Under the Act, the Local Government Pension Scheme in
England and Wales may not provide benefits in relation to service after 31 March 2014. The
Act provides for scheme regulations to be made within a common framework, to establish
new career average revalued earnings schemes to pay pensions and other benefits to
certain public servants.

The Authority anticipates paying contributions of approximately £603,000 to the scheme in
2017/18.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation for scheme members is as
follows:
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o ; Weighted average

Liability split duration

Active members 47.1% 21.7
Deferred members 26.4% 23.4
Pensioner members 26.5% 12.0
Total 100.0% 19.0

34. Contingent Liabilities
The Authority has identified two material contingent liabilities:

Postwick Tip

The Authority uses a site “Postwick Tip,” which is included in the Authority’s Fixed Asset
Register, for the treatment of sediment material from dredging operations. This natural
treatment process involves the drying of sediment so that mercury content is absorbed. As
such there would be no clean-up costs at the end of the site’s life. However, if the Authority
were to stop using the site, there would be a cost of £33,000 to surrender the license. There
is currently no expectation that the Authority will cease using the site. The Authority’s use of
the site is the subject of a bond / financial provision to the Environment Agency in the
amount of £6.4m. This covers the estimated cost of restoration which could arise if there
were to be a catastrophic event at the site. Defra are the guarantors for this bond and the
Authority would not itself anticipate making any payment under the terms of this agreement.

Appeal against Adjacent tolls decision

In 2015/16 the Authority applied to the High Court to appeal against a Crown Court decision
which overturned a conviction against an individual for failing to pay the appropriate toll for
mooring. This was subsequently overturned by the High Court and referred back to the
Crown Court to determine the reasonableness of the charge. The Defendant’s appeal was
heard by the Crown Court on 15 July 2016 who held that the Authority’s toll was reasonable,
thereby concluding the appeal in the Authority’s favour. The Court ordered the Defendant to
pay a contribution towards the Authority’s costs. The Defendant is now seeking a Judicial
Review of the Crown Court itself in relation to this decision. Currently the costs of such
action cannot be determined.
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Investments
Loans and receivables
Total investments

Debtors
Loans and receivables
Total debtors

Borrowings

Financial liabilities at amortised
cost

Total borrowings

Other Long Term Liabilities
Finance lease liabilities
Total other long term liabilities

Creditors

Financial liabilities carried at
contract amount

Total Creditors

0 0 2,760 2,001

0 0 2,760 2,001
10 3 168 222
10 3 168 222
152 138 15 15
152 138 15 15
74 37 48 37
74 37 48 37
0 0 1,896 1,724

0 0 1,896 1,724

35. Financial Instruments

The following categories of financial instrument are carried in the Balance Sheet:
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Income, Expense Gains and Losses

40 0 40 | Interest Expense 36 0 36

40 0 40 | Total expense in Surplus or Deficit on the 36 0 36
Provision of Services

0 (23) (23) | Interest Income 0 (15) (15)

0 (23) (23) | Total Income in Surplus or Deficit on the 0 (15) (15)
Provision of Services

40 (23) 17 | Net (gain) / loss for the year 36 (15) 21
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Fair Values of Assets and Liabilities

Financial liabilities, financial assets represented by loans and receivables and long term
debtors and creditors are carried in the Balance Sheet at amortised cost. Their fair value
can be assessed by calculating the present value of the cash flows that will take place over
the remaining term of the instruments. These valuations are all classified as Level 2, where
market prices are not available, with valuation techniques using inputs based significantly on
observable market data. The following assumptions should be noted:

o Fixed interest rate of 4.82% over the 20 year PWLB loan;
o No early repayment or impairment is recognised; and
e The fair value of trade and other receivables is taken to be invoices or billed amount.

The fair values calculated are as follows:

Financial Liabilities 227 280 175

226

Long term Debtors 10 10 3

Available for sale assets and assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are
carried in the balance sheet at their fair value. These fair values are based on public
guotations where there is an active market for the instrument.

Short term debtors and creditors are carried at cost as this is a fair approximation of their
value.

36. Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments

The Authority’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

Credit Risk The possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due
to the Authority.
Liquidity Risk The possibility that the Authority might not have funds

available to meet its commitments to make payments.

Market Risk The possibility that financial loss might arise for the Authority
as a result of changes in such measures as interest rates and
stock market investments.
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Foreign Exchange Risk The possibility that financial loss might arise for the Authority
as a result of changes in the exchange rate (GBP and Euro).

The Broads Authority’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the resources
available to fund services.

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit
exposures to customers. Deposits are only made in line with the Treasury Management
Strategy which requires that deposits are not made with banks and financial institutions
unless they are highly rated. Therefore the Broads Authority does not consider there to be
any quantifiable risk in relation to investments.

The Authority’s standard terms and conditions for payment of invoices are 30 days from
invoice date. The Authority does not allow credit for customers, and only a small proportion
of invoices were overdue and outstanding as at 31 March 2017 for which a bad debt
provision had not been put in place.

Liquidity Risk

The current three year agreement from DEFRA means the Broads Authority has some
certainty over the next few years. Longer term uncertainty still remains and future changes
in government brings further uncertainty whether future three-year funding will be available.
Given the significant cash balances there is no significant risk that it will be unable to meet
its commitments under financial instruments. All financial liabilities are due to be repaid
within one year with the exception of the 20 year PWLB loan. Therefore there is no risk of
having to borrow at unfavourable rates in future to replenish borrowings.

Market Risk
With the exception of the PWLB loan, the Broads Authority is debt free. Excess cash is
invested at variable or fixed money market rates depending on forecasts for interest rates

under the period of review.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Authority’s Annual Investment and Capital Financing Strategy for 2016/17 states that if
the Authority enters into any contractual arrangements above £100,000 which involve
foreign currency, the advice of the Chief Financial Officer will be sought on the advisability of
hedging the exchange risk before entering into the contract.
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Broads Authority Statement of Accounts
Notes to the Statement of Accounts

37. Navigation Income and Expenditure Account

3,310 (3,142) 168 | Navigation Fund 3,525 (3,238) 287
3,310 (3,142) 168 | Net cost of services 3,525 (3,238) 287
(1) | Other operating expenditure (2)
122 | Financing and investment income 101
and expenditure
289 | (Surplus) or deficit on the 386
provision of services
(22) | (Surplus) or deficit on revaluation of (242)
fixed assets
(1,151) | Actuarial (gains) / losses on pension 981

assets / liabilities

Total comprehensive income and

(884) expenditure

1,125
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Broads Authority Statement of Accounts
Glossary of Terms

Glossary of Terms

ACCOUNTING PERIOD
The period of time covered by the accounts, a period of twelve months commencing on 1
April. The end of the accounting period is the Balance Sheet date.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The basis on which an organisation’s financial statements are based to ensure that those
statements ‘present fairly’ the financial position and transactions of that organisation.
Accounting concepts include ‘materiality’, ‘accruals’, ‘going concern’ and ‘primacy of
legislative requirements’.

ACCRUALS

Sums included in the final accounts to recognise revenue and capital income and
expenditure earned or incurred in the financial year, but for which actual payment had not
been received or made as at 31 March.

ACTUARIAL GAINS AND LOSSES

These may arise on both defined benefit pension scheme liabilities and assets. A gain
represents a positive difference between the actuarial assumptions and actual experience
(e.g. liabilities during the period were lower than estimated). A loss represents a negative
difference between the actuarial assumptions and actual experience (e.g. liabilities during
the period were higher than estimated).

AMORTISATION
The measure of the wearing out, consumption, or other reduction in the useful economic life
of an intangible long term asset.

AMORTISED COST
This is cost that has been adjusted for amortisation.

ASSET
An item owned by the Authority which has a value, for example, premises, vehicles,
equipment, cash.

BUDGET

The statement of the Authority’s policy expressed in financial terms usually for the current or
forthcoming financial year. The Revenue Budget covers running expenses (see also:
revenue income and expenditure), and the Capital Budget plans for asset acquisitions and
replacements (see also: capital income and expenditure).

CAPITAL INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
Expenditure on the acquisition of a long term asset, which lasts normally for more than one
year, or expenditure which adds to the life or value of an existing long term asset.

CAPITAL FINANCING

Funds raised to pay for capital expenditure. There are various methods of financing capital
expenditure including borrowing, leasing, direct revenue financing, usable capital receipts,
capital grants, capital contributions, revenue reserves and earmarked reserves.

CASH EQUIVALENTS

These are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash
equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short term cash commitments rather than
for investment purposes.
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Glossary of Terms

CHARTERED INSTITUTE OF PUBLIC FINANCE AND ACCOUNTANCY (CIPFA)

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) is the professional
accountancy institute that sets the standards for the public sector. CIPFA publishes the
Accounting Codes of Practice for local government.

CODE OF PRACTICE ON LOCAL AUTHORITY ACCOUNTING (the Code)

Based on International Financial Reporting Standards, the Code aims to achieve consistent
financial reporting between all English local authorities and National Park Authorities. It is
based on generally accepted accounting standards and practices.

COMMUNITY ASSETS
Community assets are assets that the Authority intends to hold for an unlimited period of
time, have no determinable finite useful life and may have restrictions on their disposal.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Potential costs that the Authority may incur in the future because of something that
happened in the past.

CREDITORS
Amounts owed by the Authority for goods and services provided for which payment has not
been made at the end of the financial year.

CURRENT VALUE
This is the cost of an asset if bought in the current year.

DEBTORS
Sums of money due to the Authority but not received at the end of the financial year.

DEFICIT
Arises when expenditure exceeds income or when expenditure exceeds available budget.

DEPRECIATION
The measure of the wearing out, consumption, or other reduction in the useful economic life
of a long term asset.

EXPECTED RETURN ON PENSION ASSETS

For a funded defined benefit scheme, this is the average rate of return, including both
income and changes in fair value but net of scheme expenses, which is expected over the
remaining life of the related obligation on the actual assets held by the scheme.

FAIR VALUE
The price at which the Authority could buy or sell an asset in a transaction with another
organisation, less any grants received towards buying or using that asset.

FINANCIAL ASSET
A right to future economic benefits.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
Any contract that gives rise to a financial asset in one organisation and a financial liability in
another.

FINANCIAL LIABILITY
An obligation to transfer economic benefits.
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Glossary of Terms

FINANCE LEASE

A lease which transfers all of the risks and rewards of ownership of a long term asset to the
lessee. Where these leases are entered into, the assets acquired have to be included with
the Authority’s long term assets in the balance sheet at the market value of the asset
involved (see also: operating lease).

LONG TERM ASSETS
Assets that yield benefits to the Authority and the services it provides for a period of more
than one year.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS
Grants paid by the Government. These can be for general expenditure or a particular
service or initiative.

HISTORIC COST
The cost of an asset when originally bought.

IAS19 RETIREMENT BENEFITS

An International Financial Reporting Standard which requires local authorities to reflect the
true value of the assets and liabilities relating to the Pension Fund in their financial
statements.

IMPAIRMENT

A reduction in the value of a long term asset to below its carrying amount in the Balance
Sheet. Impairment of an asset is caused either by a consumption of economic benefits e.g.
physical damage (fire at a building) or a deterioration in the quality of the service provided
by the asset, or by a general fall in prices of that particular asset or type of asset.

INFRASTRUCTURE ASSETS

Long term assets that are inalienable, expenditure on which is recoverable only by
continued use of the asset created. Examples of infrastructure assets are highways and
footpaths.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Intangible assets are non-financial long term assets that do not have physical substance but
are identifiable and are controlled by the Authority through custody or legal rights.

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRS)

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) are issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board. All local authorities apply international accounting regulations
when preparing accounts. The Authority’s accounts follow these standards where they apply
to local authorities.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Assets that the Authority owns but which are not used in the direct delivery of services.

LIABILITY
An obligation to transfer economic benefits. Current liabilities are usually payable within one
year.

MARKET PRICE
This is the price at which another organisation is prepared to buy or sell an asset.

MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION (MRP)
The minimum sum charged to the Authority’s revenue account each year to provide for the
repayment of loans.
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Glossary of Terms

NET BOOK VALUE
The amount at which long term assets are included in the Balance Sheet, i.e. their historical
costs or current value less the cumulative amounts provided for depreciation.

NON DISTRIBUTED COSTS

These are specific overheads relating to unused assets and certain pension costs for
employees’ service in previous years. These are not allocated to service departments
because they do not relate to the in-year cost of providing the service.

OPERATING LEASE

A lease whereby the ownership of the asset remains with the leasing company and an
annual rent is charged to the relevant service. The assets involved are not included within
the Authority’s long term assets in the balance sheet (see also: finance lease).

OUTTURN
The actual amount spent in the financial year.

PENSION FUND
A fund which makes pension payments on retirement of its participants.

PROVISION
An amount set aside to provide for a liability, which is likely to be incurred, but where the
exact amount and the date on which it will arise are uncertain.

RESERVES
An amount set aside for a specific purpose in one financial year and carried forward to meet
expenditure in future years.

REVENUE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

Expenditure which relates to day to day expenses, such as salaries and wages, general
running expenses and the minimum revenue provision. Revenue income includes charges
made for goods and services.

SURPLUS
Arises when income exceeds expenditure or when expenditure is less than available budget.

VALUE ADDED TAX (VAT)
A tax on consumer expenditure, collected on business transactions at each stage in the
supply, but ultimately borne by the final customer.

VARIANCE / VARIATION
A difference between budgeted income or expenditure and actual outturn, also referred to
as an ‘over-’ or ‘underspend’.
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Broads Authority

Financial Scrutiny and Audit
Committee

25 July 2017

Agenda Item No 9

Annual Audit Results

Report by Chief Financial Officer

Summary: This report appends the Annual Audit Results for 2016/17
prepared by the External Auditors, Ernst & Young.

Recommendation:
(i)
(if)

That the Annual Audit Results 2016/17 be noted.

That the Letter of Representation in connection with the
Audit of the Financial Statements for 2016/17 be signed
by the Chief Financial Officer and the Chairman of the
FSAC.

1. Annual Audit Results 2016/17

1.1. The External Audit of the Authority’s 2016/17 Statement of Accounts was
undertaken during June 2017 and the final Audit Results by Ernst & Young for
2016/17 is appended.

1.2. The External Auditors will be attending the meeting to present this item and
answer any questions.

1.3. Appendix 2 to this report is the draft Letter of Representation in connection
with the Audit of the Financial Statements for 2016/17, which is presented for
consideration and approval by the Committee in order for it to be signed and
sent to the External Auditors.

Background papers:
Author:

Date of report:

Broads Plan Objectives:

Appendices:

Statement of Accounts 2016/17
Annual Governance Statement 2016/17

Emma Krelle
10 July 2017

None

APPENDIX 1 — Annual Audit Results 2016/17
APPENDIX 2 — Draft Letter of Representation 2016/17
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Broads Authority
Audit results report

Year ended 31 March 2017




Private and Confidential 10 July 1017
Dear Financial Scrutiny and Audit Committee members

We have substantially completed our audit of the Broads Authority (the Authority) for the year ended
31 March 2017.

Subject to concluding the outstanding matters listed in our report, we confirm that we expect to issue
an unqualified audit opinion on the financial statements in the form in section 3, before the statutory
deadline of 30th September 2017. We also have no matters to report on your arrangements to
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in your use of resources.

This report is intended solely for the use of the Financial Scrutiny and Audit Committee, other
members of the Authority, and senior management. It should not be used for any other purpose or
given to any other party without obtaining our written consent.

We would like to thank your officers for their help during the engagement.

We look forward to discussing with you any aspects of this report or any other issues arising from our
work.

Yours faithfully

Kevin Suter
Executive Director

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

United Kingdom
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In April 2015 Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued “Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available from the via the PSAA website (www.PSAA.co.uk).

The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be
expected of the audited body in certain areas.

The “Terms of Appointment (updated September 2015)” issued by the PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and
in legislation, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature..

This report is made solely to the Financial Scrutiny and Audit Committee, other members of the Authority and management of the Broads Authority in accordance with the statement of responsibilities. Our work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the Financial Scrutiny and Audit Committee, other members of the Authority and management of the Broads Authority those matters we are required to state to them in this report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Financial Scrutiny and Audit Committee, other members of the Authority and management of the Broads Authority for this report or for

the opinions we have formed. It should not be provided to any third-party without obtaining our written consent.
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E/ Executive Summary

Overview of the audit

Status of the audit

Scope and materiality

In our Audit Plan presented to the 7 February 2017 Financial Scrutiny and Audit Committee meeting, we
gave you an overview of how we intended to carry out our responsibilities as your auditor. We carried out
our audit in accordance with this plan.

We planned our procedures using a materiality of £150 thousand. We reassessed this using the actual
year-end figures, which have increased this amount to £158 thousand. The threshold for reporting audit
differences has remained the same at £8 thousand. The basis of our assessment of materiality has
remained consistent with prior years at 2% of gross expenditure.

We also identified areas where misstatement at a lower level than materiality that might influence the
reader and developed a specific audit strategy for them. They include:

- Remuneration disclosures including any senior officer’'s remunerations, exit packages and termination
benefits.

- Related party transactions.
- Members’ allowances.

We have substantially completed our audit of the Broads Authority financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 and have performed the procedures outlined in
our Audit plan. Subject to satisfactory completion of the following outstanding items we expect to issue an unqualified opinion on the Authority’s financial statements in
the form which appears at Section 3. However until work is complete, further amendments may arise:

- receipt of bank confirmations;

« review of the final version of the financial statements;

- completion of subsequent events review;

- receipt of the signed management representation letter; and

- Final Director review and sign off procedures.

Subject to the satisfactory completion of the steps set out above, there are no unadjusted or adjusted audit differences arising from our audit.
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?/ Executive Summary

Executive summary (continued)

Audit differences

There are no unadjusted or adjusted audit differences arising from our audit.

Areas of audit focus

Our Audit Plan identified key areas of focus for our audit of the Broads Authority’s financial statements. This report sets out our observations and conclusions, including
our views on areas which might be conservative, and where there is potential risk and exposure. We summarise our consideration of these matters, and any others
identified, in the "Key Audit Issues" section, Section 2, of this report.

We ask you to review these and any other matters in this report to ensure:

- There are no other considerations or matters that could have an impact on these issues

= You agree with the resolution of the issue

- There are no other significant issues to be considered.

There are no matters, apart from those reported by management or disclosed in this report, which we believe should be brought to the attention of the Financial
Scrutiny and Audit Committee.

Value for money

We have considered your arrangements to take informed decisions; deploy resources in a sustainable manner; and work with partners and other third parties. In our
Audit Plan we identified the following significant risk:

Sustainable resource deployment - Medium term financial planning.

We have no matters to report about your arrangements to secure economy efficiency and effectiveness in your use of resources.
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?/ Executive Summary

Executive summary (continued)

Other reporting issues

We have reviewed the information presented in the Annual Governance Statement for consistency with our knowledge of the Authority. We have no matters to report as a
result of this work.

We have performed the procedures required by the National Audit Office (NAO) on the Whole of Government Accounts submission. We have no matters to report.

We have no other matters to report.

Control observations

We have adopted a fully substantive approach and therefore have not tested the operation of controls.

Independence

Please refer to Appendix B for our update on Independence.
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Areas of Audit Focus

Audit issues and approach:

: What is the risk? What did we do?
P —

- We tested the appropriateness of journal entries recorded in the
general ledger and other adjustments made in preparing the
financial statements (using our data analytics tool to search on
specific phrases in the journal narrative and other criteria such
as days of the week posted);

- We reviewed accounting estimates (e.g. property, plant and
equipment valuation and pension liability valuations) for

. We identi q dto this fraud risk dit evidence of management bias; and
BUlTES: BLE @il ERUE VRS2 enZ;ge:n:Z?n respondto this fraudrisicon every audi - We evaluated the business rationale for any significant unusual

. - . transactions.
We have not identified any material
weaknesses in controls or evidence of
material management override.

Risk of management override

As identified in ISA 240, management is in a unique
position to perpetrate fraud because of its ability to
manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and to
prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding
controls that otherwise seem to be operating effectively.

We have not identified any instances of
inappropriate judgements being 00— ______ .

. 1
applied. . Significant Risk |
1

We did not identify any other
transactions during our audit which
appeared unusual or outside the
Authority‘s normal course of business.
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Audit Report

Draft audit report

Our opinion on the financial statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE BROADS AUTHORITY
Opinion on the Authority’s financial statements

We have audited the financial statements of the Broads Authority for the year ended 31 March 2017 under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. The financial statements
comprise the:

Movement in Reserves Statement;

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement;

Balance Sheet;

Cash Flow Statement; and

the related notes 1 to 37 and the Expenditure and Funding Analysis

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2016/17.

This report is made solely to the members of the Broads Authority, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and for no other purpose, as
set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. To the fullest extent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and the Authority’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

Respective responsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts set out on page 8, the Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the
Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
the United Kingdom 2016/17, and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Authority’s circumstances and have
been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Chief Financial Officer; and the overall presentation of the
financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Statement of Accounts 2016/17 to identify material inconsistencies with the audited
financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of
performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.
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Audit Report

Draft audit report (continued)

Our opinion on the financial statements

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements:
give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Broads Authority as at 31 March 2017 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended; and
have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17.

Opinion on other matters

In our opinion, the information given in the Statement of Accounts 2016/17 for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial
statements.

Matters on which we report by exception

We report to you if:
- in our opinion the annual governance statement is misleading or inconsistent with other information forthcoming from the audit or our knowledge of the Council;
we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014;
we make written recommendations to the audited body under Section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014;
we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014;
we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014; or
we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.

We have nothing to report in these respects

Conclusion on the Broads Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources

Authority’s responsibilities

The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and
governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.

Auditor’s responsibilities

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to satisfy ourselves that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. The Code of Audit Practice issued by the National Audit Office (NAO) requires us to report to you our conclusion relating to proper

arrangements.
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Audit Report

Draft audit report (continued)

Our opinion on the financial statements

We report if significant matters have come to our attention which prevent us from concluding that the Authority has put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in its use of resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively.

Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the guidance on the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General
(C&AG) in November 2015, as to whether the Broads Authority had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and
sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. The Comptroller and Auditor General determined this criterion as that necessary for us to consider under the Code of Audit
Practice in satisfying ourselves whether the Broads Authority put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year
ended 31 March 2017.

We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk assessment, we undertook such work as we considered necessary to form a view on whether, in
all significant respects, the Broads Authority had put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

Conclusion

On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance issued by the C&AG in November 2015, we are satisfied that, in all significant respects, the Broads Authority put in place
proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2017.

Certificate
We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts of the Broads Authority in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code

of Audit Practice issued by the National Audit Office.

Kevin Suter (senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Appointed Auditor
Luton

Date

The maintenance and integrity of the Broads Authority web site is the responsibility of the directors; the work carried out by the auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the
auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the financial statementslsp2e they were initially presented on the web site.
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124 Audit Differences
Audit differences

In any audit, we may identify misstatements between amounts we believe should be recorded in the financial statements and disclosures and amounts actually recorded.
These differences are classified as ‘known’ or ‘judgemental’. Known differences represent items that can be accurately quantified and relate to a definite set of facts or

circumstances. Judgemental differences generally involve estimation and relate to facts or circumstances that are uncertain or open to interpretation.

Summary of adjusted differences

We have no adjusted misstatements greater than £118,000 or unadjusted misstatements greater than £8,000 to report. All misstatements identified have been corrected
by management, there being no uncorrected misstatements.

154

15



b 1
T "?%."""«- "
i f:e%;{;ggax fg“‘ R

g
&l

e
e
+

B

A8k
i .

fea

G i M
- b pad s
s A e pimmn ) 1 ¢ I s
g o ba ot =
; WG] & “",l', g 7,

L™ N p




=2 Value for Money

Value for Money

Informed
decision making

Proper arrangements for

securing value for money

Sustainable Working with
resource partners and
deployment third parties

) g

Overall conclusion

Economy, efficiency and effectiveness

We must consider whether you have ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in your use of resources. This is known as our value for money conclusion.

Proper arrangements are defined by statutory guidance issued by the National Audit Office. They
comprise your arrangements to:

- take informed decisions;
- deploy resources in a sustainable manner; and
- work with partners and other third parties.

In considering your proper arrangements, we use the CIPFA/SOLACE framework for local government to
ensure that our assessment is made against an already existing mandatory framework which you use in
documents such as your Annual Governance Statement.

We identified one significant risk around these arrangements. The table below presents our findings in response to the risks in our Audit Plan.

We therefore expect to have no matters to report about your arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in your use of resources.
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VFM risks

We are only required to determine whether there is any risk that we consider significant within the Code of Audit Practice, where risk is defined as:
“A matter is significant if, in the auditor’s professional view, it is reasonable to conclude that the matter would be of interest to the audited body or the wider public”

Our risk assessment supports the planning of enough work to deliver a safe conclusion on your arrangements to secure value for money, and enables us to determine the

nature and extent of any further work needed. If we do not identify a significant risk we do not need to carry out further work.

The table below presents the findings of our work in response to the risks areas in our Audit Plan.

What is the significant VFM risk?

What arrangements did this affect?

What are our findings?

Medium term financial planning

To date the Authority has responded well to
financial pressures, continuing economic
downturn and uncertainties of funding.

However, the Authority have forecast a
cumulative budget gap of £100k by 2019/20,
there remains significant financial pressure
on the Authority’s budget and Medium Term
Financial Strategy (MTFS) during the current
and the coming years.

Management have taken the view that
medium term financial planning will involve
the use of reserves to support any budget
shortfall.

Deploying resources in a sustainable manner

Our review of the 2016/17 outturn, the medium term

financial plan and the budget setting process has not identified

any issues with the Authority’s response to the changes in
funding and assess the arrangements put in place to be
adequate.
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@ Other reporting issues
Other reporting issues

Consistency of other information published with the financial statements, including the Annual Governance Statement

We must give an opinion on the consistency of the financial and non-financial information in the Statement of Accounts 2016/17 with the audited financial
statements.

We must also review the Annual Governance Statement for completeness of disclosures, consistency with other information from our work, and whether it
complies with relevant guidance.

Financial information in the Statement of Accounts 2016/17 and published with the financial statements was consistent with the audited financial statements.

We have reviewed the Annual Governance Statement and can confirm it is consistent with other information from our audit of the financial statements and we
have no other matters to report.

Whole of Government Accounts

Alongside our work on the financial statements, we also review and report to the National Audit Office on your Whole of Government Accounts return. The extent
of our review, and the nature of our report, is specified by the National Audit Office.

We have no issues to raise.
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@ Other reporting issues
Other reporting issues

Other powers and duties

We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to consider whether to report on any matter that comes to our attention in the course of the
audit, either for the Authority to consider it or to bring it to the attention of the public (i.e. “a report in the public interest”). We did not identify any issues which
required us to issue a report in the public interest.

We also have a duty to make written recommendations to the Authority, copied to the Secretary of State, and take action in accordance with our responsibilities
under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. We did not identify any issues.

Other matters

As required by ISA (UK&I) 260 and other ISAs specifying communication requirements, we must tell you significant findings from the audit and other matters if they
are significant to your oversight of the Authority’s financial reporting process. They include the following:

- Significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures;
- Any significant difficulties encountered during the audit;

- Any significant matters arising from the audit that were discussed with management;

- Written representations we have requested;

- Expected modifications to the audit report;

- Any other matters significant to overseeing the financial reporting process;

- Related parties;

- External confirmations;

- Going concern; and

- Consideration of laws and regulations.

We have requested a management representation letter to gain management’s confirmation in relation to a number of matters. Appendix C sets out our request for
these representations.

We have no other exceptions to report.
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g@ Assessment of Control Environment

Assessment of control environment

Financial controls

It is the responsibility of the Authority to develop and implement systems of internal financial control and to put in place proper arrangements to monitor their adequacy
and effectiveness in practice. Our responsibility as your auditor is to consider whether the Authority has put adequate arrangements in place to satisfy itself that the
systems of internal financial control are both adequate and effective in practice.

As part of our audit of the financial statements, we obtained an understanding of internal control sufficient to plan our audit and determine the nature, timing and
extent of testing performed. As we have adopted a fully substantive approach, we have therefore not tested the operation of controls.

Although our audit was not designed to express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control we are required to communicate to you significant deficiencies in
internal control.

We have not identified any significant deficiencies in the design or operation of an internal control that might result in a material misstatement in your financial
statements of which you are not aware.
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@ Appendix A

Required communications with the Financial Scrutiny and Audit
Committee

There are certain communications that we must provide to the Financial Scrutiny and Audit Committees of UK clients. We have done this by:

Our Reporting to you

Required communications |i What is reported? 9 When and where
Terms of engagement Confirmation by the Financial Scrutiny and Audit Committee of acceptance of terms of The statement of responsibilities serves as
engagement as written in the engagement letter signed by both parties. the formal terms of engagement between
the PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited
bodies.
Planning and audit approach Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, including any limitations. February 2017
Audit Plan

Significant findings fromthe -« Our view of the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including accounting July 2017
audit policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures Audit Results Report

- Any significant difficulties encountered during the audit

- Any significant matters arising from the audit that were discussed with management
- Written representations we have requested

- Expected modifications to the audit report

- Any other matters significant to overseeing the financial reporting process

Going concern Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to No conditions or events were identified,
continue as a going concern, including: either individually or together to raise any
» Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty doubt about the Broads Authority’s ability to
» Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation and continue for the 12 months from the date of
presentation of the financial statements our report.

» The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements
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Required communications

Misstatements

Fraud

Related parties

Subsequent events

Other information

External confirmations

v VvV Vv

|i What is reported?

Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion
The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods
A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected
Significant corrected misstatements, in writing

Asking the Financial Scrutiny and Audit Committee whether they have knowledge of any
actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the Authority

Unless all those charged with governance are involved in managing the entity, any fraud
identified or information obtained indicating that a fraud may exist involving:

(a) management;
(b) employees with significant roles in internal control; or
(c) others where the fraud results in a material misstatement in the financial statements.

A discussion of any other matters related to fraud, relevant to Financial Scrutiny and
Audit Committee responsibility.

Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the Authority’s related parties
including, where applicable:

| 2

v vV VvV Y

Non-disclosure by management

Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions
Disagreement over disclosures

Non-compliance with laws and/or regulations

Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity

Where appropriate, asking the Financial Scrutiny and Audit Committee whether any
subsequent events have occurred that might affect the financial statements.

Where material inconsistencies are identified in other information included in the
document containing the financial statements, but management refuses to make the
revision.

Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations
We were unable to obtain relevant and reliable au%iiGtgvidence from other procedures.

Our Reporting to you

v When and where

July 2017
Audit Results Report

We have asked management and those
charged with governance about
arrangements to prevent or detect fraud. We
have not become aware of any fraud or
illegal acts during our audit.

We have no matters to report.

We have asked management and those
charged with governance. We have no
matters to report.

We have no matters to report.

We have received all requested
confirmations.
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Our Reporting to you

Required communications |i What is reported? v When and where
Consideration of laws » Audit findings of non-compliance where it is material and believed to be intentional. This We have asked management and those
and/or regulations communication is subject to compliance with legislation on “tipping off” charged with governance. We have not
» Asking the Financial Scrutiny and Audit Committee about possible instances of non- identified any material instances or non-
compliance with laws and/or regulations that may have a material effect on the financial ~ compliance with laws and regulations]

statements, and known to the Financial Scrutiny and Audit Committee.

Significant deficiencies in » Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit. July 17
internal controls identified Audit Results Report
during the audit

Independence Communication of all significant facts and matters that have a bearing on EY’s objectivity and February 17 - Audit Plan

independence. July 17 - Audit Results Report
Communicating key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of
independence and objectivity such as:

» The principal threats

» Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness

» An overall assessment of threats and safeguards
>

Information on the firm’s general policies and processes for maintaining objectivity and
independence

Communications whenever significant judgments are made about threats to objectivity or
independence and the appropriateness of safeguards,

Fee Reporting Breakdown of fee information when the audit plan is agreed February 17 - Audit Plan
Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit July 17 - Audit Results Report
Any non-audit work
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Independence

As part of our reporting on our independence, we set out below a summary of
the fees paid for the year ended 31 Month 2017.

We confirm that there are no changes in our assessment of independence since

our confirmation in our audit planning board report dated January 2017. We confirm that we have not undertaken non-audit work outside the PSAA

. . . . Code requirements.
We complied with the APB Ethical Standards and the requirements of the PSAA’s

Terms of Appointment. In our professional judgement the firm is independent and

the objectivity of the audit engagement partner and audit staff has not been Description Final Fee  Planned Fee Zamls Ty
compromised within the meaning of regulatory and professional requirements. 2{“5“: 2015“: 2015“:

We consider that our independence in this context is a matter which you should
review, as well as us. It is important that you and your Financial Scrutiny and
Audit Committee consider the facts known to you and come to a view. If you
would like to discuss any matters concerning our independence, we will be
pleased to do this at the meeting of the Financial Scrutiny and Audit Committee
on 25 July 2017.

Total Audit Fee - Code work 13,943 13,943 13,943
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EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

About EY

EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction and advisory
services. The insights and quality services we deliver help build
trust and confidence in the capital markets and in economies the
world over. We develop outstanding leaders who team to deliver on
our promises to all of our stakeholders. In so doing, we play a
critical role in building a better working world for our people, for
our clients and for our communities.

EY refers to the global organization, and may refer to one or more,
of the member firms of Ernst & Young Global Limited, each of
which is a separate legal entity. Ernst & Young Global Limited, a UK
company limited by guarantee, does not provide services to
clients. For more information about our organization, please visit
ey.com.

© 2017 EYGM Limited.
All Rights Reserved.

ED None

This material has been prepared for general informational purposes only and is not
intended to be relied upon as accounting, tax, or other professional advice. Please refer
to your advisors for specific advice.

ey.com
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‘& Authority
Yare House 62-64 Thorpe Road
Norwich Norfolk NR1 1RY

tel 01603 610734

broads@broads-authority.gov.uk
www.broads-authority.gov.uk

Kevin Suter

Ernst & Young

400 Capability Green
Luton

Bedfordshire

LU1 3LU

Date Our ref Your ref

28 July 2017
Dear Kevin,

Broads Authority
Letter of Representations

This letter of representations is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of
the Broads Authority (“the Authority”) for the year ended 31 March 2017. We recognise that obtaining
representations from us concerning the information contained in this letter is a significant procedure in
enabling you to form an opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Broads Authority as of 31 March 2017 and of its income and expenditure for
the year then ended in accordance with CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17.

We understand that the purpose of your audit of our financial statements is to express an opinion
thereon and that your audit was conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing,
which involves an examination of the accounting system, internal control and related data to the
extent you considered necessary in the circumstances, and is not designed to identify - nor
necessarily be expected to disclose - all fraud, shortages, errors and other irregularities, should any
exist.

Accordingly, we make the following representations, which are true to the best of our knowledge and
belief, having made such inquiries as we considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately
informing ourselves:

A. Financial Statements and Financial Records

We have fulfilled our responsibilities, under the relevant statutory authorities, for the preparation of the
financial statements in accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and CIPFA
LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17

We acknowledge, as members of management of the Authority, our responsibility for the fair
presentation of the financial statements. We believe the financial statements referred to above give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance (or results of operations) and cash
flows of the Authority in accordance with the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17 We have approved the financial statements.
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The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Authority’s financial statements
are appropriately described in the financial statements.

As members of management of the Authority, we believe that the Authority has a system of internal
controls adequate to enable the preparation of accurate financial statements in accordance with the
CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17 that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

B. Fraud

We acknowledge that we are responsible for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal
controls to prevent and detect fraud.

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may
be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

3 We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud involving management or other
employees who have a significant role in the Authority’s internal controls over financial reporting. In
addition, we have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud involving other employees in which
the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. We have no knowledge of any
allegations of financial improprieties, including fraud or suspected fraud, (regardless of the source or
form and including without limitation, any allegations by “whistleblowers”) which could result in a
misstatement of the consolidated or council financial statements or otherwise affect the financial
reporting of the Authority.

C. Compliance with Laws and Regulations

% We have disclosed to you all identified or suspected non-compliance with laws and
regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements.

D. Information Provided and Completeness of Information and Transactions
We have provided you with:

Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the financial
statements such as records, documentation and other matters;

Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit; and

Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary to obtain
audit evidence.

All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the
financial statements.

We have made available to you all minutes of the meetings of the Authority, and committees (or
summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared) held through
the year to the most recent meeting of the Financial Scrutiny and Audit Committee on the following
date: 25 July 2017.

We confirm the completeness of information provided regarding the identification of related parties.
We have disclosed to you the identity of the Authority’s related parties and all related party
relationships and transactions of which we are aware, including sales, purchases, loans, transfers of
assets, liabilities and services, leasing arrangements, guarantees, non-monetary transactions and
transactions for no consideration for the year ended, as well as related balances due to or from such
parties at the year end. These transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in
the financial statements.
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We believe that the significant assumptions we used in making accounting estimates, including those
measured at fair value, are reasonable

We have disclosed to you, and the Authority has complied with, all aspects of contractual agreements
that could have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance, including
all covenants, conditions or other requirements of all outstanding debt.

E. Liabilities and Contingencies

All liabilities and contingencies, including those associated with guarantees, whether written or oral,
have been disclosed to you and are appropriately reflected in the financial statements.

We have informed you of all outstanding and possible litigation and claims, whether or not they have
been discussed with legal counsel.

We have recorded and/or disclosed, as appropriate, all liabilities related litigation and claims, both
actual and contingent. There are no guarantees that we have given to third parties.

F. Subsequent Events

1. Other than that described in Note 6 to the financial statements, there have been no events
subsequent to year end which require adjustment of or disclosure in the consolidated and council
financial statements or notes thereto.

G. Other information

1. We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises of the Annual Governance Statement and Narrative Statement.

2 We confirm that the content contained within the other information is consistent with the
financial statements.

H. Accounting Estimates
Valuation of Pension Asset/Liabilities and Property, Plant and Equipment Estimates

We believe that the measurement processes, including related assumptions and models, used to
determine the accounting estimates have been consistently applied and are appropriate in the context
of CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17

We confirm that the significant assumptions used in making the valuation of Pension Asset/Liabilities
and Property, Plant and Equipment appropriately reflect our intent and ability to carry out specific
courses of action on behalf of the entity.

We confirm that the disclosures made in the financial statements with respect to the accounting
estimates are complete and made in accordance with in the context of CIPFA LASAAC Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17

We confirm that no adjustments are required to the accounting estimates and disclosures in the
financial statements due to subsequent events.

I. Use of the Work of a Specialist

We agree with the findings of the specialists that we engaged to evaluate the valuation of non-current
assets and have adequately considered the qualifications of the specialists in determining the
amounts and disclosures included in the financial statements and the underlying accounting records.
We did not give or cause any instructions to be given to the specialists with respect to the values or
amounts derived in an attempt to bias their work, and we are not otherwise aware of any matters that
have had an effect on the independence or objectivity of the specialists.
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J. Retirement benefits

On the basis of the process established by us and having made appropriate enquiries, we are
satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the scheme liabilities are consistent with our
knowledge of the business. All significant retirement benefits and all settlements and curtailments
have been identified and properly accounted for.

Yours faithfully,

(Chief Financial Officer)

(Chairman of the Financial Scrutiny and Audit Committee)
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Broads Authority

Financial Scrutiny and Audit
Committee

25 July 2017

Agenda Item No 10

Investment Strategy and Performance Annual Report 2016/17
Report by Chief Financial Officer

Summary: This report sets out details of the Authority’s investment of
surplus cash, including the investment principles adopted and
performance during the twelve months to 31 March 2017.

Recommendation: That the current arrangements regarding the investment of
surplus cash are noted.

1 Introduction

1.1 It has been agreed that a six monthly report on the performance of the
Authority’s investments will be presented to the Financial Scrutiny and Audit
Committee, with a fuller ‘year end analysis’ at the July meeting, and a mid
year progress report at the appropriate half year meeting.

2 Investment Principles and Performance

2.1  The investment of surplus cash was governed by a Service Level Agreement
between the Broads Authority and Broadland District Council. In the past the
agreement served the Authority well due to the previous limited treasury
management knowledge and staff resources that existed.

2.2 Surplus cash sums were calculated by the Authority’s Finance staff and
transferred to Broadland’s bank account. The Council then included the
investment of this cash with its own treasury management function. Cash
flow requirements can result in transfers in both directions as the year
progresses. The key facts for the year to 31 March 2017 were:

e Opening balance  £2.75 million.
¢ Closing balance £0 million.
e Highest sum £4.25 million.
e Lowest sum £0 million.

2.3  Following the decision to bring the treasury function in-house along with the
role of the Section 17 Officer, funds were returned in full from Broadland
District Council on 25 November 2016. In order to maximise returns the
decision was made to split these funds between instant access and fixed term
deposits with A + rated institutions. Balances at the end of 31 March 2017
were:
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2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

e Instant Access £1.929 million.
e Fixed Term Deposits £2 million (£1 million to be repaid on
01/09/17 and 01/03/18).

The figures for the previous year (2015/16) were:

Opening balance  £3.250 million.
Closing balance £2.750 million.
Highest sum £4.250 million.
Lowest sum £2.750 million.

A transaction charge was made to cover the Council’s costs involved in the
administration of the investments (including bank charges for direct money
transfers). For 2015/16 and 2016/17 the actual interest receivable by the
Broads Authority was based on the actual interest received on Broadland’s
internal investments.

The sum paid over in 2016/17 was £11,481.56 based on internal monthly
returns that ranged from 0.31% to 0.47%. Interest earned from the fixed term
deposits and instant access was £3,289.14 based on rates 0.15% (instant
access) to 1% (12 month fixed term deposit). The sum paid over in 2015/16
from Broadland was £21,776.59 based on internal monthly returns that
ranged from 0.39% to 0.6%. Forecast interest for 2016/17 was £15,000.

Since the 2016/17 year end (31 March 2017), the instant access account
balance has increased to £2.550 million at the end of June. It should be noted
that the automatic transfer between it and the current account seeks to
maintain a current account balance of £1,000. This means that the balance
within the instant access is not available in its entirety for investment. Cash
flow is monitored on a weekly basis but the success of CANAPE and the
Landscape Partnership scheme will limit the possibility to make additional
fixed term deposits due to the timing differences between expenditure and
claim repayment.

The interest income budget for 2017/18 is £15,000 based on the assumption
that interest receivable will remain approximately the same. If there is a
gradual improvement in interest rates and investment returns, the forecast will
be reviewed and if necessary updated at the six month review (end
September 2017) to inform year-end and budget planning.

Background papers: Treasury and Investment Strategy 2017/18

Author:

Emma Krelle

Date of report: 23 June 2017

Broads

Plan Objectives: None

Appendices: Nil
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Broads Authority

Financial Scrutiny and Audit
Committee

25 July 2017

Agenda Item No 11

External Quality Assessment of Internal Audit
Report by Head of Internal Audit

Summary: This report presents the results of an external review by the

Institute of Internal Auditors of Eastern Internal Audit Services
conformance with the Standards.

Recommendation: The Committee is requested to note the contents of the report.

11

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

Introduction

The objective of the review was to undertake an independent, objective
external quality assessment of the Eastern Internal Audit Services against the
International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF). This has included
considering the team’s conformance to the IPPF, benchmarking the function’s
activities against best practice and assessing the impact of the internal audit
on the organisations.

The assessment was conducted as a full external quality assessment using
the methods prescribed by the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors. A wide
range of documentary evidence was reviewed, a number of representative
stakeholders were interviewed, as were the head of Internal Audit and the
TIAA Audit Director. This report presents the outcome of that review to the
Committee, and the full report is attached at Appendix A to this report.

Outcomes from the assessment

The report concluded that the internal audit service fully meet most of the
Standards, as well as the Definition, Core Principles and the Code of Ethics
which form the mandatory elements of the IIA’s IPPF, the globally recognised
standard for quality in internal auditing. This is described as “Generally
Conforms” and it means that the service may state in its audit reports that
the work “has been performed in accordance with the IPPF”,

In addition the 1IA has benchmarked the service against others that have been
assessed and has concluded against five key areas that:

The services is excellent in the efficiency of its operations — this is a fantastic
result which really emphasises how well the contract works and the IIA have
confirmed that this is a conclusion rarely achieved in such a review.
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2.4

2.5

2.6

3.1

The service is good in its Reflection of the Standards and the Quality
Assurance and Improvement Programme.

In relation to focusing on performance, risk, and adding value the service is
satisfactory — this relates to more formally documenting the risks to the
internal audit service itself and undertaking a more formal assessment of risks
at each Authority and formally link this through to audit plans.

And finally, in relation to coordinating and maximising assurance we are
considered to need improvement in this area — this is not uncommon and a
conclusion drawn on by the assessors in the majority of reviews they
undertake. This is where we need to more formally recognise the relationships
with other internal teams i.e. Business Improvement, Monitoring Officer,
Fraud, Risk etc. and then consider undertaking a wider assurance mapping
exercise.

Conclusion

That the Authority’s internal audit service fully meet most of the globally
recognised Standards, which is described as “ Generally Conforms”. The
internal audit service can state in its reports and literature that the work “has
been performed in accordance with eh Internal Professional Practices
Framework”.

Background papers: Checklist completed by the 1A, copy retained by the Head of

Author:

Internal Audit

Emma Hodds, Head of Internal Audit

Date of report: 15 June 2017

Broads Plan Objectives: None

Appendices: Appendix 1 — EQA Final Report for Eastern Internal Audit

Services.
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/ Chartered Institute of
A Internal Auditors

EXTERNAL QUALITY ASSESSMENT (EQA) FINAL REPORT FOR

cl1as

J quality p
Eastern Internal Audit Services (EIAS)

Prepared by John Chesshire and Jane Needham on behalf of the CIIA, 13 January 2017

PAGES
Executive Summary 2
Conformance to the International Professional Practices Framework 3-4
Key Achievements 5
Recommendations to achieve conformance to the Standards 6-7
Opportunities for Further Development and Continuous Improvement 7
IIA evaluations: 8
e Internal Audit Effectiveness Matrix 9
e Corporate Audit SWOT Analysis
Appendices:
1. llA Grading definitions 10
2. List of Interviewees 11

Report Caveat - This report is provided on the basis that it is for your information only and that it will not
be quoted or referred to, in whole or part, without the prior written consent of Chartered IIA.
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY External Quality Assessment for Ordnance Survey

The internal audit team fully meet most of the Standards, as well as the Definition, Core Principles
and the Code of Ethics which form the mandatory elements of the Institute of Internal Auditors’
International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF), the globally recognised standard for quality in
Internal Auditing. This is described as “Generally Conforms”. It means that the internal audit team
may state in its audit reports that the work “has been performed in accordance with the IPPF”.

We have benchmarked the performance of the internal audit team against a maturity model based
on a wide range of UK and Irish internal audit functions and we believe that it is Excellent in:

e The efficiency of its operations
We consider that the internal audit team is Good in its:

e Reflection of the Standards
e Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme

We consider that the internal audit team is Satisfactory in its:
e Focus on performance, risk and adding value

We consider that the internal audit team Needs Improvement as regards:
e Coordinating and maximising assurance

We consider that a key factor in these achievements is that the Internal Audit Consortium Manager is
competent, enthusiastic and well respected by key stakeholders.

We have provided the Internal Audit Consortium Manager with our comments in a detailed standard-
by-standard checklist as a separate document.

We also make a number of recommendations to achieve conformance with the Standards. These are
included below.

Finally, as part of this External Quality Assessment we undertook an online survey of 36 senior
managers across the authorities and the seven audit committee chairs. We received 19 and four
responses. The majority of the results were either good or excellent, with a small number of fair
assessments and very few lower ratings. Audit committee feedback was particularly positive. We
have sent on a separate copy of the results to the Internal Audit Consortium Manager.
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Conformance to the Standards: The International Professional Practice Framework (IPPF)

The objective of this External Quality Assurance (EQA) review was to undertake an independent,
objective external quality assessment of the Eastern Internal Audit Service against the IPPF. This has
included considering the team’s conformance to the IPPF, benchmarking the function’s activities
against best practice and assessing the impact of internal audit on the organisation.

The Institute of Internal Audit’s (IIA’s) International Professional Practice Framework (IPPF) includes
the Definition of Internal Auditing, Core Principles, Code of Ethics and International Standards. There
are 56 fundamental principles to achieve with more than 150 points of recommended practice.
Below is a summary of the Eastern Internal Audit Service’s conformance to both the IPPF and the
core principles. This is a good performance given the breadth of the IPPF and the diverse
organisational contexts that the IA team operate in across the region.

Summary of lIA Standards N/A Partially | Generally Total
Conformance Conforms | Conforms
Definition of IA and Rules of 0 1 4 5
Code of Ethics conduct

Purpose 1000 - 1130 1 0 2 5 8
People 1200 - 1230 0 0 1 3 4
Performance 1300 - 1322 1 0 1 5 7
Planning 2000 - 2130 0 0 1 10 11
Process 2200 - 2600 2 0 0 19 21
Total 4 0 6 46 56

The overall assessment resulting from the EQA is that Eastern Internal Audit Services “does generally
conform to the IIA’s professional standards” and by extension, the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards (PSIAS).

It is therefore appropriate for Eastern Internal Audit Services to say in reports and other literature that it
“conforms to the lIA’s professional standards” and that its work has been performed “in accordance
with the IPPF.”

This external quality assessment was conducted as a full external quality assessment using the methods
prescribed by Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors. We reviewed a wide range of documentary
evidence, interviewed a number of representative stakeholders, and interviewed the Internal Audit
Consortium Manager and TIAA Audit Director.
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In addition to our review of the self-assessment, we also used a “Survey Monkey” application to survey a
total of 36 senior managers and the seven audit committee chairs. The surveys provided consistent
results that supported our validation and interviews. Copies of the survey results have been shared with
the Internal Audit Consortium Manager.

We have also provided the Internal Audit Consortium Manager with our comments in a detailed standard-
by-standard checklist as a separate document.
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Key Achievements

Eastern Internal Audit Services deliver an effective independent and objective assurance and
consulting service across the authorities it serves, covering the full range of activity that this
organisation undertakes. Some challenges remain, of course, but overall we believe that stakeholders
see the Internal Audit Consortium Manager and the core internal audit team as professional,
approachable and competent in their work.

Senior managers also value the results of IA engagements.

The service is led by an experienced Internal Audit Consortium Manager who is a Chartered Internal
Auditor and CMIIA qualified. She is supported by an experienced Audit Director and a core team of
internal auditors from TIAA, the external partner.

Stakeholders were universally complimentary about the Internal Audit Consortium Manager’s
personal, communication, relationship and technical skills. Indeed, everyone we spoke to was full of
praise for the Internal Audit Consortium Manager. Very well done — this is excellent!

Annual planning is comprehensive and is a very participative process involving clients and
stakeholders at appropriate stages. Progress is documented and reported in quarterly sessions with
respective audit committees. Eastern Internal Audit Services employ range of effective Key
Performance Indicators to assess service performance, with a particular focus on quality and delivery.

Eastern Internal Audit Services have developed an appropriate methodology for auditing across the
authorities. The operational internal audit processes are fit for purpose and documented in a
professional audit manual and an associated set of templates and supporting guidance. Our file
reviews showed appropriate compliance with the methodology and evidence of appropriate
supervision and review. The internal audit process is efficient and economic.

181

Page 5



Recommendations to achieve conformance to the Standards

Assessments

internal audit working files
from time to time as part of
their internal assessments.

Ref | IPPF section Recommendations for the Internal Audit Consortium Manager
Internal Audit Consortium
Manager

1. Mission Amend the IA Charter to Agreed and already implemented.
Statement & reflect the new IPPF and PSIAS
Definition of —and in particular the mission
internal auditing | statement and core principles

— at its next formal review.

2. 1010 - More explicitly include Agreed and already implemented.
Recognising reference to the mandatory
Mandatory nature of the Core Principles
Guidance in the | for the Professional Practice of
Internal Audit Internal Auditing, the Code of
Charter Ethics, and the International

Standards in the charters.

3. 1100 - Formally document the role This is “known” informally for each authority
Independence and relationship between and will be included in the Audit Charter
and Objectivity | internal audit and other update in 2018 following formal

assurance providers, across documentation and assessment of the other
the authorities, with the aim internal assurance providers such as Fraud,
of more formally sharing DP, H&S and Business Improvement Teams.
information, coordinating

activities and potentially

relying upon each other’s

work.

4. 1111 - Direct Consider the benefits and This is already considered and a process is
Interaction with | opportunities associated with | already in place at each Authority. For
the Board having an annual meeting with | example this is a standing item annually at Gt

the audit committee chairs, Yarmouth and six monthly at Breckland. As
without management present. | this is already considered | do not believe any
further action is necessary.

5. 1230 - Formally develop and Agreed
Continuing document a CPD plan to help
Professional ensure they stay up to date
Development with new and emerging risk,

governance and internal audit
practices.
6. 1311 — Internal | Formally review a sample of The possibility to undertake such reviews is

built into the contract and can be invoked as
and when necessary.

However the assure programmes (completed
work programmes, including evaluation,
population, sample selection, testing,
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reference to supporting evidence and
outcomes) -are reviewed along with every
draft report to ensure that | would come to
the same conclusions — if | have any queries |
do ask for further information from the
auditor and can also look into the supporting
evidence files if necessary.

| believe the risks associated with the current
approach are very low.

7. 1312 — External | Ensure that external Agreed but this is the first time that an
Assessments assessments are undertaken external review has been necessary so it

at a minimum of five yearly seems a bit harsh to have this as a formal
intervals in the future. recommendation.

8. 2000 - Undertake more formal risk We are informally aware of risks that face us a
Managing the management activity to service, therefore | do not believe that just
Internal Audit increase the chance of Eastern | because we do not have these formally
Activity Internal Audit Services documented it prevents us from achieving our

achieving its objectives. objectives — we provide a professional audit
service to all our clients and complete all work
on time and to a high standard.
| also have the opportunity to raise high level
risks through the South Norfolk Council risk
management process and have done so
historically i.e. whilst we were retendering for
the service.

9. 2010 - Planning | As risk management maturity | At some authorities | am able to link through
improves across the to risk registers as part of audit planning and
authorities, undertake a more | as part of this process | review the risk
formal assessment of the risk | registers. However some sites have a more
maturity of each organisation | informal risk process so this is not possible.
and ensure that there is a
defined link between the risk | This action is one for future consideration.
registers in place in each
organisation and the internal
audit RBIA annual plans.

10. 2050 - As formal risk management Assurance mapping is recognised as a

Coordination
and Reliance

maturity improves, consider
developing a fit for purpose
assurance map for each
authority.

relatively new concept and can be time
consuming.

Options for how to do this more formally will
be explored, however | would argue that this
is carried out informally through the
discussions with senior management as part
of the audit planning process.
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Opportunities for Further Development and Continuous Improvement

The Chartered Institute regards conformance to the IPPF as the foundation for effective internal audit
practice.

However, in our EQA reviews we also seek feedback from key stakeholders and we benchmark each
function against the diversity of professional practice seen on our EQA reviews and other interviews with
chief audit executives, summarised in an Internal Audit effectiveness matrix (page eight).

We then interpret our findings into a summary of strengths and weaknesses (page nine) to set the scope
for further development based upon the wide range of guidance published by the Chartered Institute. It is
our aim to offer advice and a degree of challenge to help internal audit functions continue their journey
towards best practice and excellence.
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Internal Audit Maturity Matrix: Eastern Internal Audit Services’ Effectiveness highlighted

with a
combination of
non-
conformances
and partial
conformances
to the lIA
Standards.

objectives and risks
but IA engagements
are mainly cyclical
and prone to change
at management
request.

assurance is
recognised but
progress is slow.
Some informal
coordination occurs
but reviewing
reliability may be
resisted.

date and form a
consistent and
coherent whole.
Engagements go
beyond deadline and
a number are
deferred.

Assessment 11A standards Focus on Coordination and Operating with Quality Assurance
performance, risk maximising efficiency and Improvement
and adding value. assurance Programme

Excellent Outstanding IA alignment to the IA is fully Assignments are On-going efforts by
reflection of the | organisation’s independent and is project managed to IA team to enhance
IIA standards, in | objectives, risks and recognised by all as time and budget quality through
terms of logic, change.|A hasa high | a 3 line of defence. using continuous
flow and spirit. profile, is listened to The work of tools/techniques for improvement.
Generally and is respected for assurance providers | delivery. IA reports QA&IP plan is
conforms in all its assessment, is coordinated with are clear, concise and | shared with and
areas. advice and insight. IA reviewing produced promptly. approved by AC.

reliability thereof.

Good The IIA Clear links between Coordination is Audit engagements Quiality is regarded
Standards are IA engagement planned at a high are controlled and highly, includes
fully integrated objectives to risks level around key reviewed while in lessons learnt,
into the and critical success risks. IA has progress. Reporting is | scorecard
methodology — factors with some established formal refined regularly measures and
mainly generally | acknowledgement of | relationships with linking opinions to customer feedback
conforms. the value added regular review of key risks. with results shared

dimension. reliability. with AC.

Satisfactory Most of the IIA Methodology The 3 lines of Methodology Clear evidence of
Standards are requires the purpose | defence is modelis recognises the need timely QA in
found in the of IA engagements to | regarded as to manage assignments with
methodology be linked to important. Planning | engagement learning points and
with scope to objectives and risks. of coordination is efficiency and coaching.
increase IA provides advice active and IA has timeliness but further | Customer feedback
conformance and is involved in developed better consistency is is evident. Wider
from partially to | change but criteria working needed. Reports are QA&IP may need
generally and role require relationships with informative and formalising.
conform in clarity. some review of valued.
some areas. reliability.

Gaps in the Some connections to | The need to Multiple guides that QC not consistently
methodology the organisation’s coordinate are slightly out of embedded across

the function. QA is
limited / late or
does not address
root causes.

No reference to

No relationship

IA performs its role

Lack of a defined

No evidence of

the lIA between IA in an isolated way. methodology with ownership of
Standards with engagements and the | There is a feeling of inconsistent results. quality by the 1A
significant levels | organisation’s audit overload with Reports are usually team.
of non- objectives, risks and confusion about late with little
conformance. performance. Many what various perceived value.
audits are ad hoc. auditors do.
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SWOT analysis: Eastern Internal Audit Services’ opportunities for development

What works well (Strengths) What could be done better (Weaknesses)

e The Internal Audit Consortium Manager is highly respected by key stakeholders. e Formalise risk management in Eastern Internal Audit Services to help
e Stakeholders particularly praised the Internal Audit Consortium Manager’s ensure relationship, continuity, delivery and assurance risks are
relationship, communication and engagement skills. effectively mitigated.
e When issues have occurred in particular internal audits, stakeholders have been e More formal coordination and knowledge sharing with other internal
impressed by the Internal Audit Consortium Manager’s timely resolution. and external assurance providers may help improve governance, risk
e The Internal Audit Consortium Manager and internal audit service are responsive and control across the authorities.
and flexible, and always try to be accommodating. They communicate effectively. | ® The Internal Audit Consortium Manager could sample check working
e Arange of KPIs are actively monitored to assess delivery and performance. files to enhance elements of her own QAIP.

e Stakeholders feel very engaged in the annual and engagement planning
processes, and throughout the internal audit engagements.

e Stakeholders felt that the annual plans covered relevant, useful subjects.

e Stakeholders were very supportive of the revised internal audit engagement
report format and structure. The operational effectiveness points were valued.

e The core internal audit team were generally viewed as competent, knowledgeable
and approachable.

What could deliver further value (Opportunities) What could stand in your way (Threats)

e The Internal Audit Consortium Manager should be cautious about
reducing internal audit engagement durations to ensure that sufficient,
professional work can be done in the time available to provide
meaningful assurance.

e Loss of the Internal Audit Consortium Manager would impact service.

e Small core TIAA team with risk of loss of continuity, local knowledge
and expertise if staff move elsewhere.

e Cuts in authority budgets could reduce internal audit coverage below a
minimum required to provide an annual opinion.

e Less management buy in to internal audit could impact delivery and
overall effectiveness.

e Emerging risks could impact service quality unless ongoing CPD occurs.

e Some stakeholders want to see more insight, added value and a better idea of
‘what good looks like’ from TIAA’s work with other organisations.

e More cross-functional internal audit engagements could help highlight good
practices and help enhance consistent adoption of these.

e Benchmarking and knowledge sharing activities with other IA functions could be
used to identify alternative strategies. SIAP could be a useful contact.

e Acloser link between authorities’ risk maturity and annual internal audit plans
would be beneficial and may help drive risk management improvements.

e A greater focus on identifying any root causes of governance, risk and control
weaknesses could add greater value.

e There may be governance, risk and control benefits in an internal audit presence
on the steering groups of key change initiatives and systems implementations.
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1A Grading definitions Appendix 1

The following rating scale has been used in this report.

Overall Audit Grading

Generally
Conforms
(GC)

The assessor has concluded that the relevant structures, policies, and procedures of the
activity, as well as the processes by which they are applied, comply with the requirements
of the individual Standard or element of the Code of Ethics in all material respects. For the
sections and major categories, this means that there is general conformance to a majority
of the individual Standards or elements of the Code of Ethics, and at least partial
conformance to the others, within the section/category. There may be significant
opportunities for improvement, but these must not represent situations where the activity
has not implemented the Standards or the Code of Ethics, has not applied them effectively,
or has not achieved their stated objectives. As indicated above, general conformance does
not require complete/perfect conformance, the ideal situation, successful practice, etc.

Partially
Conforms
(PC)

Does Not
Conform
(DNC)

The assessor has concluded that the activity is making good-faith efforts to comply with the
requirements of the individual Standard or element of the Code of Ethics, section, or major
category, but falls short of achieving some major objectives. These will usually represent
significant opportunities for improvement in effectively applying the Standards or Code of
Ethics and/or achieving their objectives. Some deficiencies may be beyond the control of
the activity and may result in recommendations to senior management or the board of the
organisation.

The assessor has concluded that the activity is not aware of, is not making good-faith
efforts to comply with, or is failing to achieve many/all of the objectives of the individual
Standard or element of the Code of Ethics, section, or major category. These deficiencies
will usually have a significant negative impact on the activity’s effectiveness and its
potential to add value to the organisation. They may also represent significant
opportunities for improvement, including actions by senior management or the board.

Often, the most difficult evaluation is the distinction between general and partial. It is a judgement call

keeping in mind the definition of general conformance above. The assessor must determine if basic

conformance exists. The existence of opportunities for improvement, better alternatives, or other

successful practices does not reduce a “generally conforms” rating.
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List of Interviewees Appendix 2

We greatly appreciate the time and assistance given by stakeholders and members of Eastern
Internal Audit Services during the review.

Name 1A Exec Position / role

Emma Hodds v Internal Audit Consortium Manager

Duncan Ellis v Head of Finance and Assets &S5151 at North
Norfolk

Julie Cook v Head of HR at Great Yarmouth (Previous
similar post at North Norfolk)

Karen Sly v Finance Director & S151 at Great Yarmouth
(Previous Head of Finance at North Norfolk)

Hamish Melville v Head of Economic Development at Broadland
DC

Jill Penn v Head of Finance and Revenues &S151 at
Broadland (currently also S17 Officer for
Broads Authority until 31/03/2017)

Emma Krelle v Head of Finance at Broads Authority

Fiona Dodimead v Director of Audit, TIAA

Debbie Lorimer Director of Business Development and until
recently S151 Officer at South Norfolk

Simon Bessey v Finance Manager at South Norfolk

Greg Pearson v Corporate Improvement and Performance
Manager at Breckland and South Holland DC

Alison Chubbock v Chief Accountant, Breckland and Holland DC

Totals 2 9

Online Survey
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We issued an online survey to 36 senior managers on 4" January 2017 and to the seven audit
committee chairs on 6" January 2017. We received 19 and four responses respectively.
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Broads Authority

Financial Scrutiny and Audit
Committee

25 July 2017

Agenda Item No 12

External Audit
Report by Chief Financial Officer

Summary: This report appends:

(i) the annual audit fee letter from Ernst & Young for undertaking the 2017/18
audit. The fee will be maintained at £13,943.
(ii) the Local Government Audit Committee Briefing by Ernst & Young.

Recommendation:
(i) That the details of the annual audit fee letter be noted.

(i) That the briefing, including the key questions for Audit Committees as set out
on page 8, be noted.

1 External Audit fee 2017/18

1.1  This report appends Ernst & Young's 2017/18 audit fee letter (Appendix 1),
setting out the audit fee which will be payable for undertaking the 2016/17
audit of the Authority’s accounts and its financial, governance and value for
money arrangements.

1.2  Members will note that the audit fee will be £13,943, which represents no
change when compared with the audit fee charged for 2016/17 and 2015/16.

2 Financial implications

2.1  Provision for the annual audit fee was included in the 2015/16 budget and has
been charged in the accounts for the year. The proposed External Audit fee
for 2017/18 has similarly been provided for in the current year’s budget.

3 Briefing Key Issues

3.1  This briefing is presented to Members “for information”.

3.2  The items of relevance to the Authority are:

e EY item club winter forecast (page 2);

e PSAA Procurement Strategy (page 7); and
e Results of auditors work on Local government bodies 2015/16 (page 7)
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Background papers: None

Author: Emma Krelle

Date of report: 7 July 2017

Broads Plan Objectives: None

Appendices: APPENDIX 1 — Ernst & Young audit fee letter 2017/18

APPENDIX 2 — Ernst & Young Local Government Audit
Committee Briefing (February 2017)
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Ernst & Young LLP Tel: 01582 643000
400 Capability Gree Fax: 01582 643001
London www.ey.com/uk

o Bedfordshire
Building a better LU1 3LU

working world

John Packman
Chief Executive
Broads Authority
Yare House Direct line: 023 8038 2159
62-64 Thorpe Road
Norwich

NR1 1RY

7t April 2017

Email: KSuter@uk.ey.com

Dear John,

Annual Audit Fees 2017/18

We are writing to confirm the audit work that we propose to undertake for the 2017/18 financial year
at the Broads Authority.

From 1 April 2015, the duty to make arrangements for the audit of the accounts and the certification
of relevant claims and returns and to prescribe scales of fees for this work was delegated to Public
Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local
Government. In October 2015, the Secretary of State confirmed that the transitional arrangements
would be extended for one year for audits of principal local government bodies only, to cover the audit
of the accounts for 2017/18. The audit contracts previously let by the Audit Commission and novated
to PSAA have therefore also been extended for one year to give effect to this decision.

From 2018/19, new arrangements for local auditor appointment set out in the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 will apply for principal local government and police bodies. These audited
bodies will be responsible for making their own arrangements for the audit of the accounts and
certification of the housing benefit subsidy claim. The PSAA will play a new and different role in these
arrangements.

Indicative audit fee

For the 2017/18 financial year Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) has set the scale fee for
each audited body, following consultation on its Work Programme and Scale of Fees. There are no
planned changes to the overall work programme for 2017/18. It is therefore proposed by the PSAA
that scale fees are set at the same level as the scale fees applicable for 2016/17. These fees reflect
the significant reductions made to scale fees since 2012/13.

The fee reflects the risk-based approach to audit planning set out in the National Audit Office’s Code of
Audit Practice for the audit of local public bodies.

The audit fee covers the:

Audit of the financial statements

The UK firm Ernst & Young LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wé]eg/@1 registered number OC300001 and is a member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited.
A list of members’ names is available for inspection at 1 More London Place, London SE1 2AF, the firm’s principal place of business and registered office. Ernst & Young LLP is a multi-
disciplinary practice and is authorised and regulated by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the Solicitors Regulation Authority and other regulators. Further details
can be found at http://www.ey.com/UK/en/Home/Legal



EY 2

Building a better
working world

Value for money conclusion
Whole of Government accounts.

For Broads Authority our indicative fee is set at the scale fee level. This indicative fee is based on
certain assumptions, including:

The overall level of risk in relation to the audit of the financial statements is not significantly
different from that of the prior year

Officers meeting the agreed timetable of deliverables;

The operating effectiveness of the internal controls for the key processes identified within our
audit strategy;

We can rely on the work of internal audit as planned;

Our accounts opinion and value for money conclusion being unqualified;
Appropriate quality of documentation is provided by the Broads Authority;
There is an effective control environment; and

Prompt responses are provided to our draft reports.

Meeting these assumptions will help ensure the delivery of our audit at the indicative audit fee which is
set out in the table below.

As we have not yet completed our audit for 2016/17, our audit planning process for 2017/18 will
continue as the year progresses. Fees will be reviewed and updated as necessary, within the
parameters of our contract.

For authorities with highways network assets, a change in accounting requirements implemented by
CIPFA/LASAAC in 2016/17 will require additional audit work in 2017/18. It is expected that the fee
variation process will apply in 2017/18 for this additional work, as the amount of work will vary at
each authority.

Summary of fees

Indicative fee Planned fee Actual fee

2017/18 2016/17 2015/16

£ £ £

Total Code audit fee 13,943 13,943 13,943
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Any additional work that we may agree to undertake (outside of the Code of Audit Practice) will be
separately negotiated and agreed with you in advance.

Billing
The indicative code audit fee will be billed in 4 quarterly instalments of £3,485.75

Audit plan

Our plan is expected to be/will be issued in January 2018. This will communicate any significant
financial statement risks identified, planned audit procedures to respond to those risks and any
changes in fee. It will also set out the significant risks identified in relation to the value for money
conclusion. Should we need to make any significant amendments to the audit fee during the course of
the audit, we will discuss this in the first instance with the Director of Finance and, if necessary,
prepare a report outlining the reasons for the fee change for discussion with the Financial Scrutiny and
Audit Committee.

Audit team

The key members of the audit team for the 2017/18 financial year are:

Kevin Suter KSuter@uk.ey.com Tel: 023 8038 2159
Executive Director

Mark Russell mrusselll@uk.ey.com Tel: 01223 394480
Manager

We are committed to providing you with a high quality service. If at any time you would like to discuss
with us how our service to you could be improved, or if you are dissatisfied with the service you are
receiving, please contact me. If you prefer an alternative route, please contact Steve Varley, our
Managing Partner, 1 More London Place, London, SE1 2AF. We undertake to look into any complaint
carefully and promptly and to do all we can to explain the position to you. Should you remain
dissatisfied with any aspect of our service, you may of course take matters up with our professional
institute.

Yours faithfully

Kevin Suter
Executive Director
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP
cc. Emma Krelle, Head of Finance
Guy McGregor, Chair of the Financial Scrutiny and Audit Committee
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Contents at a glance
Government and economic news

Accounting, auditing and
governance

Key questions for the audit
committee

Find out more

Local government
audit committee

briefing

This sector briefing is one of the ways that
we support you and your organisation

in an environment that is constantly
changing and evolving.

It covers issues which may have an
impact on your organisation, the Local
Government sector, and the audits that
we undertake.

The briefings are produced by our public
sector audit specialists within EY's
national Government and Public Sector
(GPS) team, using our public sector
knowledge, and EY's wider expertise
across UK and international business.

195

The briefings bring together not only
technical issues relevant to the Local
Government sector but wider matters
of potential interest to you and your
organisation.

Links to where you can find out more on
any of the articles featured can be found
at the end of the briefing.

We hope that you find the briefing
informative and should this raise any
issues that you would like to discuss
further please contact your local
audit team.

Building a better
working world
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EY item club winter forecast

In its latest forecast the EY Item Club cautions that, whilst it may
look like the economy is taking the referendum in its stride, the
impression could be deceptive. A timely reminder that trouble may
lie ahead is provided by Sterling's recent performance.

The UK economy is forecast to undergo a gradual dip and recovery
over the coming four years, with GDP growth slowing to 1.3% in
2017 and just 1.0% next year, before picking up to 1.4% in 2019
and 1.8% in 2020. The ability of the economy to deliver against
this forecast is seen as highly dependent on its foreign trade
performance, the expectation is that this will improve this year as
consumer spending slows down.

In terms of inflation as measured by the Consumer Prices Index

it is expected to rise in excess of 3% by the end of 2017, before
falling back towards the Bank of England's 2.0% target in 2018.
With the economy slowing down and wage inflation remaining
subdued, the forecast is that base interest rates will be held at
0.25% by the Monetary Policy Committee until the spring of 2018.

Looking ahead, the UK's trade performance and output growth

in 2019 and beyond will depend critically on the exit terms that
can be agreed with the EU27 and other countries. Whilst there

is greater clarity about the UK's negotiating position, elections
coming up later this year in several European countries mean that
the negotiating position of the EU27 will take longer to get a clear
picture of. Additionally, the US election result complicates Britain's
exit from the EU due to uncertainty over the US economic and
foreign policy.

Social Care Precept and New Homes Bonus

The ‘Provisional local government finance settlement 2017/18’
announced that an additional £900mn would be used to fund the
social care system over the next two years. This will be made up of
two parts:

» £240mn transfer from the new homes bonus

» £652mn from increasing the social care
precept (£208mn in 2017/18 and £444mn in 2018/19)

New Homes Bonus

The consultation for the new homes bonus ended and the
Government made a number of revisions to the grant. The transfer
from the new homes bonus represents a change that ensures

that councils will only receive funding for housing built above

the national housing growth baseline of 0.4%. There will also be

a movement to five year payments from 2017/18 and four year
payments from 2018/19.

There are no proposals to withhold grants for those authorities
without a local plan in 2017/18 but this will be revisited for
2018/19. The bonus will continue to be unringfenced as in
previous years.

Social Care Precept

Councils will have the flexibility to increase the dedicated social
care precept by up to 3% in 2017/18 and 2018/19 (this was
previously capped at 2% for each of the three years 2017/18 to
2019/20). If this is chosen it will be equivalent to an increase of

£1 amonth on an average Band D Council Tax bill. However the
social care precept would need to remain at 6% over the next three
years, therefore if the increased 3% was taken in 2017/18 and
2018/19 it could not be increased again in the following year.
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Within the ‘Provisional local government finance settlement
2017/18' It has been highlighted that increased funding is not
the only way to improve social care but better integration of the
health service and local government is needed. In Oxfordshire
this has led to a 40% fall in delayed discharges in 6 months and
in Northumberland increased work between the council and

the health service has led to a 12% reduction in demand on
residential care.

Local Government Funding Settlement

The four year funding settlement has been agreed to by 97% of
councils. This will mean councils will have £7.6bn in total dedicated
social care funding over the four years up to 2019/20. In return
they will have to publish efficiency plans online.

It is expected that top-tier authorities are likely to benefit most
from the settlement as they have high-demand critical services
and will therefore receive more funding. However district councils
will see a greater squeeze on their budgets due to the reduction in
the new homes bonus.

This comes as a step towards devolution. The introduction of
fully retained business rates will also bring about more power
for councils to serve their local communities. However this

does open councils up to more risk. For this to be beneficial the
economy will need to grow and more houses will need to be built.
Councils therefore need to think about how they will ensure that
this does not leave them in a worse position than through central
government funding.

Funding for new care model vanguards

In order to support and spread the work of new care model
vanguard projects, NHS England has announced over £100mn of
funding being made available. NHS England sees that the existing
vanguards, partnerships of NHS, local government, voluntary,
community and other organisations are improving the healthcare
people receive, preventing ill health, and saving funds.

They are seen as key to the delivery of Sustainability and
Transformation Plans (STPs) which are being developed across the
country and, in addition to funding, the vanguards receive support
to implement their plans from both NHS England and other
national bodies. This includes how they harness new technology
including apps and shared computer systems, and to develop

their workforce so that it is focused around patients and their

local populations. Vanguards are required to meet a number of
conditions to obtain funding, including:

» Demonstrating clear improvements in quality and costs/
savings

» Spreading their new care models, both within their STP
and sharing with others (including producing guidance and
materials for others to use)

The announcement highlights examples of areas the latest funding
will be used on, and examples of work done to date. These include:

» Fylde Coast Local Health Economy vanguard — a new
‘extensive care service' bringing together different health
professionals offering targeted support for older patients
with multiple conditions, this has contributed to significant
reductions in areas such as non-elective admissions (25%) and
A&E attendances (13%)

» Mid Nottinghamshire Better Together vanguard — joined-up
community teams are working with patients and their families/
carers, providing physical, mental and social care support to
ensure people are wherever possible cared for at home. The
vanguard has reported reductions in long term admissions to
care homes and acute bed days, together with significant year-
on-year reductions in avoidable patient attendances (20.5% for
patients aged 80 years and above compared to 2015/16)
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» East and North Hertfordshire Clinical Commissioning
Group vanguard — employing pharmacists to work with GPs,
care home staff and other healthcare professionals to provide
detailed medicine reviews for residents. Working with the
care homes, the vanguard has already reviewed over 900
patients and the use of 8,000 medicines. Of these over 1,000
medicines have been stopped, including nearly 200 which
could have increased the risk of falls. The estimated direct cost
savings are in excess of £160,000

Financial Sustainability of Schools

The Department of Education has predicted that mainstream
schools will have to find savings of £3bn (8%) by 2019/20. This is
expected to come from efficiencies from the following:

» £1.3bn from better procurement
» £1.7mn from using staff more efficiently

The Government has proposed to increase the schools budget
over the next four years, and by 2019/20 the increase will be 7.7%
compared to the 2015/16 level. However the increase in pupil
number is expected to be 3.9% in the same period, once inflation
is taken into account; this is a real time reduction in funding

per pupil.

The Department continues to publish advice on financial
management and efficiency savings.

The proportion of secondary schools overspending rose from 34%
in 2010/11 to 59% in 2014/15. For academies this rose from 39%
to 61%. The reasons for this are unclear, and the sustainability of
this spending is unknown.
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Highway Network Assets

The depreciated replacement cost accounting for Highway
Network Assets is expected to come into effect from 1 April 2017,
but is subject to confirmation from CIPFA. EY has run a number of
workshops for clients and there are a range of levels of confidence
over the accounting treatment for the asset. It can however be
seen that the levels of confidence have increased from this time
last year.

The key question for councils to consider will be how can we
demonstrate that their Highways Asset Management System is
complete and that all assets exist.

By following the DREAM approach set out below we believe the
task will run smoother.

Document highways systems: Almost all highways and engineering
IT inventory information has not been subject to audit and lack
detailed procedure manuals/notes. Full documentation of the key
core data systems should be completed as one of the initial tasks
that an authority carries out.

Reports and reconciliations: Assess the information requirements
of the task and whether the existing systems can produce the
required reports and reconciliations or will new reports and
reconciliations be needed? Identify any corrective action required.

Evidential based: The quality of the inventory is key to the change.
So as well as documentation of inventory systems, establish

how you will evidentially prove that the inventory is complete

and the named assets exist. This includes key asset dimensions.
However, before engaging expensive external contractors to do
this consider all the processes that you currently have in place
that actually do this ranging from routine cyclical inspections to
independent system reviews. Use this to identify areas where ‘top-
up' work is required.
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Audit: Early and regular engagement with both internal audit
(IA) and external audit (EA) is a key determinant of successful
implementation. IA can assist in establishing documentation
procedures and can carry out system audits of those systems.
Sharing your proposals with EA in advance will reduce the risk
of abortive work. Decisions on what work you actually do are a
matter for the authority, but the EA will provide comments on
proposed approaches.

Materiality: This is a key concept both to the authority as the
accounts are stated to include all material items and EA who audit
to a calculated materiality level. Materiality has both quantitative
and qualitative aspects. In simple terms the quantitative identifies
the level at which consideration needs to be given to whether
omission of an item or inclusion of an error requires correction.
The qualitative level is where a professional judgement is made as
to whether correction of that item would influence decisions of the
users of the accounts.

As the Highway Network Asset is to be classed as a single asset the
materiality is based upon the total value and not the constituent
parts. Due to the importance of this amount discussions around
the level at which the authority is considering setting it at should
take place with your external audit team at an early stage to
ensure that this will not lead to problems in the audit process.

For further information please consult with your audit team

Sustainability and Transformation Plans

Sustainability and Transformation Plans (STP) have now

been produced and are designed to articulate how individual
organisations will play their part in delivering their locally agreed
STP objectives, including sustainable financial balance across the
health economy.

From April 2017, access to NHS transformation funding will be
linked to effecting delivery of the STP. These include meeting
control totals to reduce deficits and meeting certain performance
requirements. STPs represent a shift in focus from the role of
competition within the health system to one of collaboration -
referred to as 'place-based planning'. NHS organisations are telling
us that the changing needs of their populations are best met
through integrated models of care, with the delivery of care being
best met by different areas of the NHS working in a co-ordinated
way. The King's Fund has argued that a place based approach

to planning and delivering health and social care services is the
right approach — and that this should also include collaborating
with other services and sectors outside the NHS — with the aim of
improving the health and wellbeing of local populations.

Development and delivery of STPs is a complex task, with large
footprints, involving many different organisations, in an already
stretched environment in terms of finances and capacity. There
are further challenges with the need to address weaknesses

in NHS incentives to work together and to avoid organisations
focussing on individual goals rather than the effective
implementation of STP objectives — for example, NHS Trusts are
closely monitored on their own performance targets.

The Plans have been delivered in a relatively short timeframe and
propose major changes to services. With the growing financial
challenges in the system, the Plans are required to show how they
will bring the NHS back into financial balance. Given the short
timeframes, the submitted Plans will need further development
and engagement before they can be effectively implemented.
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All parties to the STP will need to collaborate to ensure the

plans take full account of the pressures faced by the individual
parties. Whilst the process provides opportunities for areas

with challenging finances to identify solutions, there will be
difficult decisions to be made about the range, type and location
of services that are delivered. Per the NHS Confederation, the
important element of prevention requires a strong role from public
health as well as wider Council services such as housing, leisure
and recreation, planning and children’s services.

The leadership of the STP is critical to the success of the plan.

The role of the STP leaders needs to be clarified with many

leads finding it difficult to manage their original responsibilities
alongside their leadership role. There are plans for some leaders
to share leading more formally in the future. However where there
are a large number of organisations involved this may be more
difficult to do.

Priorities for social care in 2017

The Kings Fund has set out what it believes the five priorities
should be for social care in the current year as follows:

» Supporting new care models centred on the needs of
patients — Giving greater priority to public health and
prevention, through partnerships between local government,
the NHS, and other organisations, focused on both supporting
people to remain in good health for as long as possible
and engaging the public in tackling the causes of ill health.
Additionally, they emphasise the need for continued support
for vanguards both in delivering in their areas and spreading
that good practice across the system

Strengthening and implementing sustainability and
transformation plans — The Kings Fund suggests that, to
ensure that the service changes and the financial plans
that underpin them are credible, all STPs need to be stress
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tested. It also highlights that STPs have ‘no basis in statute’
and suggests that their governance is formalised to align
their work with the responsibilities of the boards running
NHS organisations

Improving productivity and delivering better value - With
the need for increasing productivity becoming more urgent

as funding decreases and deficits amongst NHS providers
increases, the fund suggests that the priority for every NHS
organisation should be to support clinical teams to reduce
unwarranted variations in care and to improve care. It sees the
boards of NHS organisations as having a key role in leading
this work, ensuring that developing the cultures in which
improvement is supported and valued and making resources
available to support implementation

Developing and strengthening leadership at all levels — It

is clear that clinical leaders have a crucial role, working with
operational managers, to deliver high-quality care. This is
where many of the productivity opportunities arising from
changes in clinical practice can be realised. They argue that
this requires leaders who are (in their words) ‘comfortable with
chaos’ because they can work within fluid and often rapidly
changing organisational arrangements and that the NHS can
learn from local government

Securing adequate funding for health and social care -
They refer to the need for a debate about a new settlement

for health and social care, building on the work of the Barker
Commission, and going further than short-term interventions
that have sought to shore up the system. They argue that

an equitable and sustainable system would be one in which
public funding is increased (paid for by increases in taxes and
National Insurance and changes to some existing benefits),
and a closer alignment between entitlements to social care and
health care


https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/publications/reforming-nhs-within
https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/publications/reforming-nhs-within
https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/publications/quality-improvement
https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/projects/commission-future-health-and-social-care-england
https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/projects/commission-future-health-and-social-care-england
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PSAA Audit Services Procurement Strategy for
the appointment of local auditors

The PSAA is entering into contracts with audit firms to make
auditor appointments by 31 December 2017. There are a total
of 493 eligible authorities who have been invited to opt in. These
include local authorities, combined authorities, police and crime
commissioners, chief constables, fire and rescue authorities,
waste authorities, passenger transport executives and national
park authorities.

The timetable for the appointment is as follows:

Key milestone Target date

Issue OJEU Contract Notice and Selection = 16 February 2017
Questionnaire (SQ) available on request

Deadline for eligible bodies to notify PSAA 9 March 2017
of their decision to opt-into the scheme for

audits of 2018/19 accounts

Deadline of submission of SQs 21 March 2017

Issue ITT to short-listed suppliers 6 April 2017
Deadline for submission of tenders 10 May 2017
PSAA board approves contract award 30 June 2017

The contract will be awarded for five years to suppliers but PSAA
may extend this contract by two years. It is expected that opting-in
will achieve lower audit fees than those authorities that choose to
negotiate alone. Fees are expected to be published in March 2018.

WIH!J'H

Report on the results of auditors work LG bodies
2015/16

In December 2016 PSAA published its first report on the results
of auditors’ work across 497 principal local government bodies,
including 357 councils, 31 fire and rescue authorities, 76 police
bodies and 33 other local government bodies, and 9,756 small
bodies, with a turnover of less than £6.5mn, including 9637
parish councils. The results within the report cover audit work

on the financial statements, the WGA return, arrangements to
secure value for money and any exercise of the auditor's statutory
reporting powers.

The timeliness and quality is broadly consistent with prior year,
however the number of early unqualified opinions (issued by
31 July 2016) doubled compared to those issued in respect of
2014/15.

96% of auditors issued an opinion on the accounts by

30 September 2016 and for the third year in a row there were
no qualified opinions on principal bodies. The proportion of
qualifications on value for money arrangements increased from
4% to 6%.

With faster close in place from the 2017/18 financial year, there
is a need for efficiencies from both local government bodies
and their auditors in order to maintain the level of performance
shown in this report. EY have produced an article on ‘Accelerating
your financial close arrangements’, this can be found by
following this link http://www.ey.com/Publication/vwLUAssets/
EY_-_Accelerating_your_financial_close_arrangements/SFILE/
EY-accelerating-your-financial-close-arrangements.pdf. The
report provides suggestions such as reviewing the format of the
accounts, reviewing the approach to estimates and managing
members' expectations, amongst others.
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http://www.ey.com/Publication/vwLUAssets/EY_-_Accelerating_your_financial_close_arrangements/$FILE/EY-accelerating-your-financial-close-arrangements.pdf
http://www.ey.com/Publication/vwLUAssets/EY_-_Accelerating_your_financial_close_arrangements/$FILE/EY-accelerating-your-financial-close-arrangements.pdf
http://www.ey.com/Publication/vwLUAssets/EY_-_Accelerating_your_financial_close_arrangements/$FILE/EY-accelerating-your-financial-close-arrangements.pdf

What questions should the Audit Committee be asking itself?

Has the Authority made a decision on whether or not to opt into
the PSAA sector-led arrangements for the local appointment

of auditors from 2018-197 Has the authority decided whether
they will use the revised flexibility on the social care precept for
2017/18 and 2018/197?

How confident is the authority about its preparation for the
introduction of Highway Network Assets? Have there been
discussions with the external audit team on the key issues and
plans for implementation?

Has the authority engaged positively with health and
other partners in the development of Sustainability and
Transformation Plans?

Has the Authority put plans in place to meet the faster close
requirements for 2017/18?

8 | Local government audit committee briefing
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EY Item Club winter forecast

http://www.ey.com/uk/en/issues/business-environment/financial-
markets-and-economy/item---forecast-headlines-and-projections

Social Care, Precept and New Homes Bonus

http://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2016/12/council-tax-
precept-and-new-homes-bonus-deployed-stem-social-care-
crisis?utm_source=Adestra&utm_medium=email&utm_term

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/dedicated-adult-social-
care-funding-forms-key-part-of-continued-long-term-funding-
certainty-for-councils

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/new-homes-bonus-
sharpening-the-incentive-technical-consultation

Four year funding settlement

http://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2015/12/local-government-
settlement-offers-councils-four-year-funding-deals

Funding for new care model vanguards
https://www.england.nhs.uk/2016/12/vanguard-funding/

Financial Sustainability of Schools

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/financial-sustainability-in-schools/

Sustainability and Transformation Fund
https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/blog/2016/11/will-stps-deliver-
changes-we-wish-see-our-health-and-care-services

https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/02/stp-
footprints-march-2016.pdf

https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/projects/sustainability-and-
transformation-plans

Priorities for social care in 2017

https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/publications/priorities-nhs-social-
care-2017

PSAA Audit Services Procurement Strategy for the
appointment of local auditors

http://www.psaa.co.uk/supporting-the-transition/appointing-
person/procurement-strategy/

Report on the results of auditors work LG bodies 2015/16

http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-
appointment/reports-on-the-results-of-auditors-work/

http://www.ey.com/Publication/vwLUAssets/EY_-_Accelerating_
your_financial_close_arrangements/S$FILE/EY-accelerating-your-
financial-close-arrangements.pdf
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http://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2016/12/council-tax-precept-and-new-homes-bonus-deployed-stem-social-care-crisis?utm_source=Adestra&utm_medium=email&utm_term
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http://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2016/12/council-tax-precept-and-new-homes-bonus-deployed-stem-social-care-crisis?utm_source=Adestra&utm_medium=email&utm_term
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/dedicated-adult-social-care-funding-forms-key-part-of-continued-long-term-funding-certainty-for-councils
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/dedicated-adult-social-care-funding-forms-key-part-of-continued-long-term-funding-certainty-for-councils
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/dedicated-adult-social-care-funding-forms-key-part-of-continued-long-term-funding-certainty-for-councils
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/new-homes-bonus-sharpening-the-incentive-technical-consultation
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/new-homes-bonus-sharpening-the-incentive-technical-consultation
http://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2015/12/local-government-settlement-offers-councils-four-year-funding-deals
http://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2015/12/local-government-settlement-offers-councils-four-year-funding-deals
https://www.england.nhs.uk/2016/12/vanguard-funding/
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/financial-sustainability-in-schools/
https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/blog/2016/11/will-stps-deliver-changes-we-wish-see-our-health-and-care-services
https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/blog/2016/11/will-stps-deliver-changes-we-wish-see-our-health-and-care-services
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/02/stp-footprints-march-2016.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/02/stp-footprints-march-2016.pdf
https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/projects/sustainability-and-transformation-plans
https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/projects/sustainability-and-transformation-plans
https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/publications/priorities-nhs-social-care-2017
https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/publications/priorities-nhs-social-care-2017
http://www.psaa.co.uk/supporting-the-transition/appointing-person/procurement-strategy/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/supporting-the-transition/appointing-person/procurement-strategy/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/reports-on-the-results-of-auditors-work/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/reports-on-the-results-of-auditors-work/
http://www.ey.com/Publication/vwLUAssets/EY_-_Accelerating_your_financial_close_arrangements/$FILE/EY-accelerating-your-financial-close-arrangements.pdf
http://www.ey.com/Publication/vwLUAssets/EY_-_Accelerating_your_financial_close_arrangements/$FILE/EY-accelerating-your-financial-close-arrangements.pdf
http://www.ey.com/Publication/vwLUAssets/EY_-_Accelerating_your_financial_close_arrangements/$FILE/EY-accelerating-your-financial-close-arrangements.pdf
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Broads Authority

Financial Scrutiny and Audit
Committee

25 July 2017

Agenda Item No 13

Implementation of Internal Audit Recommendations: Summary of Progress

Report by Chief Financial Officer

Summary: This report updates members on progress in implementing

Internal Audit recommendations arising out of audits carried out
during 2016/17.

Recommendation: That the report be noted.

11

1.2

2.1

3.1

Introduction

It has been agreed that this Committee will receive a regular update of
progress made in implementing Internal Audit report recommendations,
focusing on outstanding recommendations and including timescales for
completion of any outstanding work.

This report summarizes the current position regarding recommendations
arising out of internal audit reports which have been produced for 2016/17. It
sets out in the appendix details of:

e recommendations not yet implemented;

e recommendations not implemented at the time of the last meeting which
have since been implemented: and

e New recommendations since the last meeting.

Summary of Progress

In the previous report to this Committee in February the final recommendation
relating to External Funding still remains outstanding but is due to be
completed by the end of August.

Internal Audit Programme 2016/17

The third and fourth audit from the 2016/17 programme have now been
completed, with further details below. At the date of this report the first audit
from the 2017/18 programme on Asset Management is underway and the
results from this audit will be reported to the next FSAC meeting on 14
November 2017.
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3.2 Key Controls

3.2.1 The objective of the audit was to review the systems and controls in place
within Key Controls, in particular for Treasury Management, Asset
Management, Budgetary Control, Control Accounts, Cash and Bank, General
Ledger, Accounts Receivable, Accounts Payable, Payroll and Toll Income, to
help confirm that these are operating adequately, effectively and efficiently.
This resulted in a “reasonable” audit opinion with four “important” and three
“needs attention” recommendations.

3.2.2 The audit identified areas for improvement. Details of these recommendations
and their progress can be found in Appendix 1.

3.2.3 Good practice was noted relating to sound controls that are in place and
operating consistently around:

Treasury Management
e Investments tested were documented and authorised and there is
evidence of segregation between approval and transfer of funds.
e Loans and investments are reconciled to the general ledger and bank
statements.
General Ledger
e The general ledger suspense account is reviewed on a monthly basis
and any long outstanding items are cleared.

Asset Management
e All capital additions and disposals reviewed were authorised in
accordance with procedures.
e The asset register is reconciled to the ledger once a year and access to
the register is restricted to appropriate staff.

Budgetary Control

e After year-end (from July onwards), budget monitor reports are shared
with budget holders on a monthly basis which highlight any variances
above £10,000. These are accompanied by the an email from the
Financial Accountant requesting an explanation of variances and
changes to forecast outturn (year-end positions); commentary to
explain significant variances (+/- £10,000) within their budgets and;
requests for budget virements (budget transfers).

e Budgetary information, both capital and revenue is reconciled to the
general ledger on a monthly basis.

Accounts Payable
e Invoices were approved and authorised in accordance with the
authorised signatories list.
e BACs runs had been signed and dated, prior to the payment run, by an
appropriate officer.
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3.24

3.3

3.3.1

3.3.2

3.3.3

Toll Income
e Payments had sequentially numbered plaques raised and recorded as
issued on the system.
e Payment batches balanced to the payments received, and batch totals
balanced to the Tolls Management System (TMS) for hire tolls, private
tolls, overpayments and other payments.

Control Accounts
e The purchase control account, sales control account and salary control
account are reconciled to the general ledger system on a monthly
basis.

Cash and Bank
e Bank reconciliations were completed, reconciling items resolved and
the reconciliations signed and dated by the preparer and reviewer.

Five of the recommendations have been implemented (although only four
were completed at 31 March), with two still outstanding.

Corporate Governance

The objective of the audit was to review the systems and controls within
Corporate Governance for Executive and non-executive decision making in
accordance with the constitution/governance arrangements and Systems and
processes in place for the preparation of reports requiring executive and non-
executive decisions. This resulted in a “reasonable” audit opinion with one
“important” and two “needs attention” recommendations.

The audit identified areas for improvement. Details of these recommendations
and their progress can be found in Appendix 1.

Good practice was noted relating to sound controls that are in place and
operating consistently around:

Executive and non-executive decisions making in accordance with the
Constitution/governance arrangements

e Powers reserved to the Broads Authority and those delegated to other
authorities are detailed in the Broads Authority Terms of Reference of
Committees document. The list of matters delegated to the Chief
Executive and other officers are detailed in the Scheme of delegated
powers.

e Key documents are in place that govern members and officers conduct,
which are; the Code of Conduct for Members and Complaints
Procedure (September 2016) and the Protocol on Member and Officer
Relations in the Broads Authority. The Code of Conduct refers to
decision making as part of members core values - 'We are open,
honest and inclusive in our communication and in making decisions’
and also states that decision making should be made objectively and
with integrity and propriety.
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e Risks in respect of decision making processes have been included in
the strategic risk register, and examples of these include “decisions
which are not made in accordance with planning policy” and
“shortcomings in decision making due to poor financial management’.

Systems and processes in place for the preparation of reports requiring
executive and non-executive decisions
e The Broads Authority Member Development Strategy supports the

development of staff, Members and co-opted Members to achieve
continuous improvement of its services and was updated in January
2017. This includes details of member induction training, which
incorporates governance and representation, including; the Broads
Authority’s Code of Conduct; the Planning Committee’s Code of
Conduct for Members and Officers (if applicable); Standing Orders; the
Protocol on Member and Officer Relations in the Broads Authority; and
the Broads Authority Communication Strategy.

3.3.4 One of the recommendations has been implemented, with two still outstanding
but on target for completion.

Background papers: None

Author: Emma Krelle

Date of report: 28 June 2017

Broads Plan Objectives: None

Appendices: APPENDIX 1 — Summary of Actions / Responses to Internal

Audit Recommendations 2016/17
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APPENDIX 1
Summary of Actions / Responses to Internal Audit Recommendations 2016/17

External Funding: October 2016

Recommendations P”Q”ty Re§p0n5|ble BA Response/Action Timetable
Rating Officer(s)

1. Procedural guidance Important Broads Agreed. Procedural By 31/01/17
To develop procedural guidance for Landscape guidelines will be produced
the Broads Landscape Partnership. Partnership in draft by the end of
This procedure should cover the Programme January to be presented to
administrative processes, including Manager the next Board meeting
project management, governance, (March) for approval.
systems used such as base camp,
and the staff involved. Update: Following the Board

meeting it was agreed to
The procedures should be version develop procedural
controlled. guidelines following the
submission of the second
The compilation of such procedural round application. These
guidance would enable a consistent guidelines will include
approach to be applied with the day to management of payments,
day management of the service. reporting structure and
Procedures can also be used as a evaluation requirements.
training tool and to highlight process There will also be a contract
improvements and efficiencies. This specific to each project
will help to mitigate the risks of which will include
inconsistent practices occurring, responsibilities related to
inefficient and ineffective processes CDM, insurance, safe-
being applied and disrupted business guarding, etc. The board
continuity. decided that we need to
speak to all board members
and gather a number of
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Summary of Actions / Responses to Internal Audit Recommendations 2016/17

APPENDIX 1

Recommendations P”Q”ty Regpon5|ble BA Response/Action Timetable
Rating Officer(s)
organisations policies and
procedures to allow us to
create a bespoke set for the
delivery phase of the
Scheme.
The timescale has been
extended to the end of
August to allow our focus to
be on the second round HLF
submission.
Key Controls & Assurance
Recommendations P”Q”ty Re§p0n5|ble BA Response/Action Timetable
Rating Officer(s)
Accounts Receivable/Payable Important Chief Agreed By 31/07/17
To amend the Broads Authority Financial
Financial Regulations as follows: Officer Updated Finance
- Formalisation of processes Regulations are on this
regarding debtor payments being agenda.
received in advance of goods/services
being issued.
- Expansion of exceptions to paper
purchase order or requisition being
raised, to incorporate services/goods
supplied which are covered by a
formal contract. In these cases, the
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APPENDIX 1
Summary of Actions / Responses to Internal Audit Recommendations 2016/17

Priority Responsible

Rating Officer(s) BA Response/Action Timetable

Recommendations

contract should be referred to and
checked to ensure invoices are in
accordance with it.

Payment in advance of
goods/services supplied by the
Broads Authority will help to mitigate
the risk that debt is unrecoverable.
Updating the financial regulations
document mitigates the risk that it
does not reflect current working
practices.

2. Accounts Receivable Important Chief Completed. By 31/03/17
To document procedures for the sales Financial
ledger processes including the system Officer
of debt recovery.

Documented procedures help to
mitigate the risks of inconsistent
practices occurring, inefficient and
ineffective processes being applied
and disrupted business continuity.

3 Payroll Important Head of HR Completed. By 30/04/17
The payroll errors risk to be raised at
Management Team for inclusion
within the strategic risk register. This
should include the risk being scored,
current mitigation assessed and if it
falls within the Broads Authority risk
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APPENDIX 1
Summary of Actions / Responses to Internal Audit Recommendations 2016/17

Recommendations P”Q”ty Regpon5|ble BA Response/Action Timetable
Rating Officer(s)

appetite.

Currently the reduction in payroll

errors has not been over a sustained

period of time and monitoring this as a

risk will help mitigate any future

material errors which could result in

the payroll being paid incorrectly.

4, Payroll Important Head of HR Agreed. By 30/04/17

To document procedures for the

payroll review/checking and Update: Due to a long

submission process undertaken by standing vacancy within HR

the HR team, including the role the checklists have been

Finance Team perform. produced but procedures

This should include the remain outstanding. A new

documentation of all identified errors member of staff is due to

within the HR payroll checking join the team at the end of

spreadsheet. July with the focus on
procedures being in place

Documented procedures help to by the end of September.

mitigate the risks of inconsistent Finance procedures are

practices occurring, inefficient and complete.

ineffective processes being applied

and disrupted business continuity.

Documentation of all errors provides a

clear audit trail to support the

correction of errors mitigating the risk

that the payroll has been calculated
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APPENDIX 1
Summary of Actions / Responses to Internal Audit Recommendations 2016/17

Priority Responsible

Rating Officer(s) BA Response/Action Timetable

Recommendations

incorrectly.

5. General Ledger Needs Chief Completed. Agreed and
Adequate supporting documentation Attention Financial completed prior to
or explanatory narrative to be retained Officer final audit report
on file for all journals. publication.

Supporting narrative provides a clear
audit trail and helps reduce the risk
that journals have been processed
incorrectly.

6. Accounts Receivable Needs Chief Completed. Agreed and
To ensure explanatory notes for more | Attention Financial completed prior to
complex debtor cases are put onto Officer final audit report
dimensions to explain the latest publication.
situation regarding each debt.

Clear audit trails means there is not
ambiguity as to which stage the debt
is at which helps mitigate the risk that
debt is not actioned in a timely
manner or action is taken incorrectly.

7. Toll Income Needs Head of IT Agreed. By 31/08/17
To update the Toll procedure manual | Attention and Collector
to reflect all changes to the system, of Tolls
including the changes in toll charges
from 1st April 2017 and to include the
toll payment enforcement process.
Rationale & Risk: Up to date
procedures helps to mitigate the risks
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APPENDIX 1
Summary of Actions / Responses to Internal Audit Recommendations 2016/17

Recommendations P”Q”ty Regpon5|ble BA Response/Action Timetable
Rating Officer(s)
of inconsistent practices occurring,
inefficient and ineffective processes
being applied and disrupted business
continuity.
Corporate Governance
Recommendations Priority Re§p0n5|ble BA Response/Action Timetable
Rating Officer(s)
1. Systems and processes in place Important Solicitor and | Agreed By 30/09/017
for the preparation of reports Monitoring
requiring executive and non- Officer

executive decisions

To maintain a clear record of the
decisions made by the Broads
Authority, which is made available to
the public on the website. This should
include:

- Compiling a register of material
decisions made since 2014.

- Producing a set of guidance on what
should be published (to include a
definition of contract and expenditure
materiality and those decisions which
affects the rights of an individual) and;
- Production of a template document
to record decisions.

The above documents are to be
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APPENDIX 1
Summary of Actions / Responses to Internal Audit Recommendations 2016/17

Priority Responsible

Rating Officer(s) BA Response/Action Timetable

Recommendations

drafted in accordance with the
Openness of Local Government
Bodies Regulations 2014, which came
into effect from August 2014.

To comply with the Openness of Local
Government Bodies Regulations 2014
and mitigate the risks that the Broads
Authority commits an offence under
this regulation and that there is
incomplete transparency to the public.

2. Executive and non-executive Needs Solicitor and | Agreed By 31/07/17
decision making in accordance Attention Monitoring
with the constitution/governance Officer
arrangements
To review standing orders, including
specific reference to matters being
decided by a majority vote and
stipulating who has a casting vote.
Alongside this, to review and update
the Broads Authority Terms of
Reference of Committees, specifically
the Financial, Scrutiny and Audit
Committee to reflect that this is a
consultative committee.

Currently, there appears to be a gap
in relation to the majority and casting
voting process and inclusion of this in
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APPENDIX 1
Summary of Actions / Responses to Internal Audit Recommendations 2016/17

Priority Responsible

Rating Officer(s) BA Response/Action Timetable

Recommendations

the standing orders would mitigate the
risk that the voting process is unclear
and matters decided upon are
undertaken improperly.

Financial Scrutiny and Audit
Committee decisions, in some
instances, do not currently reflect the
committee terms of reference and
therefore amendment of these would
mitigate the risk that the practices
applied are inconsistent with agreed
governance leading to ambiguity over
which practices should actually be
applied.

3. Systems and processes in place Needs Solicitor and | Agreed and completed. By 31/03/17
for the preparation of reports Attention Monitoring
requiring executive and non- Officer
executive decisions
To include the following items in the
Summary of Progress/Actions Taken
following Decisions of Previous
Meetings:

- 22/01/2016 - item 4/17: National
Park Partnership (NPP), delegated
decisions to the Chief Executive.

- 13/05/2016 - item 6/9b - Berney
arms, Halvergate marshes, that the
CE in consultation with the chairman,
vice-chairman & chairman of the
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APPENDIX 1
Summary of Actions / Responses to Internal Audit Recommendations 2016/17

Priority Responsible

Rating Officer(s) BA Response/Action Timetable

Recommendations

FSAC be given delegated authority to
take action and pursue the matter if
considered appropriate’.

- 18/11/2016 item 3/15 - 'that
delegated authority be given to the
Section 17 Officer to communicate the
willingness of the authority to join the
scheme to PSAA'

Inclusion of all decisions delegated to
officers in the 'Summary of
Progress/Actions Taken' helps
mitigate the risk that there is
inadequate transparency on progress
of decisions made resulting in
members receiving an incomplete
picture.
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Broads Authority

Financial Scrutiny and Audit
Committee

25 July 2017

Agenda Item No 14

Updated Financial Regulations
Report by Chief Financial Officer

Summary: This report appends the updated Financial Regulations following

a recommendation from the Key Controls Audit.

Recommendation: (i) That the updated Financial Regulations are adopted.

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

2.1

2.2

Key Controls Audit February 2017

During the Key Controls Audit it was identified as one of the audit
recommendations that the current process relating to where the Authority is
required to make payment on a customer’s behalf the Financial Regulations
should be updated to reflect that advance payment is required prior to the
goods/services being dispatched. Although this was already happening in
practice it was not currently documented. This amendment is currently
showing at paragraph 48.3 on page 26.

The recommendation also required that the regulations were updated to
reflect all circumstances when a purchase order was not required. This
specifically related to where a formal contract existed that committed us to
the services/goods. This amendment is currently showing at paragraph 39.8
on page 21.

These amendments were reviewed by Management Team on 27 June 2017
where it was agreed the amended regulations would be put forward to the
next committee. A copy of the updated regulations was also sent to the Head
of Internal Audit for comment. All changes are shown in track changes.

Additional Amendments

Whilst updating the Financial Regulations for the audit recommendations it
provided an opportunity to update the change to the Section 17 Officer from
it being outsourced to now being provided in house. As part of this change
there have been amendments made to the signing of cheques, this is
detailed on page 23. Again changes are shown in track changes.

There have also been some additional adjustments to bring the legislation
quoted up to date and the Authority’s arrangements for external audit. Again
adjustments can be found on pages 3 and 18.
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3. Summary

3.1 Following Internal Audits recommendation to review the regulations it is
recommended that members adopt the latest version.

Background papers: None

Author: Emma Krelle

Date of report: 7 July 2017

Broads Plan Objectives: None

Appendices: APPENDIX 1 — Financial Regulations
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Introduction

1.2

1.3

2.2

2.3

2.4

Why do we have Financial Regulations?

Section 17 of the Norfolk and Suffolk Broads Act 1988 states that the Authority shall
“make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and shall
secure that one of its officers has responsibility for the administration of those
affairs”.

The Local Government Act 1972 directs that authorities shall make arrangements for
the proper administration of their financial affairs, and that some of their officers be
responsible for the administration of those affairs.

Under powers contained in the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014Geverament
Finance Act1982 {523 and-35) the Secretary-of State-also-makesregulationsastothe
accounts-themselves-andrequiresthem-it requires the Accounts to be audited by the

a local auditor appointed by-the-Audit-Commissionin accordance with the Act. The
‘Accounts and Audit Regulations’ require that the ‘Responsible Financial Officer’

must determine and be responsible for the accounting systems and the form of both
the accounts and supporting records of the Authority. That officer must further
ensure (by maintaining an effective and adequate audit) that rules so made are
observed and that all records are maintained in a satisfactory manner. To conduct its
business efficiently, a local authority needs to ensure that it has sound financial
management policies in place and that they are adhered to. Part of this process is
the establishment of financial regulations that set out the financial policies of the
Authority.

Status of Financial Regulations

Financial Regulations provide a framework for managing the Authority’s financial
affairs. They apply to every member and officer of the Authority and anyone acting
on its behalf.

These Regulations set out the financial responsibilities of the Broads Authority,
Financial Scrutiny and Audit Committee, Chief Executive, Freasurerand-Finaneial
AdviserChief Financial Officer, Solicitor and Monitoring Officer; BirecterofPlanning
and-ResourcesHead-efFinance-and Directors.

All members and officers have a responsibility for taking reasonable action to
provide for the security of the assets under their control, and for ensuring that the
use of these assets is legal, properly authorised, provides value for money and
achieves best value.

The Head-efFinaneeChief Financial Officer is responsible for maintaining a
continuous review of the Financial Regulations and submitting any additions or
changes as necessary to the Authority for approval. He/she is also responsible for
reporting, where appropriate, breaches of these Financial Regulations to the
Authority.
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2.5

2.6

3.2

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

Directors are responsible for ensuring that all members of staff in their Directorates
are aware of the existence and content of the Authority’s Financial Regulations, as
appropriate.

These Regulations should be read in conjunction with:

Standing Orders;

Standing Orders Relating to Contracts;

Scheme of Powers Delegated to Officers;

Procedure Manuals;

Financial Grant Memorandum issued by the Department for the
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (Defra);

Treasury and Annual Investment Strategy;

Prudential Code; and

Procurement Strategy.

Statement of Principles

The Authority expects high standards of conduct from its members and officers and
those with whom it has dealings. Further to this the Authority expects honesty,
openness and integrity to be the values which underpin its financial affairs and all
those involved with the Authority’s finances should work with these values in mind.

The principles below provide the basis for the detailed guidance in Financial
Regulations.

The Principles

The Authority is responsible for the stewardship of public money and will make
arrangements to safeguard it.

The Authority expects its members and officers to exercise high standards in
financial management and administration and aims to stimulate openness and a
climate of frankness that it will support through policies and regulations, such as the
Whistle Blowing Policy and the Counter Fraud, Corruption and Bribery Strategy.

The planning, monitoring and controlling of the use of resources is of vital
importance to the Authority and it will make arrangements for these activities to be
undertaken effectively.

Issues of probity will be dealt with effectively and the Authority will work to meet its
duty to maintain proper accounts and related records.

Value for money is at the core of the Authority’s financial activity and the way in
which it administers its financial affairs.

Compliance with statutory requirements, accounting standards and appropriate
codes of practice will be inherent in the Authority’s arrangements for financial
matters.

Allocation of responsibility and authority in relation to financial matters will be
clearly identified.

The Authority is mindful of the need for consistent standards in financial
administration and management across all its operations and will set in place
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4.9

4.10

4.11

guidance to be adhered to by all its Directorates. In particular, it expects staff to
consult with and use all of the expertise in financial matters that it has available and
act on advice from such sources.

The assets and resources of the Authority must be protected from loss, damage and
theft.

Identifying and quantifying risks to the Authority is of key importance and
arrangements must be made to reduce, eliminate or insure against them as
appropriate.

The accurate, appropriate and timely payment and collection of monies forms much
of the routine financial business of the Authority and arrangements will be made for
its proper administration.
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Financial Management

5.2

53

5.4

Roles and Responsibilities

The Broads Authority is responsible for setting the overall policy and direction of the
Authority. Its financial responsibilities include approving the annual consolidated
budget and Statement of Accounts, fixing navigation tolls, appointing the Section 17
Officer and generally monitoring the resources of the Authority.

The Financial Scrutiny and Audit Committee reports to the Broads Authority. Its
financial responsibilities include reviewing and recommending for approval the
annual Statement of Accounts, approving Financial Regulations and Standing Orders
Relating to Contracts, and oversight of internal audit and risk management
processes.

The Chief Executive is responsible for the day to day management and control of the
Authority, including its staff, premises and services, and is responsible for ensuring
the implementation of strategies and policies as determined by the Broads Authority
and its committees. The Chief Executive is also responsible, in conjunction with, and
on the advice of, the Chief Financial Officer, for the preparation of annual budgets
and statements of accounts, and for the maintenance of all financial systems and
procedures to ensure that the Authority operates within its financial limits and
complies with all financial and statutory requirements and in accordance with good
accounting practice.

The TFreasurer—and—Financial-AdviserChief Financial Officer is responsible for the
proper administration of the Authority’s financial affairs, in accordance with section
17 of the Norfolk and Suffolk Broads Act 1988. The specific responsibilities include
the regulation and control of finance, and the making of safe and efficient
arrangements for the receipt of monies; external and internal audit matters,
including the appointment of auditors: pension fund matters; insurances;
investment; and the operation of the Authority’s bank accounts. The CFO is also
responsible for the day to day management of the Authority’s financial affairs,
including the management of the Finance Section, preparation of the three year
Financial Strategy, annual budgets and statements of accounts, monthly
management statements, cash flow and the investment of surplus funds, and
ensuring that all internal systems and controls are maintained accurately and
efficiently, in accordance with statutory requirements and nationally and locally
agreed standards of practice.

The Solicitor and Monitoring Officer is responsible for promoting and maintaining
high standards of financial and other conduct in the Authority and for reporting any
breaches of the law or maladministration.
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5.6

5.7

5.8

6.2

6.3

6.4

Directors and Section Heads are responsible for ensuring that there is appropriate
budgetary provision for all activities carried out within their Directorate or Section,
that staff are aware of and comply with Financial Regulations and Standing Orders
Relating to Contracts at all times, and that any matters which arise which have or are
likely to have significant financial implications are reported to the Birectorof

PlanningandResourcesandforHead-of FinaneeChief Financial Officer in order that

appropriate corrective action can be taken.

Accounting Arrangements

The Freasurerand-Financial-AdviserChief Financial Officer is responsible for ensuring
that there are appropriate systems in force for keeping the accounts and financial
records of the Authority and that the Authority’s annual financial accounts and
reports are prepared to meet statutory requirements. The Freasurerand-Financial
AdviserChief Financial Officer must also approve the accounting systems and
accounting records in use, and any significant changes to these arrangements.

Accounting procedures will reflect recommended professional practices, and follow
accounting principles determined from time to time by the Head-efFinaneceChief
Financial Officer, in line with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy (CIPFA) standards of practice, International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), the Financial Grant Memorandum issued by Defra under which
grant funding is paid and instructions and advice received from Defra and the
Authority’s auditors.

Accounting procedures will be reviewed as necessary by the Head-efFinaneeChief
Financial Officer in consultation with the BirectorofPlanningand ResourcesChief

Executive to ensure that they provide the information required without duplication
of records.

The Chief Executive must examine and certify where required any submission,
estimate or claim for payment of grant by a Government Department or funding
from any other body. Officers responsible for the administration of such grants,
funds and spending associated with them must ensure compliance with the
conditions of the grant/funding.
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6.5

8.2

9.1

The Chief Executive must examine and certify where required any financial return to
a Government Department or other body.

Budgeting Process

The Birector-of Planning-and-ResourcesChief Executive, in conjunction with the Head
efFinaneeChief Financial Officer, will ensure that there is in place an appropriate

process and timetable to ensure that budgets are prepared in a timely manner, that
this is communicated to all senior managers and budget holders, and that progress in
preparing the budgets is monitored.

In year Financial Reporting

It is the responsibility of the Head-efFinaneceChief Financial Officer to ensure that
budget managers are provided with monthly management statements from month 3
(June) onwards.

The most current financial report highlighting major variance and areas of concern
must be provided to the Broads Authority, Navigation Committee and Financial
Scrutiny and Audit Committee at each meeting.

Year End Accounting

The Head-efFinanceChief Financial Officer is responsible for ensuring that the annual
Statement of Accounts is prepared in accordance with the “Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the UK” (CIPFA). The Broads Authority is responsible for
approving the carrying forward above £1,000, from one year to another of any under
spending on budget headings. The Authority’s final financial position as presented in
the annual Statement of Accounts will be approved by the Broads Authority once
reviewed by the Financial Scrutiny and Audit Committee.
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Financial Planning and Control of Expenditure

The importance of this area is in the need for sound financial planning, monitoring and
control of resources. Sound budget management is crucial to informing good decision
making and achieving best value in the use of the Authority’s resources.

10 Policy Framework

10.2 The Authority is responsible for agreeing the Authority’s framework and budget. In
terms of financial planning the key elements are:

e the Authority’s purposes as set out in the Norfolk and Suffolk Broads Act 1988, as
amended by the Broads Authority Act 2009;

e the Broads Plan;

e the Authority’s Business Plan;

e the Financial Grant Memorandum;

e the annual revenue budget and three year Financial Strategy;
e the Capital Strategy and annual Capital Programme; and

e the Treasury and Annual Investment Strategy and Prudential Indicators (limits for
external borrowing, other long term liabilities and related matters).

11 Revenue Budget Preparation

11.1  The Chief Executive, in consultation with the-Birectorof Planningand
ReseureesChief Financial Officer, is responsible for ensuring that a revenue budget

for the coming year and a three year Financial Strategy for at least the two
subsequent financial years is prepared for consideration by the Broads Authority.

11.2 The Head-efFinanceChief Financial Officer, in consultation with the Directors-ef

Planningand-Reseurees, is responsible for providing guidance on the general format
of the budget.

11.3 The Chief Executive will submit a Budget and Financial Strategy to the Broads
Authority for approval by 31 March each year.

11.4 The Chief Executive, in consultation with the BirecterofPlanningand
ReseurcesChief Financial Officer, is responsible for reporting to the Authority on the

robustness of estimates contained within the budget and adequacy of reserves
allowed for in the budget proposals.

12 Resource Allocation

12.1 The Chief Executive is responsible for developing and maintaining a resource
allocation process that ensures that both capital and revenue expenditure plans take
account of the Authority’s policy framework and changing priorities within that.

12.2 It is the responsibility of the Chief Executive and Directors to ensure that the revenue
and capital budget estimates reflect the priorities and goals in the Broads Plan and
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13
13.1

13.2

14
14.1

14.2

14.3

14.4

14.5

14.6

14.7

15
15.1

Business Plan, and that agreed service plans are in line with the Financial Strategy
and capital strategy.

Maintenance of Reserves

The Broads Authority will determine the levels of reserves that are considered to be
prudent and necessary. This decision will be taken having regard to the advice of the
Treasurerand-Finanecial-AdviserChief Financial Officer and the Chief Executive, and
will be based on an annual risk assessment.

The three year Financial Strategy should be drawn up having regard to the need to
either reach or maintain the recommended level of reserves.

Revenue Budget Management and Control

It is the responsibility of the appropriate Director to manage and control each of the
Directorate’s budgets under their management.

The appropriate Director must ensure that there is a designated officer (the Budget
Holder) accountable to them for the detailed management of each budget and notify
the Head-efFinaneeChief Financial Officer of those so designated.

Directors will jointly carry out regular budget monitoring and reporting to identify
financial problems and recommend to the Chief Executive action necessary to
resolve them.

Monitoring reports setting out potential or actual service financial problems and key
issues will be made to the Financial Scrutiny and Audit Committee, the Broads
Authority and the Navigation Committee as appropriate at each of their meetings.

At the end of each financial year, where there is an underspend within a budget, the
Head-ef-FinanceChief Financial Officer will collate a list of carry-forward requests for
consideration by the Management Team. Where these underspends are individually
below £1,000 (under £5,000 in total) they will be agreed by Management Team. For
those items above £1,000 they will presented to the Broads Authority for approval.
After the appropriate level of approval these will be carried forward into the
following year.

The Authority’s final financial position as presented in the annual Statement of
Accounts will be approved by the Broads Authority.

As required by the Broads Authority Act 2009, the Head-efFinranceChief Financial
Officer will produce, as soon as reasonably possible after the end of the financial
year, a statement showing the navigation income received by the Authority and the
navigation expenditure incurred during the year.

Monitoring and Control of Affordable Borrowing

It is the responsibility of the Head-ef-FinanceChief Financial Officer, incensultation
with-the Freasurerand-Financial-Adviser-to develop and maintain systems to
monitor performance against prudential indicators. Reports on performance against
indicators including early warning of any possible breach of any prudential indicator
should be made to the Financial Scrutiny and Audit Committee as appropriate.
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16
16.1

17
17.1

17.2

17.3

17.4

17.5

18
18.1

19
19.1

19.2

Authority to Incur Revenue Expenditure

No expenditure shall be incurred nor any reduction in income authorised unless such
expenditure or reduction in income is:

(a) covered by the annual or latest approved budgets agreed by the Authority;
(b) related to approved carried forward budget from the previous year; or

(c) covered by a virement.

Virements

A virement is a transfer of budget from one budget heading to another within a
financial year, where a budget is to be used for a different purpose than originally
approved.

Virements of up to £10,000 within any financial year may be approved by Directors
between main budget headings under their responsibility. All such virement requests
must be made on a virement approval form, duly signed by the appropriate Director
and be forwarded to the Head-efFinaneeChief Financial Officer for the budget to be
updated.

Virements between £10,001 and £19,999, may also be approved by Directors
between main budget heads under their responsibility. Again this must be made on a
virement approval form, duly signed by the appropriate Director and countersigned
by the Chief Executive, and be forwarded to the Head-efFinaneceChief Financial
Officer for the budget to be updated.

Virements in excess of £20,000, or between Directorates, must be reported the
Broads Authority for approval.

It will not be a virement, and approval is not required, where a budget transfer
relates to a movement for the purposes of budget restructuring (i.e. where there is
no change to the use to which the budget is being put).

Preparation of the Capital Programme

All capital expenditure must be in accordance with the Authority’s Annual
Investment and Capital Financing Strategy and driven by its Asset Management
Strategy.

Capital Receipts

The sale or disposal of any land, buildings, vehicles, vessels or equipment which was
valued at the time of acquisition over £5,000 is considered to be a capital receipt.
Particular rules must be observed in dealing with the proceeds and they must not be
confused with revenue income such as fees and charges.

The Head-efFinanceChief Financial Officer and the Authority’s Asset Officer must be
informed of all proposed or possible sales or disposals of land, buildings, vehicles,
vessels or equipment so that the effect on financial and property management can
be assessed.
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20
20.1

20.2

Leasing

All acquisitions and disposals of land, property or other assets must be carried out in
accordance with the Authority’s Asset Management Strategy and be authorised by
the Chief Executive.

Officers negotiating and committing the Authority to any leasing arrangement shall
consult with the Head-efFinaneeChief Financial Officer and the Asset Officer prior to
finalizing any lease arrangement. Once completed, they will furnish the Head-of
FinaneeChief Financial Officer and the Asset Officer with details of the income to be
received, the parties to the lease and the term of the lease, along with signed copies
of the lease agreement.
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Risk Management and Control of Resources

21 Risk Management

21.1 The Financial Scrutiny and Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring the
effective development and operation of risk management within the Authority, and
for reviewing the Strategic Risk Register.

21.2 The arrangements for the day to day management of risk are set out in the Risk
Management Strategy. The Solicitor and Monitoring Office is responsible for
ensuring that this Strategy is regularly reviewed and updated, and that the
arrangements set out in the Strategy are promoted throughout the Authority and
implemented.

21.3 The general controls for risk management are:

e Procedures are in place to identify, assess, prevent or contain material known
risks and the procedures are operating effectively throughout the Authority.

e A monitoring process is in place to review the effectiveness of risk reduction
strategies and operation of these controls.

e Managers know which risks they are responsible for managing and are provided
with relevant information.

e Provision is made for any losses that might result from the risks that remain.
e Claims are investigated within a given time scale.
e Acceptable levels of risk are determined and insured against where appropriate.

e The Authority has identified business continuity plans in the event of a disaster
that results in significant loss or damage to its resources.

22 Internal Control

22.1 Internal control refers to the systems of control devised by management to help
ensure the Authority’s objectives are achieved in a manner that promotes the
economic, efficient and effective use of resources and that the Authority’s assets are
safeguarded.

23 Systems of Internal Control

23.1 The Directorof Planningand-ResourcesChief Executive is responsible for advising on

effective systems of internal control.

23.2 These arrangements need to ensure compliance with all applicable statutes and
regulations and other relevant statements of best practice.

23.3 Directors are responsible for establishing sound arrangements for planning,
appraising, authorising and controlling their operations to achieve continuous
improvement, economy, efficiency and effectiveness and for achieving their financial
and non-financial performance targets.
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23.4

24
24.1

24.2

24.3

25
25.1

26
26.1

27
27.1

27.2

The Solicitor and Monitoring Officer shall prepare an annual statement of the
effectiveness of the Authority’s system of internal control incorporated into the
Annual Governance Statement. This statement will be published as part of the
Annual Statement of Accounts and will be approved by the Broads Authority.

Security

The Chief Executive is responsible for maintaining proper security at all times for all
buildings, stocks, stores, vehicles, furniture, equipment, cash and any other assets
for which the Authority is responsible.

Maximum limits for cash holding at Authority locations should be established by the
Head-efFinaneeChief Financial Officer and adequate insurance should be put in
place to cover any loss up to those values.

Employee responsibilities in respect of the use of all ICT equipment and accessories
are set out in the ICT Usage and Security Policy (Human Resources Policy Note No.
18). All members of staff are required to indicate, either by signature or
electronically, that they have read and understood the Policy and agree to be bound
by its terms.

Separation of Duties
The following principles shall be observed in the allocation of accounting duties:

e the duties of providing information regarding sums due to or from the Authority,
and of calculating, checking and recording these sums, shall be separated as
completely as possible from the duty of collecting or disbursing them;

e officers charged with the duty of examining and checking the accounts of cash
transactions shall not themselves be engaged in any of these transactions.

Retention of Records

Accounting and other records must be retained for periods that comply with
relevant legal requirements. Detailed standards are contained within the Authority’s
Document Management, Retention and Disposal Policy.

Investments and Treasury Management

All investments of money shall be made in accordance with the Authority’s Annual
Investment Strategy, which is prepared by the Head-efFinaneeChief Financial Officer
in accordance with the Prudential Code and approved by the Broads Authority
before the start of each financial year.

The Freasurerand-Finanecial-AdviserChief Financial Officer is responsible for the
investment of surplus monies. All such investments shall be carried out ea-the
Autheority's behalf by Broadland District Couneil-under the overall direction of the
Ipeasumpand—ﬁﬂaneal—AdwseFChlef FlnanC|aI Offlcer H-Mess—sepapate—apremgements

A ’ ranee-The
Ipeasumpand—ﬁﬂaneal—AdwseFChlef FlnanC|aI Offlcer will report on the performance
of the investments to the Financial Scrutiny and Audit Committee on a six monthly
basis.
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28
28.1

28.2

29
29.1

29.2

29.3

30
30.1

30.2
30.3
30.4

| 30.5

Estates

The Asset Officer will ensure that a register of all land and buildings owned by the
Authority is maintained which states, where appropriate, the location, extent, plan
reference, purchase details, particulars of nature of interest and rent payable.

The Asset Officer will also ensure custody of all title deeds under secure
arrangements.

Sale of Assets

The Freasurerand-Financial-AdviserChief Financial Officer is authorised, in
consultation with the Chief Executive, to write off any obsolete stores or equipment,
or loss of property not exceeding £25,000. The Chief Executive is authorised to write
off any obsolete stores or equipment, or loss of property not exceeding £5,000.

The Chief Executive may make arrangements for the disposal of surplus items
(excluding land, buildings and leased items) with an estimated market value of up to
£10,000. For surplus items above £10,000 approval must be obtained from the
Authority and the disposal must be via the method which is judged most likely to
achieve the best consideration for the Authority. This includes public auction
(including eBay or an alternative online auction method), disposal by way of a
specialist broker or intermediary, or by sealed bid after public advertisement.

The Chief Executive is authorised to make arrangements for the disposal of land and
property to a maximum value of £25,000, in accordance with advice from the
Authority’s Property Advisers.

Stocks and Stores

Directors shall be responsible for the care and custody of the stocks and stores
within their Directorate.

Iltems that will be considered as stock are items purchased that can only be
consumed once. Items such: salvaged as spares, part consumed liquids or off cuts of
wood will not be included. Stocks shall not be in excess of normal requirements
except in special circumstances.

The Head-efFinaneeChief Financial Officer shall arrange for independent periodical
test examinations of stocks and shall ensure that stocks are checked at least once
every year on 31 March.

The stocktaking must be attended by a member of the Finance Department and the
person responsible for the stores nominated and both the person taking the stock
and the person supervising must certify the stock sheets.

The Head-efFinanceChief Financial Officer shall be entitled to receive such
information as he/she requires in relation to stores for accounting, costing and
financial records. Surplus materials, stores or equipment shall be disposed of by
competitive tender or public auction unless the appropriate officer, in consultation
with the Head-efFinaneceChief Financial Officer, decides otherwise in a particular
case.
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31
31.1

31.2

313

32
32.1
32.2

323

32.4

325

32.6

33
33.1
33.2

Inventories

An inventory shall be maintained by the Head-efFinaneeChief Financial Officer which
shall record an adequate description of all furniture, fittings and equipment, plant
and machinery belonging to the Authority.

The Chief Executive shall be responsible for maintaining a regular check of all items
shown on the inventory and for taking action in relation to surplus or deficiencies
and noting the inventory accordingly. ltems with a value of £1,000 or more and
those items which it is considered could be easily re-sold, shall be checked annually,
with other items checked not less frequently than every other year.

The Authority’s property shall not be removed otherwise than in accordance with
the ordinary course of the Authority’s business or used otherwise than for the
Authority’s purpose except in accordance with specific directions issued by the Chief
Executive.

Insurance
The Authority faces many risks of different kinds in carrying out its functions.

Regulations here are designed to protect the interests of the Authority, its staff and
the people it serves.

The Head-efFinaneeChief Financial Officer is responsible for managing the
Authority’s policy of insurance-r-aceerdance-with-overallguidelinesspecified-by-the
Freasurerand-FinancialAdviser. Directors must notify the Head-efFinaneceChief
Financial Officer promptly of all new risks or assets which may need to be insured,
and of any alterations affecting existing risks or insurances indicating the amount of
cover required.

Any event which gives rise to a claim under any policy of insurance must be notified
immediately to the Head-efFinaneceChief Financial Officer, who will make
arrangements to deal with all claims. Any loss, liability or damage or any event likely
to lead to an insurance claim should be reported to the police.

Any officer who uses his/her own motor vehicle on Authority business is required to
insure against third party risks in such form as to indemnify the Authority against
claims arising, and the policy, including any necessary endorsements and renewal

receipts, must be produced for inspection by-the BirectorofPlanningand-Reseurces

if so required. Directors are responsible for acquainting officers under their control
of the foregoing requirement.

The Chief Executive shall consult the Freasurerand-Firancial-AdviserChief Financial
Officer in respect of the terms of any indemnity which the Authority is requested to
give.

Ex Gratia and Other Payments

Ex-gratia payments are made in situations where no legal obligation exists.

The Chief Executive is authorised to:
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333

34
34.1

35
35.1

35.2

353

35.4

36
36.1

e reimburse the costs of damage to an employee’s personal property up to a
maximum of £5,000 in any one case, provided he/she is satisfied that the
damage was caused as a result of the employee pursuing Authority business;

e authorise the payment of any ex gratia payments or honoraria to employees up
to a maximum of £5,000; and

e in consultation with the Solicitor, approve payments of up to £5,000 to
complainants who have suffered a direct identifiable loss as a result of the
Authority’s actions.

The Chief Executive is authorised to agree the payment of any severance or
settlement payments to former employees up to a maximum of £5,000.

Gifts and Hospitality

All members of staff must comply with the guidance on the receipt of gifts and
hospitality as set out in the Code of Conduct for Employees (Human Resources Policy
Note No. 2).

Irregularities

All Officers and Members are responsible for giving immediate notification to the
Solicitor and Monitoring Officer, Directors ef-Planningand-Resources-or Head-of
FinaneeChief Financial Officer where there are grounds to suggest any financial
impropriety or irregularity concerning income, expenditure, cash, stores, or other
property of the Authority or held by the Authority.

The same applies to any suspected irregularity in the exercise of the functions of the
Authority (corruption). Further guidance can be found in the Authority’s Counter
Fraud, Corruption and Bribery Strategy, and in the Whistleblowing Policy (Human
Resources Policy Note No. 15).

Where, upon investigation, it is believed that reasonable grounds exist for suspecting
that a loss may have occurred as the result of misappropriation or fraud, the matter
shall be reported to the Chief Executive, Solicitor and Monitoring Officer (if not
already advised) and Freasurerand-Financial-AdviserChief Financial Officer for a
decision on whether the circumstances warrant investigation by the police.

Where, upon investigation, it is believed that a loss has occurred as a result of waste,
extravagance or maladministration, or that no loss has occurred, the matter shall be
reported to the Chief Executive, Solicitor and Monitoring Officer (if not already
advised) and Freasurerand-Finaneial-AdviserChief Financial Officer for a decision on
whether any further action is required.

Audit Requirements

The Authority has a statutory responsibility to maintain an effective and adequate
system of internal audit. Financial Regulations in this area are therefore important to
provide a formal framework for the activities of the internal audit team. There are
also statutory requirements in respect of external audit and other inspection
agencies.

Internal Audit
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36.2

36.3

36.4

36.5

36.6

The Authority is required to maintain an adequate and effective internal audit
function in accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 20145 {as-amended)
and to comply with all significant aspects of the CHPEA-Code-of Practicefortnternal
AuditinlocalGovernment{Public Sector Internal Audit Standards-frem-3-April
2043}, Overall control of the internal audit function is the responsibility of the Head
of Internal Audit, in consultation with the Freasurerand-Financial-AdviserChief

Financial Officer, Chief Executive DirectorofPlanningand-ResourcesHead-of
Finanee-and other officers as appropriate.

The Head of Internal Audit will provide an annual report and opinion, a summary of
internal audit activity and the level of assurance it can give to the Financial Scrutiny
and Audit Committee. The Financial Scrutiny and Audit Committee will review the
effectiveness of the system of internal audit on an annual basis, in order to support
the Annual Governance Statement.

The primary roles of internal audit are:

e to objectively examine, evaluate and report on the adequacy of the control
environment within the Authority; and

e to assist managers in preventing and detecting fraud and abuse.

The Head of Internal Audit, or his/her authorised representatives may, for the
purposes of audit:

e enter, at all reasonable times, any premises or land and have access to all
property in the keeping or ownership of the Authority;

e have access at all times to all records, documents and correspondence relating to
all financial and other transactions of the Authority or non-official funds
operated by staff of the Authority;

e require and must receive any explanations as are necessary;

e require any employee of the Authority to produce cash, stores or any other
property of the Authority or that of an unofficial fund under his control;

e remove records, documents or assets required for further investigation.
External Audit

External Audit is currently provided by Ernst and Young LLP under transitional
arrangements from the Audit Commission. The Local Audit and Accountability Act
makes provision for Authorities to appoint their own local auditor from 2018/19. The
Authority has joined the Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) national scheme
who will appoint auditors on behalf of those Authorities opted in. This currently
stands at 98% of Local Authorities and contracts will be made for a period of 5 years.

The outcome of thls appomtment W|II be made no Iater than 31 December
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37
37.1

37.2

37.3

37.4

37.5

37.6

37.7

37.8

37.9

Contracts for Building Construction or Engineering Works

All contracts must be awarded in accordance with the Authority’s Standing Orders
Relating to Contracts.

Where contracts provide for payment to be made by installments, the Head-of
FinaneeChief Financial Officer shall arrange for the state of account to be recorded in
the accounting computer system maintained in the Finance Department.

Payments to contractors on account of contracts shall be made only on a certificate
issued by the supervising architect, engineer or consultant or other duly authorised
officer as appropriate.

Subject to the provisions of the contract in each case, every extra or variation shall,
unless otherwise evidenced to their satisfaction, be authorised in writing by the
supervising architect, engineer or consultant, or other duly authorised officer.

Any such extra variation, the estimated additional cost of which exceeds by 10% the
approved contract sum, shall be reported to the Broads Authority or appropriate
committee as soon as practicable.

The final certificate of completion of any contract shall not be issued until the
appropriate officer, private architect, engineer or consultant has produced to the
Head-ef FinanceChief Financial Officer a detailed statement of account, and all
relevant documents if required.

The Head-efFinanceChief Financial Officer shall, to the extent considered necessary,
examine final accounts of contracts and shall be entitled to make all such enquiries
and receive such information and explanations as may be required as to the accuracy
of the accounts.

Claims from contractors in respect of matters not clearly within the term of any
existing contract shall be referred to the Freasurerand-Financial-AdviserChief
Financial Officer for consideration of the Authority’s legal liability and, where
necessary, for financial consideration before a settlement is reached.

In any case, where the total cost of any work carried out under a contract exceeds by
more than 10% the approved contract sum, a report of such cost shall, after
agreement of the final account, be submitted to the Broads Authority or appropriate
committee.
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Systems and Procedures

This area forms much of the routine financial business of the Authority and involves large
numbers of transactions and staff. This area will be of interest to many people and it is
important that such a major area of activity is clearly regulated and those regulations are
supported by thorough detailed standards.

38
38.1

38.2

38.3

38.4

38.5

38.6

39
39.1

Purchasing Arrangements

Directors must ensure and be able to demonstrate that the Authority obtains value
for money in purchasing activity and that purchasing accords with corporate and
service priorities, and that where possible purchasing is sustainable in nature.

Where any goods or a service involves tendering or contracts, these arrangements
must conform to the requirements set out at in the Authority’s Standing Orders
Relating to Contracts.

The most effective and sustainable purchasing arrangements must be used and must

always be in compliance with the Authority’s Procurement Strategy. For example:

e low cost items (less than £25) may be purchased through an imprest account
(Petty Cash); and

* |ow value, high-low volume purchases may be made via a Credit Card.

The Head-ef-FinaneeChief Financial Officer must ensure that e-business / purchasing
processes maintain the security and integrity for transacting business electronically
and must approve the introduction of such systems.

In accordance with the relevant codes of practice, every officer and member of the
Authority who is involved in contractual or purchasing decisions and issuing
payments on behalf of the Authority has a responsibility to formally declare any links
or personal interests which they may have with purchasers, suppliers or contractors
and in respect of partnership arrangements.

The Head-efFinaneeChief Financial Officer is responsible for ensuring that Related
Party Transactions involving the award of contracts following a tender process to
members of the Authority or the Navigation Committee are reported to the
Authority in advance of any such contract being let. This will be via the regular
reporting undertaken to the Authority within the Financial Performance and
Direction report or, in cases of urgency, by email, as judged necessary by the Head-of
FinaneeChief Financial Officer.

Orders for Goods and Services

Directors are responsible for the control and use of all orders and requisitions within
their Directorates and for access to the systems that generate them in accordance
with the detailed standards below.
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39.2

39.3

39.4

39.5

39.6

39.7

39.8

39.9

39.10

Orders should only be raised using the official purchase order and requisition pads as
supplied by the Finance Department.

Directors are responsible for:

e The control and use of all purchase orders and requisitions.

e Ensuring safe custody of unused orders.

e Ensuring every order is dated and signed by an authorised officer.

e Ensuring every order clearly specifies the standards, quality and quantity of
goods and services required.

* Ensuring every order states the agreed price or contract terms and times of
delivery.

e Ensuring every order is in compliance with the instructions relating to
procurement.

e An authorised second level signature is required in respect of payment for any
order over the value of £5,000.

Directors and budget managers are responsible for ensuring that budget provision
exists for all purchases and commitments created.

Yellow copies of purchase orders or requisitions will be forwarded to the Finance
Department within two working days of being raised. Full details of the process for
completing the forms are available on the Finance Intranet pages.

For orders placed by telephone, email, internet or verbally, the Director is
responsible for ensuring systems are in place to ensure the person placing the order
has the appropriate authority and that the Authority receives the goods that have
been ordered.

A paper purchase order or requisition must still be raised for these transactions.

Orders are required for all purchases except:

* rents;

e rates and water charges;

e gas and electricity;

o telephone charges;

e goods/services covered by a formal fixed term contract;
e small items purchased from Petty Cash; and

e items purchased via a Company Credit Card.

Members of staff are not permitted to purchase goods privately under the
Authority’s contract arrangements or solicit preferential treatment in a private
capacity from the Authority’s suppliers.

A copy of each order received by the Finance Department shall be scanned and
retained as part of the electronic policy of the Authority.
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40
410.1

410.2

410.3

410.4

40%.5

410.6

410.7

Payment of Accounts

The officer who issues the order shall be responsible for approving the invoice for

payment (first approver). By approving the invoice that officer is certifying that:

e the invoice relates to goods or services that the Authority has received;

e the goods or services are of the quality and quantity ordered;

e theinvoice does not relate to goods or services that have previously been
charged to the Authority;

e the expenditure is allocated to the correct financial code; and

o sufficient budget provision exists to meet the value of the invoice.

A second approval will be required for each invoice.

A full list of second approvers and the appropriate authorisation limits is available on
the Finance Intranet pages. The second level approval process must always include
the relevant budget holder for the budget to be charged. This may mean that there
are multiple second level approvers for some transactions.

The Finance Department will hold the central authorised signatory list along with
specimen signatures. Directors must ensure that they notify the Head-of
FinaneeChief Financial Officer of any required additions or deletions to this list and in
turn the Head-efFinaneceChief Financial Officer must ensure that these changes are
approved by the Management Team and that an appropriate record is maintained of
this decision.

In exceptional circumstances payment may be required in advance of the supply of
goods or services, though this is not best practice. In such situations either a pro-
forma, Cheque Request Form or BACS Request Form must be completed, signed by
the appropriate budget manager and given to the Finance Department for
processing.

The budget manager must take extra care in such transactions and ensure that:

e only reputable suppliers are used;

e the amounts of such payments are appropriate to be paid in advance and do not
present unnecessary risk;

¢ all other reasonable steps are taken to protect the Authority from risk and
potential loss; and

* a VAT receipt or invoice is received from the supplier in order to comply with VAT
regulations.

Officers must ensure that valid payments are processed in sufficient time to meet
payment deadlines and to avoid late payments and avoid potential penalties being
incurred. Late payment legislation (Statutory Instrument 2013 No. 395 The Late
Payment of Commercial Debts Regulations 2013) requires UK public authorities to
pay valid invoices within 30 calendar days of receipt. Where these timescales are not
met, the Authority is obliged to automatically pay:

e the outstanding amount;
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e daily interest for every day the payment is late based on an interest rate 8
percentage points above the Bank of England’s reference rate; plus

e afixed amount, depending on the size of the unpaid debt (up to £999.99: £40;
between £1,000.00 and £9,999.99: £70; £10,000 or more: £100).

410.8 The use of Direct Debits and Standing Orders as payment methods requires the prior
agreement of the Head-efFinanceChief Financial Officer.

401.9 The Authority’s preferred method of payment of accounts, grant-aid and other
contributions is via the BACS payment system. Officers should therefore endeavour
to obtain the required banking details from third parties in all instances. Forms are
available from the Finance Department.

410.10 All cheques shall be ordered only on the authority of the Head-efFinaneceChief
Financial Officer, who shall make proper arrangement for their safe custody.

410.11 Cheques on the main bank account require two authorised signatures. Details of
who these signatories are can be found within the List of Authorised Signatures
located on the intranet.

oaned-byvihe castrerand-Financial Advise

421 Company Credit Cards

421.1 The Head-efFinanceChief Financial Officer shall ensure that proper arrangements
are made for the administration of Company Credit Card(s).

421.2 The Head-efFinanceChief Financial Officer shall issue cards where circumstances
require, once approval has been given by the appropriate Director and the Chief
Executive.

421.3 Any orders raised and paid for using a Company Credit Card must be accompanied by
a Credit Card Request form. It is the responsibility of the card holder to ensure that
the person requesting the payment has completed the Credit Card Request form
prior to payment being made.

421.4 All cards must be kept as securely as possible, not be left unattended and must be
used by the card holder only. The card holder is responsible for any payments made
with cards issued in their name.

421.5 The standard credit limit for any credit card will be set at £3,000 unless otherwise
approved by the Chief Executive. The maximum limit for any credit card will be
£5,000.
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421.6

432.1

432.2

432.3

443
443.1
443.2

443.3

443.4

454
454.1

454.2

454.3
454.4

454.5

454.6

It is the responsibility of the person requesting payment to be made to ensure that a
VAT receipt or invoice is received from the supplier. Failure to do this will mean that
the Authority is unable to reclaim the VAT and the budget will be charged for the
gross cost of the supply.

Fuel Cards

Fuel cards are issued in respect of all vehicles used for Authority purposes and must
be stored securely with the vehicle keys when not in use.

Users should ensure that these cards are kept in a safe location and should report
any loss of cards immediately to the Head-efFinaneceChief Financial Officer who will
ensure its cancellation.

Fuel cards should only be used for the purchase of fuel for Authority vehicles.

Salaries, Wages and Pensions
The payroll function of the Authority is performed by Norfolk County Council.

The HR Department is responsible for ensuring that the payroll provider is provided
with such information as is necessary to ensure that accurate payments are made,
including details of all starters and leavers and of any relevant amendments to terms
and conditions of employment.

All timesheets must be completed using the appropriate forms supplied by the HR
Department and once completed should be approved by the appropriate budget
manager. Those staff authorised to sign timesheets are detailed on the Authorised
Signatory List which can be found on the Finance Intranet pages.

The Head-efFinaneeChief Financial Officer must ensure that only currently employed
members of staff are paid in the monthly payroll and that any anomalies are first
raised with the Head of Human Resources. If these cannot be resolved they should

be escalated to the BirectorofPlanningand-ResourcesChief Executive.

Staff Travel, Subsistence and Expense Claims

General travel, subsistence and expense claims should be made using the Expenses
Claim Form which can be found on the Human Resources Intranet pages.

Receipts for subsistence and expenses must be obtained and attached to the back of
the claim form.

All claim forms must be signed by the claimant and authorised by their line manager.

All forms must be forwarded to the Human Resources Department by no later than
5.00pm on 23" day of the month, to ensure payment within the following month’s

pay.

Exceptional expense claims for direct payment by the Finance Department may be
made using the separate Expenses Claim Form which can be found on the Finance
Intranet pages.

Officers’ claims submitted more than six months after expenses were incurred will
be paid only with the express approval of the Chief Executive.
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465
465.1

465.2

467
467.1

467.2

476.3

487
478.1

478.2

487.3

487.4

498
498.1

498.2

Members Allowances, Travelling, Subsistence and Expense Claims

Payments to members, including co-opted members of the Authority or its
committees who are entitled to claim travelling or other allowances, will be made
upon receipt of the completed prescribed form.

Claims should be submitted within six months of the expense being incurred.

Rail Travel and Hotel Accommodation

Where possible all rail travel should be booked using the Authority rail account to
ensure cost effective ticket purchasing and assist with establishing the Authority’s
annual rail travel usage.

All rail travel bookings should be accompanied by a rail travel request form which
should be given to the Finance Department after the booking is complete.

The Authority holds a Premier Inn account which should be used to make
accommodation bookings where appropriate.

Income

Scales of charges for services and any allowances and any subsequent variations
(except where fixed by statute) must be reviewed at regular intervals by the
appropriate Director and agreed with the Chief Executive before submission to the
Authority for approval.

The Asset Officer (or other appropriate officer nominated by him/her) must maintain
a detailed record of operational and non-operational land and buildings in respect of
which rent is or may be receivable, together with sufficient details of the terms of
tenancy/usage to enable the correct amount of rents to be recovered.

The Chief Executive is authorised to write off any sum not exceeding £5,000 due to
the Authority if he/she is satisfied that all reasonable recovery action has been taken
to recover the sum due. The Freasurerand-Financial-AdviserChief Financial Officer is
authorised to write off, in consultation with the Chief Executive, any sum not
exceeding £25,000 due to the Authority if he/she is satisfied that all reasonable
recovery action has been taken to recover the sum due. The prior approval of the
Authority must be obtained to write off any sum in excess of £25,000.

The Head-efFinaneeChief Financial Officer must be consulted by Directors on any
proposal to acquire any cash till or accounting equipment.

Invoicing Arrangements (Charging for Goods/Services)

The raising of all invoices to outside organisations (referred to as customers) must
only be performed by the Finance Department who have a full understanding of the
VAT situation for each charge to be made.

Any officer wishing to raise an invoice must do so by completing an Invoice
Requisition Form and then passing this to the Finance Department. The Finance
Department has procedures that it should follow to ensure that all debts are paid.
This consists of ‘reminder’ and ‘warnings of legal action’ letters.
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48.3  For items where the Authority is required to make payment on a customer’s behalf
advance payment is required in to cover the cost of the purchase. This typically
covers items such as memorial benches and external accreditation.

5049 Banking Arrangements

5049.1 The Head-efFinaneeChief Financial Officer is authorised to make arrangements
regarding the Authority’s bank accounts. All such bank accounts will be in the name
of the Broads Authority.

5049.2 The Head-efFinaneeChief Financial Officer will ensure that monthly bank
reconciliations are carried out in a timely manner for all of the Authority’s bank
accounts.

5049.3 Unless otherwise agreed by the Authority, officers authorised to collect Authority
money must issue official receipts promptly and pay over all sums received to the
Head-efFinaneeChief Financial Officer or by arrangement (for example in respect of
the collection of Tolls income), to the Authority’s bankers. All reasonable steps
should be taken for the storage of cash, and should conform to the requirements
imposed by the Authority’s insurers.

5049.4 Each officer who receives money on behalf of the Authority must keep an accurate
and chronological account of all receipts and deposits.

5049.5 Every transfer of Authority monies from one member of staff to another must be
evidenced in the records of the Authority by the signature of the receiving officer.

5049.6 Receipts must only be issued on officially authorised receipt books, tickets and other
documents of a similar nature which have been ordered and issued by, or under the
direction of, the Head-efFinaneceChief Financial Officer. A record must be maintained
of every issue of such documents.

5049.7 Any cheques or cash received at the Authority’s Head Office must be logged into the
cheque log as the post is opened. Once the Finance Department has received the
cheques or cash they must initial the log to confirm that they have taken receipt of
the cheques or cash.

5049.8 The Finance Department must ensure that they accurately record the details of any
payments they receive and that they correctly establish whether the payment
relates to a previously raised invoice.

5049.9 Money received or held on behalf of the Authority must be banked in full and not be
used to cash personal or any other cheques whatsoever.
510 Controlled Stationery

510.1 The Head-efFinanceChief Financial Officer will be responsible for the order and issue
of controlled financial stationery, these being:

e Cheques;
e Purchase Orders;
e Requisitions;

e Receipt Pads; and
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521

521.1

521.2

521.3

521.4

521.5

e Boat Trip and Yacht Station Tickets.

A record of all new stock received and issues made (and to whom) will be made by
the Head-efFinanceChief Financial Officer.

Petty Cash Systems

The Head-efFinaneeChief Financial Officer will issue petty cash floats for the purpose
of reimbursing expenses.

No income received should be paid into a petty cash system. Such income should be
banked into the Authority bank account using paying in books issued by the Finance
Department, or by being passed to Finance for banking.

Reimbursement of expenses should be limited to expenditure under £25 unless
otherwise authorised by the relevant Budget Holder and the Head-efFinaneeChief
Financial Officer.

Officers responsible for petty cash systems must ensure that cash and receipts total
the original floats issued at all times.

Such petty cash systems should be made available for inspection by the Head-of
FinaneeChief Financial Officer as requested.

September2016 July 2017
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